
TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, JUNE 17, 2025 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
June 3, 2025, Regular Meeting 
June 3, 2025, Closed Session 

1 

3 APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 17, 2025, AGENDA 9 

5:35 4 PUBLIC COMMENT 
– Will last up to 1-hour dependent on number of speakers

CHAIRMAN EGGERS 11

5:40 5 DISCUSSION ON BOARD OF EDUCATION RESOLUTION

ACKNOWLEDGING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A

GUARANTEED ENERGY SAVINGS CONTRACT 

DR. LESLIE ALEXANDER

MR. GRAHAM LEWIS 
13 

5:45 6 MIDDLE FORK GREENWAY BOONE GORGE PARK BID

AWARD 
MS. CARRIE CAVINESS 27 

5:50 7 APPROVAL OF JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL

(JCPC) FY 2026 CERTIFICATION, MEMBERSHIP, AND

COUNTY PLAN 

MS. AUSTIN COMBS 29 

5:55 8 WATAUGA EXTENSION GREENHOUSE BUILDING PROJECT

BID AWARD 
MS. PAIGE PATTERSON 79 

6:00 9 NC DIVISION OF MILITARY VETERANS AFFAIRS GRANT MS. APRIL GOODMAN 119 

6:05 10 BOARD OF ELECTIONS EQUIPMENT PURCHASE MR. MATT SNYDER 147

6:10 11 TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Reports
B. Refunds and Releases
C. Resolution Advancing the Scheduled Pentennial

Reappraisal 
D. Proposal for Business Personal Property Audit

Services  
E. Board of Equalization and Review Hearing Dates
F. License Plate Agency Contract Renewal

MR. TYLER RASH 
151 
153 
157 

159 

168 
171 

6:15 12 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Budget Amendments
B. Proposed Human Services Parking Lot Agreement

with Appalachian State University
C. Boards and Commissions
D. Announcements

MR. DERON GEOUQUE

173 
181 

187 
189 

6:20 13 BREAK 191 



 
 

Page 2 
Tuesday, June 17, 2025 

Tentative Agenda & Meeting Notice 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

6:25 14 CLOSED SESSION 
   Attorney/Client Matters per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
   Land Acquisition per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i) 

 191 

6:30 15 POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION  191 

6:35 16 ADJOURN   

 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

June 3, 2025, Regular Meeting 
June 3, 2025, Closed Session 

061725  BCC Meeting

1



DRAFT MINUTES 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2025 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
June 3, 2025, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 

Chairman Eggers called the meeting to order at 5:31 P.M.  The following were present: 

PRESENT: Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
Todd Castle, Vice-Chairman 
Emily Greene, Commissioner 
Tim Hodges, Commissioner 
Ronnie Marsh, Commissioner 
Paul Miller, County Attorney  
Deron Geouque, County Manager 

Commissioner Greene opened with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Castle led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Eggers presented the May 20, 2025, regular meeting and closed session minutes. 

Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the May 20, 2025, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the May 20, 2025, 
closed session minutes as presented. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Chairman Eggers called for additions and/or corrections to the June 3, 2025, agenda. 

County Manager Geouque requested the removal of Agenda Item 11 B and to interchange Agenda 
Item 9 and Agenda Item 10.   

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the June 3, 2025, 
agenda as amended. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

061725  BCC Meeting

2



PUBLIC COMMENT 

The following spoke during public comment: 
 

 David Jackson, Boone Area Chamber of Commerce – FY 2025-2026 Budget. 
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

The Board acknowledged the retirement of long-time Clerk to the Board, Anita Fogle. Chairman 
Eggers presented Ms. Fogle with a proclamation. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the proclamation as 
presented.   

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 
 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION THANKING CCC&TI 

Commissioner Marsh read a proclamation thanking Caldwell Community College & Technical 
Institute and its Foundation for the scholarships awarded to Valle Crucis middle school students. 
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the proclamation 
as presented.   
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 
 

REPORT ON WATAUGA COUNTY OPIOID SETTLEMENT PROJECTS  

Ms. Lindsey Sullivan, AppHealthCare, presented the Watauga County opioid settlement projects.  
The projects were reviewed by the opioid committee and presented as recommended.  Board 
approval was required to: 1) Approve projects as recommended by the opioid committee; 2) 
Approve the agreement with Appalachian Health District; 3) Approve the resolution to direct the 
unspent Fiscal Year 2024-2025 funds in Fiscal Year 2025-2026; and 4) Approve the resolution to 
direct the expenditure of opioid settlement funds. 
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the following: 
 
1. The projects as recommended by the opioid committee. 
2. The agreement with Appalachian Health District. 
3. The resolution to direct the unspent Fiscal Year 2024-2025 funds in Fiscal Year 2025-2026. 
4. The resolution to direct the expenditure of opioid settlement funds. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 
 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

3



PROPOSED PROCLAMATION FOR ELDER ABUSE AWARENESS DAY 

Ms. Christie Markham, Ms. Angie Boitnotte, and Mr. Zack Green presented a proclamation 
declaring June 15, 2025, as “World Elder Abuse Awareness Day” in North Carolina.    
 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the proclamation 
declaring June 15, 2025, as “World Elder Abuse Awareness Day” in North Carolina.    
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS  

A. Proposed Revision to Home & Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) FY 25 
Allocation 

Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Project on Aging Director, requested the Board revise the original allocation 
of the Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG).  The request was to move $2,000 
from IHA I to Congregate Nutrition and $10,000 from IHA II to Home Delivered Meals.    
 
Commissioner Marsh, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to approve the request to move 
$2,000 from IHA I to Congregate Nutrition and $10,000 from IHA II to Home Delivered Meals.      
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
B. Proposed Allocation of Projected FY 26 Home & Community Care Block Grant 
(H&CCBG) Funds 

Ms. Boitnotte requested Board action to accept the projected allocation of $320,788 in Home and 
Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) funds for FY 2026.  The required local match of 
$35,644 is present in the Project on Aging's FY 2026 requested budget.   
 
Commissioner Greene, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to accept the projected 
allocation of $320,788 in Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) funds for FY 2026. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
REQUEST TO AMEND THE “NOT TO EXCEED” AMOUNT IN SDR AND 

DEBRISTECH’S NOTICE TO PROCEED 

 
Mr. Chip Patterson, SDR, initially requested Board approval for an increase to the “Not to Exceed” 
(NTE) amount from $3.8 million to $5,950,000, an additional increase of $2,150,000.  However, 
Mr. Patterson stated they would actually need an additional $500,000 to bring the total increase 
amount requested to $2,650,000.  The increase was required to allow SDR to continue right-of-

061725  BCC Meeting

4



way debris removal and complete the project.  In conjunction with that amendment, Mr. Dennis 
Cruthird with DebrisTech (monitoring company as required by FEMA for reimbursement) 
requested an additional increase in the “Not to Exceed” amount of their contract from $1.5 million 
to $2 million.  The $2 million plus the $6,450,000 brings the total amount to $8,450,000.  
Considerable discussion was held regarding the significant increases and the disappointment in the 
“gross” underestimates by SDR.  Further displeasure was voiced regarding the slow progress in 
completing the debris removal process.  Mr. Patterson stated they had a total of 2,048 points 
identified for remediation and 500 were completed.  Commissioner Marsh questioned SDR’s 
ability to complete removal of the remaining 1,548 points in the three (3) weeks they indicated it 
would be required since over eight (8) months have passed and they have only completed 500 
points. 
 
Chairman Eggers, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to accept the $2,650,000 and 
$500,000 increases to the “Not to Exceed” amounts of SDR and DebrisTech, respectively.   
 

VOTE: Aye-4 (Eggers, Castle, Greene, and Hodges) 
 Nay-1 (Marsh) 
 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS - OLD COVE CREEK SCHOOL SPORTS FACILITY 

FEASIBILITY STUDY AND CONCEPT PLAN 

Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, recommended BREC for the feasibility study and concept 
plan for the Old Cove Creek School Sports Facility.  Estimated cost for the project including 
architecture and engineering services is $1,508,000.  Funds would come from insurance, FEMA 
reimbursements, grants, Watauga County TDA, and administrative contingency.    
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to approve BREC for the 
feasibility study and concept plan for the Old Cove Creek School Sports Facility along with the 
contract in the amount of $185,000 for architecture, engineering, bid documents and bidding, 
construction documents and administration, and permitting.   
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
BOARD OF ELECTIONS OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST 

Mr. Matt Snyder, Board of Elections Director, requested the Board to approve out-of-state travel 
for himself to attend a workshop on elections and emergency management in Kanas City, Missouri 
on June 20, 2025 held by The Center for Tech and Civic Life. All expenses are paid by The Center 
for Tech and Civic Life. 
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the out-of-state 
travel request.   
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

061725  BCC Meeting

5



STREAMFLOW REHABILITATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (STRAP) UPDATE 

Mr. Brian Bonville, Conservation Technician, updated the Board on a STRAP project located 
between the Watauga County Agricultural Extension Center and the Temple of the High Country. 
The report was for information only; therefore, no action was required. 
 
 
ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2026 BUDGET ORDINANCE 

The Fiscal Year 2026 Budget Ordinance was presented for adoption.  Included were the changes 
recommended by the Board and County Manager.   The Board thanked staff and everyone involved 
in the budget process from elected officials, outside agencies, non-profits, and citizens.   
 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Greene, moved to approve the Fiscal Year 
2025-2026 Budget Ordinance as presented.     
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Change Orders One (1) Through Six (6) for the New EMS Facility 

County Manager Geouque presented Change Orders one (1) through six (6) for the new EMS 
facility for Board approval.  The Change Orders were detailed in the attached information.  The 
initial change order amount was over $70,000 but the project architect was able to reduce the 
amount to $56,503.08.  The project contingency covered the Change Orders as presented.  The 
Board requested in the future that the architect for the project be present to address the Change 
Orders.   
 
Commissioner Marsh made a motion to approve only Change Orders 3 and 4.  The motion failed 
due to absence of second.   
 
Chairman Eggers, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve Change Orders 1-6 in 
the amount of $56,503.08.   
 

VOTE: Aye-4 (Eggers, Castle, Greene, and Hodges) 
 Nay-1 (Marsh) 

 
B. Regular Board Meeting Schedule    

Due to the Board’s multiple meetings in May, the adoption of the County budget in June, and the 
4th of July holiday, the first Board meeting in July has been cancelled historically.  Typically, 
there is very limited business due to the new fiscal year.  Additionally, in the event a meeting is 
required, the Board could schedule a special called meeting.   
 
Commissioner Hodges, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to cancel the July 1, 2025 
regular scheduled meeting.   

061725  BCC Meeting

6



 
VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Announcements 

On June 9th, 2025 at 10 A.M., the County will celebrate completion of the new improvements to 
the Sanitation Scalehouse Facility.   
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS  

Chairman Eggers asked if there were any Commissioner comments.   
 
Commissioner Greene  –  Watauga High School Celebration – Seniors Sunrise/Sunset. 
Commissioner Hodges  –  WAMY Fund Raiser. 
Vice-Chairman Castle  – Scale house improvements, staff, and the right direction  

the department is heading. 
Chairman Eggers   –  Appreciated citizens patience with debris removal,  

Department Heads/Staff, and Boone Chamber of  
Commerce.    

CLOSED SESSION 

At 6:55 P.M., Commissioner Greene, seconded by Vice-Chairman Castle, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Castle, seconded by Commissioner Marsh, moved to resume the open meeting at 
8:21 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 

Commissioner Greene, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
8:23 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 
 
Braxton Eggers, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  Deron Geouque, County Manager  

061725  BCC Meeting

7



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

8



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 17, 2025, AGENDA 

061725  BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Public Comment will last up to 1-hour dependent upon the number of speakers. 
 

 
 
  

061725  BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

DISCUSSION ON BOARD OF EDUCATION RESOLUTION FOR A GUARANTEED ENERGY

SAVINGS CONTRACT  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Dr. Leslie Alexander, Watauga County Schools Superintendent, and Mr. Graham Lewis, 
Schneider Electric, will present a guaranteed energy savings contract.  The contract is to provide 
for cost savings which then are used to pay back the cost of the improvements and to allow for 
investment in future infrastructures and utility improvements.  There would be no cost to the 
County.  The Board would have to adopt the resolution to allow the School Board to enter into 
such a contract.  As there are no numbers associated with the contract at this time, the purpose of 
the presentation is to gauge the willingness of the Board of Commissioners to approve such a 
contract.     

Board action is required to adopt the resolution with the “not to exceed” figures provided.   

061725  BCC Meeting

13



 
 

 
RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A GUARANTEED 

ENERGY SAVINGS CONTRACT BY THE WATAUGA COUNTY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the County of Watauga, North Carolina 
(the “County”) as follows: 
1.   The Board hereby finds, determines and acknowledges that: 

a) The Watauga County Schools Board of Education (the “School Board”) plans to enter into a 
Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract pursuant to G.S. 143-64.17 et. seq. not to exceed $XXX for the 
purpose of providing certain energy conservation measures authorized to reduce energy consumption 
and/or energy-related operating costs (the “Project”); 

b) The School Board intends to finance said Project by entering into an installment contract (the 
“Contract”) pursuant to G.S. 143-64.17I and G.S. 160A-20, as amended; 

c) The School Board’s Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract shall not exceed 20 years from the date of 
the installation and acceptance by the governmental unit of the energy conservation measures 
provided for under the Contract; 

d) The energy conservation measures to be installed under the Contract are for existing buildings; 
e) The energy savings resulting from the Project are expected to equal or exceed the total costs payable 

under the Contract as evidenced through an evaluation performed by a third party reviewer, XXX on 
behalf of the School Board;  

f) The payments made under the Contract are not expected to require any additional appropriations to be 
made by the Board to the School Board nor require any increase in taxes; and  

g) The Board does not intend to reduce appropriations to the School Board based upon a reduction of 
energy costs in a manner that would inhibit the ability of the School Board to make required 
payments under the Contract, provided that the County is not bound in any manner to appropriate 
funds to the School Board in an amount sufficient for the School Board to make such payments. 

2.   This resolution shall take effect upon its passage. 

 
I DO HEREBY CERTIFY that this is a true and correct copy of the resolution duly adopted by the 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners at a regular meeting held on June 17, 2025. 
 
 
___________________________________________  ___________________ 
Chairman, Watauga County Board of Commissioners    Date 

061725  BCC Meeting

14



Property of Schneider Electric 

at Watauga County Schools

Making an

061725  BCC Meeting

15



Performance Contracting Overview

Budget before and after Capital Recovery and Reinvestment

Definition: “Guaranteeing utility savings and reinvesting the savings into facility improvements.”

Page 2Confidential Property of Schneider Electric |

Operations

Energy bill

Guaranteed 

savings

Operations

Energy bill

Payments

Guaranteed 

savings

BEFORE AFTER

061725  BCC Meeting

16



Revenue Creation 

Measures

Cost Savings 

Capital / Maintenance 

Needs

Cost Savings 

Comprehensive 

Solution

What Kinds of Facility Improvements?

Energy Conservation

Measures
● LED Lighting

● BAS Optimization

● Water Conservation

● Building Envelope Upgrades

● Renewables

Major Building 

Improvements

● HVAC Upgrades

● Controls Upgrades

● Windows & Cosmetics

● Electrical Upgrades

061725  BCC Meeting

17



Address Major Facility Needs: 

Take care of big-ticket items like boilers throughout all 

campuses, so that you can concentrate limited funding on 

other priority needs such as air-conditioning

Cut Costs & Demonstrate Financial Stewardship

Reduce operational costs by implementing energy efficiency 

measures and share responsibility of taxpayer dollars w/ 

community

One Trusted Partner:

Long-term partnership with a reliable expert that can join you 

along your district’s facilities journey

Provide New STEM Learning Opportunities for Students

Expose students to new career opportunities and provide 

unique, hands-on experiences for students 

Project Priorities & Goals 061725  BCC Meeting

18



Public

Page 5Confidential Property of Schneider Electric |

$1.09M

$781K

Baseline Utility
Expenditure

Post-Project Utility
Expenditure

Annual Utility Impact

Utility Spend Utility Savings

28%
estimated 

reduction in 

utility costs

$308,000
Estimated Annual Savings

$5.6-$7.1M
In capital that can be 

reinvested over 20-year 

partnership to fund 

needed renovations

Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract - 
Projected Financial Impact

$4.2-$5.3M
In capital that can be 

reinvested over 15-year 

partnership to fund 

needed renovations

061725  BCC Meeting

19



Facilities 

Impacted

Watauga High 

School
Hardin Park ES Green Valley Parkway ES Blowing Rock ES Cove Creek ES

Mabel ES Bethel ES

• Mix of T8/T12 Lighting & LED

• Gyms converted to LED; various hallways 

were also converted to LED (school by 

School basis)

• 30W-40W lamps were observed in the 

non-LED areas

• Mix of LED and inefficient exterior lighting

Current Condition 

Lighting

• Convert remaining fixtures to LED (Potential of 

60%-75% savings on non-LED)

• Replace exterior fixtures with LED

• De-lamp appropriate areas

Recommendations

Payback

061725  BCC Meeting

20



• 7 Schools w/ Boilers fired with Fuel Oil with 

many at or near the end of their useful life.

• All ES served by 2-pipe heating only system; 

few areas have spot cooling systems (DX, 

Window Units, Portable Units)

• HS is served by a 2009 Geothermal Heat 

Pump System.

Current Condition 

Boiler Upgrades

• Convert Fuel Oil Boilers to Propane; evaluate 

bringing Natural Gas to Parkway ES.

• Develop priorities of equipment to be 

upgraded

Recommendations

Payback
Facilities 

Impacted

Watauga High 

School
Hardin Park ES Green Valley Parkway ES Blowing Rock ES Cove Creek ES

Mabel ES Bethel ES

061725  BCC Meeting

21



• High School has SE control system and is 

in good working order

• Varying degree of standardization of 

setpoints (70-75 observed in cooling)

• Other schools have varying degree of 

controls from pneumatics to stand alone 

tstats to aquastats to control fans

Current Condition 

Building Automation

• Optimize sequences, setpoints, and 

schedules where applicable

• Identify and replace failed components

• Understand larger priorities of adding 

cooling to develop controls solution that 

can be expanded.

Recommendations

Payback
Facilities 

Impacted

Watauga High 

School
Hardin Park ES Green Valley Parkway ES Blowing Rock ES Cove Creek ES

Mabel ES Bethel ES

061725  BCC Meeting

22



• Solar PV

• Currently there is one ground mount 

panel at Cove Creek ES as part of a 

educational program, but no 

commercial-sized system exists.

• Based on the current analysis of the 

solar requirements of the two Utilities, 

there may be some opportunity for PV, 

but further evaluation is required.

•  Secondary Transformer Upgrades

• Mable ES – Electrical Infrastructure

• Building Envelope Improvements

Additional ECMs 061725  BCC Meeting

23



General

SUCCESS STORY  |  Lexington City Schools, NC

Getting Caught Up on Decades of Deferred Maintenance

Update Infrastructure

Promote Sustainability Education Initiatives

Vision

•

Solutions

Lexington City Schools and Schneider Electric partnered to not only address 

critical infrastructure needs, but also implement transformative energy solutions 

that would generate savings for years to come.  Most importantly, we improved 

comfort for EC students in the classroom at South Lexington School and 

eliminated noisy distractions for many children at Southwest ES.

Results

Total 

infrastructure 

improvements

Estimated savings, 

incentives, & 

revenue over 19 

years

• 5 New Boilers, 1 Chiller, 1 Cooling Tower

• Reduction in Noise Pollution 

• LED Lighting District-Wide

• 21 Tons of Water Source Heat Pump 

Replacements

• Capital Funding Maximization

• $850,000 for 2 multi-zone air-

handlers

• ESSER II funds for district-wide bi-

polar ionization

• ESSER III $1.4m for HVAC needs

$7.03M $5.09M

061725  BCC Meeting

24



Page 11

Project Milestones

o Get County Commissioner Support to Move Into Procurement

o Procurement Process

o Design Phase

o Construction

o Client Services Period

Gain Stakeholder Buy-In & Move to Procurement

making an

at Watauga County Schools

Looking Ahead – Next Steps 
061725  BCC Meeting

25



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

26



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

MIDDLE FORK GREENWAY BOONE GORGE PARK BID AWARD 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Ms. Carrie Caviness, Interface Environmental Consulting, will request the Board award the bid to 
MBI Builders in the amount of $3,823,590.24 for the construction of Boone Gorge Park.  Funding 
for the project will come from Watauga County Tourism Development Authority and numerous 
grant sources.   

Board action is required to accept the bid from MBI Builders in the amount of $3,823,590.24 for 
the construction of Boone Gorge Park. 

061725  BCC Meeting

27



 

To: Watauga County Commissioners 

From:  Carrie Caviness, President, IEC 

Date: June 5th, 2025 

Re:  Middle Fork Greenway Boone Gorge Park  

This memo serves to detail the Middle Fork Greenway, Boone Gorge Park bidding process and 
Interface Environmental Consulting (IEC) and Blue Ridge Conservancy’s (BRC) recommendation to 
the Watauga County Commissioners for contract award.  

 IEC and Warren Consulting & Design assembled the bid documents including instructions, 
alternatives, technical specifications to accompany the project’s construction documents.  This 
package was provided to Mr. Deron Geoque and Ms. Anita Fogle and posted to the County’s 
website on April 14th, at 8:00am.  A mandatory pre-bid meeting was held onsite on April 24th. 
Advertisement of the bid was posted in the Watauga Democrat, Ashe Post & Times, and Greater 
Diversity News website. IEC also disseminated the bid package to HUD and SBE/DBE General 
Contracting firms per recommendations by the High County Council of Governments staff.  

The first bid opening was attempted on May 7th, 2025.  Two firms were present; JW Hampton 
and Polivka Construction.  Per NCAC, a 7-day readvertisement period was initiated with all 
documents still maintained on the County website.  Bids were opened by Carrie Caviness (IEC) on 
May 14th, 2025 at the County Administration building.  Dr. Caviness was accompanied by WCD staff 
as well as Blue Ridge Conservancy and Watauga County staff during bid opening, review, 
tabulation, and recognition of the apparent low bidder.  All bidders met and provided proof of the 
required licensure/insurance, bid bond, supply/sub-contractor lists, and references.  All bids 
received are given below: 

Contractor Base Bid 

MBI Builders $4,395,323.31 

JW Hampton $6,170.476.19 

Polivka $6,951,425.00 

IEC and BRC recommend the MFG Boone Gorge Park project be awarded to MBI Builders, LLC based on 
the bid price and all other bid requirements which were successfully met.  Negotiation between BRC and 
MBI has resulted in an expected contract award of $3,823,590.24. 

Sincerely,  

Dr. Carrie Caviness 
Interface Environmental Consulting, LLC. 
CC: J. Patrick Warren, PE, Warren Consulting and Design, PLLC. 
        Charlie Brady, Blue Ridge Conservancy 

061725  BCC Meeting

28



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

APPROVAL OF THE JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL (JCPC) FY 2026
CERTIFICATION, MEMBERSHIP, AND COUNTY PLAN 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Ms. Austin Combs, JCPC Program Manager, will request the Board approve the Juvenile Crime 
Prevention Council (JCPC) FY 2026 certification, membership, and County Plan.  

Board approval is required to accept the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) FY 2026 
certification, membership, and County Plan. 

061725  BCC Meeting

29



Juvenile Crime Prevention Council
County Plan

Watauga County

For FY 2025-2026

I.

II.

III.

IV.

V.

VI.

VII.

Table of Contents

Executive Summary

County Funding Plan

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Organization

County Risk and Needs Assessment Summary

County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Request for Proposals

Funding Decisions Summary

Funded Programs Program Enhancement Plan (PEP). (Add brief program
description for any program without a PEP)

061725  BCC Meeting

30



a

061725  BCC Meeting

31



Executive Summary

The Watauga County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC), in fulfillment of the duties and
responsibilities as set forth in the General Statutes of the State of North Carolina, has reviewed and
updated this County Plan for FY 2025-2026. In 2019, House Bill 593 passed which approved an optional
1- or 2-year funding cycle for DPS JCPC funds, which is determined locally by each JCPC statewide.
Also included in the HB was Raise the Age in N.C, which directs 16 & 17 years old from District Court
to Juvenile Court. ln order to see any new possible trends injuvenilejustice data (now serving 16 & 17
years old) and to plan programming in the community accordingly, the Watauga County JCPC approved
a l-year funding cycle. Data ccintinues to be monitored by the JCPC annually which provides direction to
which funding cycle is most beneficial to the communiry and Council.

The JCPC has identified the issues and factors which have an influence and impact upon vulnerable
youth, at-risk youth, delinquent youth, and their families in Watauga County. Further, the JCPC has

identified the strategies and services most likely to reduce/prevent delinquent behavior.

Monitorins and Evaluation: Each program funded in the past fiscal year by the JCPC has been monitored
by the JCPC Monitoring Committee and programs were found in ful1 compliance with DPS JCPC Policy
and within the operating parameters of their budget and, providing the services as described in their
program agreement. The monitoring results and program outcome evaluations were considered in making
flinding allocation decisions. The JCPC will continue to conduct annual implementation monitoring of is
funded progmms.

Priorities for Funding: Through a review of risk & needs assessment data, the Youth Assessment
Screening Inventory (YASI) data and a community resource assessment, the JCPC has determined that
the following services are needed to reduce/prevent delinquency in Watauga County.

l. Parent/Caregiver Education, Skill Building, and Support
2. Interpersonal Skill Building and lnterpersonal Skills
3. Experiential Skills
4. Mediation
5. Teen Court/Restorative Justice (Sentencing Circles)
6. Community Service/Restitution
7. Vocational Skills
8. Substance Use Prevention
9. Tutoring and Academic Enhancement
10. Mentoring

Fundinq Recommendations: Having advertised a Request for Proposals (RFP) for these needed services
for a minimum of thirty (30) days, the JCPC has screened the submifted proposals and has determined
which proposals best meet the advertised needed services. As required by statute, the JCPC recommends
allocation of the NC Department of Public, Division of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
funds to the following programs in the amounts specified below for the upcoming fiscal year: (Also, see

the Watauga Counry Funding Plan with this report.)

1. Juvenile Mediation
2. Sentencing Circles
3. Project Challenge
4, Teen Leadership
5. Youth Resource Center

s 14,950
s 18,980
$65,000
$22,818
s58,531

061725  BCC Meeting

32



The JCPC fuither recommends that the following amount be allocated for the administrative costs of the
Council for fiscal year 24-25: $500.

Respectfu lly Submitted,

Chair, Watauga County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council

Date

061725  BCC Meeting

33



ll.

061725  BCC Meeting

34



Watauga County
NC DPS . Gommunity Programs - Gounty Funding Plan

Available Funds: S $r39,17€ Local Match: g $41,603 Rate: 3O/o

DPS JCPC funds must be comEitted with a Progmm Agr€emeEt subdtted in NC Allier eod etectronisally signcd hy euthorized olficials,

The above plan was derived through a planning process by the Watauga County
2025.2026Juvenile Crimc Prevention Council and rcprcs€nts the County's for use ofthese fuads in FY

Amourt of Un€llo€ted Funds

Amouot of funds reverted back to DPS

Discretionary Funds added

etHk type E initiat tr final

Juvcnile Cdme

Chairperson,BoardofCouttyCommissioners (Date)

or County Finauce Ofiicer

I JCPC Admin $500 $500

I

Juvenile llediauon . llledldion ard RB8lorauve

Judlce Center $ll s,45( sl4.950

J

PtojectChallange . Proiect Chdhnge Nodh Carol,nr
Inc. $s0,000 ${a000 $5.M

t
Sentenchg Clrclqi. medlallon and Reilofatlve
Jusllce Center $14600 $4,380 $r8.980
Ie€n Leadsrthig DsvsloprnEnt lnd After.School
Progam - ilountaln Alllance $17.552 $5.206 $zaars

fouth RerourEr Cenler - llllestsm Yogth tletilodr $45.02! s13.507 $58,531

,

I

il

ll

l2

,)

ll

l5

ln

li

,l

TOTALS: $t39,{76 $41,603 sl80.779

*{yaar*"tt ;Fu#ec4 5l2l2o25
Frogranr Assistant

Olfice Staff

-DPS
Reviewed

Date

Reviewed

7t-

ver ago2l21

061725  BCC Meeting

35



ll!.

061725  BCC Meeting

36



Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Organization

FY 25-26 Name Organization Title

Chairperson
Austin Combs

High Country
Community Health

Psychologist

Vice-
Chairperson

Keron Poteat
Watauga County Parks

and Recreation
Assistant Director

Secretarv
Becky Ballew

Watauga County
Finance

Accounting Tech
il

Treasurer
Becky Ballew

Watauga County
Finance

Accounting Tech.
II

Assessment
Gommittee
Chairperson

Mechelle Miller NCDPS
Court Counselor

Supervisor
Funding
Committee
Chairperson

Keron Poteat
Watauga County Parks

and Recreation
Director

Number of
members for
FY 24-25:

16 to 18

List meeting dates during the current fiscal year and identify the number of JCPC
members in attendance for each.

Meeting Date
Number of Members in

Attendance Quorum Present? Yes/No

8-22-24 14 Yes
9-26-24 Cancelled No

10-24-24 I Yes
12-07 -24 7 No

1-23-25 11 Yes
2-27-25 11 Yes
3-27-25 16 Yes
4-17-25 13 Yes
5-22-25 10 Yes

061725  BCC Meeting

37



lv.

061725  BCC Meeting

38



I.
il.
ilI
IV

SUMMARY REPORT OF THE
WATAUGA COUNTY RISK AND NEEDS ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE

Youth Assessment and Screening Instrument (YASI) Summary
Summary of Community Resources
Summary of Gaps and Barriers in the Community Continuum of Services
Proposed Priority Services for Funding

PART I. Youth Assessment and Screening Instrument (Full YASI)

The Risk and Needs Assessment Committee reviewed aggregate data gleaned from the Youth
Assessment and Screening Instrument administered by Juvenile Court Counselors in Watauga
County during the 2023-2024 f,rscal year. The full assessment consists of over 100 separate items
useful for both predictive risk and case management. Data reported from this review will consist
of county-level risk factors that may be prioritized by the JCPC for RFP development, as well as

for highlighting prevalent issues among court-involved juveniles that individual programs and
community-based service organizations will want to consider when working with court-involved
juveniles in the county.

At intake to Juvenile Justice services, all youth receive the YASI Pre-Screen (33 questions),
which is also embedded in each full assessment (100 questions). The YASI questions are framed
in either a historic context (Legal History, for example) or, in some cases, "current" or "prior
three months" timeframes for other, more dynamic, questions. Some of the individual item
ratings are dependent on information reported by the youth andlor their guardian(s). Some
questions are subject to additional information by the DJJ Court Counselors conducting the
intake.

The aggregate outputs from full YASI assessments are just one of the data sources used by the
Committee and are the focus of summaries that follow in this report.

*"Note** Many of the deviations from the state numbers were suggested to be due to the small
population and smaller number ofjuveniles served giving Court Counselors the ability to gain
more insight into each juvenile by working closely with collateral contacts rather than relying
solely on self-reporting by the juvenile and family.

Overall Observations

There were 59 Risk Assessments completed during the fiscal year (July 1,2023, to June
30,2024) using the full YASI assessment tool. Last year there were 70 risk assessments

completed for the year. According to the YASI, 46oh of Watauga youth fell into the
Moderate risk range, which is only slightly higher than the State rate of 4loh.

The overall level of strengths as measured by the YASI showed that youth and families in
Watauga County have fewer strengths than the State average. (71"h of youth served had
High moderrte, High, or Very High strengths compared to 80o/o for the State).

a

a

Page 1 of4

061725  BCC Meeting

39



Specific Domain Observations

In Watauga, only 5% ofjuveniles assessed had previous weapon offenses, compared to
lToh for the State.

While 20%o of juveniles in the state had prior detention admission, the rate for Watauga
was only 7olo.

260/o of luveniles in Watauga have family members who use alcohol/substances
compared to only l3%;o for the state. Similarly, 3lo/o of juveniles in Watauga have family
members who have mental health issues compared to l3o/o for the state.

45V" of juveniles in Watauga have family members with prior criminal history
compared to only 26Yo for the state.

The data shows that compared to the state Watauga schools are twice as likely to file
juvenile reports than the state average (43% to 24%). This is likely due to the fact that
Watauga law enforcement agencies are either not regularly coming into contact with
juveniles or are not filing reports on juveniles so almost all referrals in Watauga come
from schools and SROs.

A staggering number ofjuveniles in Watauga report having no interest in school
activities (54%) compared to the state average (31%).

The influence that negative peer associations have on Watauga juveniles in significantly
higher that the state. (31% to 16%)

In Watauga fewer juveniles are reporting use of alcohol/drugs under the age of 12 (7%)
compared to the state average of llYo.

l0% more juveniles report having mental health problems than the state average. (49ohto
3e%).

The number of juveniles with history of sexual or physical abuse is much higher in
Watauga than the state. (Physical abuse lToh Watauga,9oh state, Sexual abuse 177o
Watauga and6/o state).

Similarly, the Watauga percentage of sexually vulnerable juveniles was higher
(22%) than the state (60/o)

a

a

a

a

a

o

a

a

a

a

PART II. Summary of Community Resources

See attached Continuum of Services

Page 2 of 4

061725  BCC Meeting

40



PART III. Summary of Gaps and Barriers in the Continuum of Services

School-based therapy (SBT) is now offered by High Country Community Health for elementary,
middle, and high school students.

Watauga County Schools has also implemented a mental health services program embedded
within the school system in part to replace the Assessment Support Counseling Center.

Community Day Programming: FOCUS closed both the middle school day treatment program
and the elementary day treatment program. This remains a need in the community.

Transportation in the County is still a need for accessing resources. Many students would like to
join pro-social activities but live far out in the county and have no way to access.

Undocumented youth and families lack access to State-funded mental health or substance abuse

treatment, and good alternatives are limited. Further, language is seen as a barrier to using
resources to the Hispanic population. Additional Spanish language resources are needed,
including support groups for Hispanic parents and children. There has been improvement in this
area, but there is still a gap.

Enhanced mental health services are not available to youth who lack either Medicaid or Health
Choice coverage or are undocumented. AMI Kids has expanded their Functional Family Therapy
to also serve Youth who are on a diversion contract. Previously they only served adjudicated
youth.

A resource to help divorced or separated parents with co-parenting is a need. Improved access to
in-home services may help. Some options are available through the mediation program (MRJC),
but there is no funding for family mediation.

Vaping is prevalent at the high school and seen as a problem. Watauga County Schools has a
prevention counselor to address this need, though this resource could be expanded, as well.

Daymark has a 5-session substance abuse treatment program that Watauga High School uses

frequently but there remains an extreme need for a higher level of substance use treatment for
juveniles.

PART IV. Proposed Priority Services for Funding

The Committee compared the services needed to address the elevated Juvenile Risk Factors and
Juvenile Needs with the services currently available in the community. Services which are

currently available in the community and sufficiently meet the needs of court-involved youth (or
those youth at risk for court involvement) are not considered a priority for JCPC funding.

Page 3 of4

061725  BCC Meeting

41



The JCPC proposes that the following services be approved as funding priorities for FY
2025 -20262

o Parent/Caregiver Education, Skill Building, and Support
o Interpersonal Skill Building and an Interpersonal Skills
o Experiential Skills
o Mediation
o Teen Court/Restorative Justice (Sentencing Circles)
o Community Service/Restitution
o Vocational Skills
o Substance Use Prevention
o Tutoring and Academic Enhancement
o Mentoring

Page 4 of 4

061725  BCC Meeting

42



lr
l

ll lllllr ,ll

I

A

h

h
VA M

la

hT
hn

I I
V,
v)
V)

a
v)
vl

v)

f) IH

n

fr

il

VI

H
v)

n
Yt

vl
r.l

u

n

u
vl

vt

u
u ffi

u

n

H

o

o
o
E

oc

o
o
o
Gtn
!o
s
t
E
(5

o

o
o
o.

J

I

o6

5
o

)E

E>

o

gE
E=aa
i>
g
c

o;
EE
:
o

ooi!Je
ioco
ao

E
g

I
c

ft
P '.t'E.0

6ts-o.E6P
EEJ
Er!
6CC

E-$piog.E i 6
E.E € FJ

=EeggBegEgEd
9 E E ii Pt:wo:fAE

=tfrE$g$

E
EI
o
eoE
u-l

co
E€oa
oo

oc
IE
o
E.
TD

5
Cp
6o
doooe .9

tEq a
9.s.E EO<S o

Tt*eEzEzsiP
5sl8qE

o
c(,o

E
d
o-

(D
.g
E
E
EIo
EIEo
o
o-

qo,
e(,
s
=o

z
,
CDE
E
E
6I
o-

o,ooa
6n
3oo

U'

()
Fot,

()
o
.E
(L

o

6
E
o
oo.E
o
@.o
ooot
o
E
6o

oo.E
o

(r>

a)
Eo-
c
o
'6
c
rO

E

Zo
Eooog
6

=Eoo.9>-9
E oo
9.Y o
9-t- a

f;=s

E
f
o

OEco
B6CE

8goP
8:EO
Ooooro
Ebo6'5<
o=€6oodlI

o
E
{,E

.s
oE

o

C
o
o
IL
qo
=o

(9

o
E()E
F
Eo
G
E
o(Il
6o
Eo
E
6
F(Il
o

oo
C
.g

=<$$
P;
gE
JP
P6
EB
-o
oloo
e?<6
grE
FOg6
oxfo
@U)

ooo.E
o(h

6g
.o
do
5
E
{)
6Eo
o

o
G(,
o
E.o
G
E
ot

ooc
.a

E
eo
C'

acI

o
C'

.U
(,
o

oo(,
too
o
E

tr
oo

=oo

o
o
(o

.U

o
oo
o
o
!
o
(!

o
o
o

o

9

I:
6

fil\

a
E
E

5:
o!tr;

o3ao

a3

p6
gg

6-e

;sp
s!E
8o o
d

Ii
e

;c
$.E

-t3t
;!=-6P

F

tI
G

061725  BCC Meeting

43



V a

061725  BCC Meeting

44



WATAUGA County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council
Re uest for P osals

139,176 30% February 5,2025
Anticipated AnnualAllocation Required Local Match Rate Date Advertised

The Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) has studied the risk factors and needs of Juvenile Court involved youth in
Watauga County and hereby publishes a Request for Proposals. The JCPC anticipates funds from the NC Dept. of Public
Safety Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention in the amount stated above to fund the program types specified below.
Such programs will serve delinquent and at-risk youth for the state fiscal year 2025-2026 beginning on, or after, July 1,2025.
The use of these funds requires a local match in the amount specified above.

Based on identified needed programs and possible gaps in the service continuum, the following checked program
types will be considered for funding:

I Mentoring Services X Restitution/CommunityService l__l Services Addressing Problem
Sexual Behavior

[] ParenUFamily Skill Building X Teen Court - including
Sentencing and Responsive Circles

[_l Group Home

[] lnterpersonal Skill Building ! PsychologicalAssessments I Temporary Shelter Care

I VocationalSkills Ll Family Counseling l_l Runaway Shelter Care

[] ExperientialSkills Ll Home Based Family Counseling [_J Specialized Foster Care

I Tutoring/Academic Enhancement E lndividual/Group/Mixed
Counseling

! Temporary Foster Care

X Mediation/Conflict Resolution -
including Truancy Mediation,
Victim-Youth and Family Group
Conferencino, Responsive Circles

X Substance Abuse Counseling E Juvenile Structured Day

Proposed program services should target the following risk factors for delinquency or repeat delinquency:
Services for low and moderate risk vouth and vouth with moderate and hiqh needs: see domain concerns listed below

Proposed services should address the following concerns as reported in the Youth Assessment Screening
lnstrument (YAS) for adjudicated youth:
1. Peer Domain. association with negative/delinquent peers, threats/bullying
2. lndividual Domain: substance use, history of physical/sexual abuse/victimization, lack of adaptive skills
3. Family Domain: substance use/abuse, mental health needs, inadequate supervision and parenUguardian skills
4. School Domain: school behavior problems, conflicts, bullyinq

Applicants are being sought that are able to address items below:
1. Program services compatible with research that are shown to be effective with juvenile offenders.
2. Program services are outcome-based.
3. The program has an evaluation component.
4. Program services detect gang participation and divert individuals from gang participation.
5. Awareness of and sensitivity to Racial Ethnic Disparity that exists in the County.
6. Proqrams are encouraqed to provide effective proqramming that includes restorative iustice practices

Only local public agencies,501(c)(3) non-profit corporations and local housing authorities can apply forfunding.

ln order to apply for FY 2025-2026 JCPC funding, you must complete and submit your application online by accessing NC
ALLIES. Please read and follow all instructions at. https://cp.ncdiidp.orq/CP. Additional self-help videos on the NC ALLIES
webpage are available by clicking on the HELP tab. Private non-profits are also required to submit, by uploading in NC
ALLIES, the following: 1) No Over Due Tax form, 2) DPS Conflict of lnterest Statement, 3) Agency Conflict of lnterest Policy,
and 4) Proof of 501(c)(3) status. (#1 &#2 are available at the above link.)

Austin Gombs 828-264-8759
JCPC Chairperson / Designee

The deadline for receiving
applications is: March 7,2025 at 5:00 pm

Telephone #

Email 1 electronic copy to:
beckv. bal lew@watgov.orq

For fufther information or technicalassrsfance in applying for JCPC funds in Madison County, contact DPS Area Consultant
Melissa Johnson at 828-808-3019,828-773-1550 or melissa.q.iohnson@ncdps.qov.

061725  BCC Meeting

45



The Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) has studied the risk factors and needs
of Juvenile Court involved youth in this county and hereby publishes a Request for
Proposals. The JCPC anticipates funds from the NC Department of Public Safety,
Division of Adult Correction and Juvenile Justice, Juvenile Community Programs section
in the amount of $139, 176 to fund programs to serve delinquent and at-risk youth for the
state fiscal year 2025-2026 beginning on, or after, July 1 ,2025. The use of these
funds requires a local match of 30%. Please see the Watauga County website at
www.watauqacountv.org for further details on the application process. Deadline for
applications is March 7th,2025 at 5:00pm.

061725  BCC Meeting

46



V a

061725  BCC Meeting

47



gr

(D

o
orl
o
,v
r't
o
o
F}

o

a

E

o
0q
lt
(D
(,)

0

(o

O

DT
T

ts
€.
(D
()

o

o
oao

2<<o
,-1 I2*

(D
(h

Ho
(D

oo
(D
,+

CA
o
o
()

oc
o
Eo
o
v)

-
o

o
7
o
a-

o

r!

,ert

u)

E

tD

,q

(D
t?
a

Ft

T
N)
I

(D

E
El

r
oc

'd
to
(D
a-
o't\

!D

g

x
I

(D
A)+
'rl

a.

oa

t

(Da
o't
al

N)

N)
o,

l-lE rw ffiE f
- 

5 lz-)l E.E tr =-{E < i';aa39 d Q' i+-PE

a ui 81tr3
a>= s5t.lH aJ O+Paix ouq E l< E
+ o Y =Hi '
='9;). 

!l-:pE

= 
o = !2 ^o 5

E E < its=3e 6lV :?ifr
- = 

4 o 'tE
3 i P EtriE
? b 

= 
6H5 i: gE leq=-

= g * Ph-qtr?El €r!s
: Ua i6 s E
a r* Es_E:
3 e= i*EI
#3LJ 

=E|65 o 
^ ^9-:"84 S9:*O o BP -r.axil 3 s5; H

^oi==C+?H iSFn:;=E iE7=o-I - !E ii0ap i P P == oo H d +=.=.orsg *rdah A- cd u :.!16 d ? q 5il
Zed * oq5

=aa \ trE
*E F fi H+
a -' 

= 
q 

=^gM; ! .?U
--'lZJo * a t

3FE I #E
=rE s 3?'' 3 F p Rd
o31 < >e+ e !' i 2aAq<-a--3a 3 3H
-1tr==3rZ

d x d = -=# ! q * E=2 9.9 iD (,5
i,r.!Evmd=E 3 SP
N 

-< 
= ='P:llE: 2 d"*

af-r'-a
d=F=

=gst-{P. 3 2 = ?6o a =. E o:f
3 rc - ^,Y'r P 5 : 3-
E 0a A X 5!ql! E E+

o F s 
^m! P 6 oBA +-

=. o J 
-=9 S sll

tr -C)a ,0F!
5

tr
N)

(D

I

L)

0a
!D'd
to
@
a.
o'-
rai

!0

a.

x
I

o
s)t
E

o.

0q
ID

to
(Dr
o'n
E]

L.J

l.J
6

n3x 
=E€g{E < AilAg9 d e x-P9

- i i 
-=v'"

E xg ptnl
a>=u5'r.i
H 3d €rc?s
+ o Y =H= 'c'a ). o -N E
i ai Y =.=:aE
= 

a 
=' :l ^o =# E < its=3a d lYl :- e'EE

+ j c @ (rE

7 i p HtriE
A b 

= 
5H5:

: g E igct
X = d -al-

=86- TSoDLl
+E'1 €t!g
: Ua iLi s I
a af xqE:e ++ 9oEX
+ * I g€ H -
o o 

^ ^3-€@; I FX*o; s5^vo o +p L/dXI F i€;3
^ 

o i' 
= =EY3H iEFr1;X i"Ee=

o-!?. !'oFm
o { d +=.=.-
TSg F=5'o
d ;; d U 

=.!aEBA]=H
Poo{'uv:iscaGtU'T \ trE

f al t E+8Tt; ! .zE
--'l-Jo "X a !
^.Pot-,;.2
oH5 :. :.)
^. 

O E 
= 

:.Hi r 6- I edq;"4 i *i
= !L < - oHlis = 4>,
- = 3 d =o,

= 
@ 

-=o p?Ys.+ X o=.t 9 = o cD3

'oi I 6 tsPInE: =z,E{
h->3 5 ,r=:: *F = i.€

a.fi: r .€
5--o5v-h m - ^.Y'
O g o i- ir

;+m d S =s;EX E E+
o o :l e dm
*EB H gA
s g g sE

=. 
PP

0q3o

tr
N)
I

o
I
tsi

g

oq
!Drd
Bo
(D
a.
+o'it
rl

a.

o

x
(D
A)I

g

Oa
ID
'drd
a
(D
a.
o'I

NJ

N)

EtrE x EH€ q

a5E F as3=
=d-@.lit; xB 6ir3d >tr ,o5,,.r.1

E Bd €:o?g
+ 6 Y =Hi '

= 
3, ). !l-:$E: o X = 5:aE

=. 
b ': SJ ^o =E E'1 its=3i Ix .;."37T D* n Krr==

1E€ [953
X = d -al-;'$ 6- PSoqLl
e5+ €H!3
? tra i E E aE > B q9 -.5 

='

B fr.= Hasx
FffiL-J lEo
d h n ^9.€"31 S9:*O o BP !,.ilS7+ a! G -!l NlZJp:' ]€;;
^ o i X =E+=t €Ystti3x $"g?"
a Y - !!Foa: + < s-E.=.8
+gg *=Aoii :i., U =.!1-dYJq=N

a-EU * .'a5
g + - 6 

-='iZn \ LloiIIf .q a=1se'E E+
9x3 E :E
E ad * ils

A - (l
= o E Y :-#3 F p edoEl < ieFEi + fri
>is= 

= 
g3

= 
3 g i =o'6 = @ -:€ I q * HE3 6'=' I ;-

- !.= E vm
o 

= 
o = ai'tr

E ni: =z 
"E{? 

-o 
- = 5

a5A * !-d
agg ? s€
< ? <. E :oX
^ 

-_ o 5 v--

5ryO:l-

=.d 7 S 
=€3Ex { Hi

'a a !E P 'dmEEB H q5
H F 9 :HE 5 d gU

^A
H =. 4Y

5

tr
NJ

(D
A)n\
a

0a
o)16

a
(D
g

B
I]

o)

Q"

-

x
I

(D

-
L)

g

oa

'd,6
Io
(D
a.
o'

L)

N)

h.)

l-lE rw tr:IF
-:"'?tr=i.{E < A's4=I d I ;+33.i

e xg plrS
d>= u5't.i
H Bd €:o?g
+ o Y =Hi 

I

= 
?, ). E-:eE

=. 
q 

= :l ^o =E E < its=3B A lV \?ifr
F 

= 
c O rlE

7 P P EtriE
q o = dH=,.i!! oi or-=:i.P [ 3?en_
-:.9 f =[6tr?=1 €suE
?tra iEEa* P E E 3E =" 

= 
o g;=E

P :f 5 5 ae P*fil s€d-g 3 o ce.!.'k a sg=*O o BP'^r.i

X[ 3 :€; B

= t = * I E',tr

-A-L-l 19z5
o-g - lro :-oa
o i d *=-=.or s + *.;50- ?i a i; =.3s O Yl a =N=^rd * oc',

=EI s" nE
sEi fi H+o -' 

= \ =^iNA E :EE.Pr' S;€
ETE S 3Q
=4'_- 

P 8-?;4 i 11
+=: = sH
@ X 3. = o^

5!c * €9E E e' I ;='
. !.: E vm

5;E 8 EP
_. ='o>r9"'*x 3R" zr :.€

[fi= ? d€v'1 h 
= H o:f,

Em+
vEO:=r
q2 @ -a * =ii.i:rw i r3g a.rd E. 5=
- o f E drc
3E P E oiN D -', h +-ai3_ r 5Etr -O

=- Ne
5

a
(D

(D
f)

t

(D

Fl

ll
[.J
I

G
D'Fl
l+)

0q

rt
o
o

(o

Ft

OQ

o
(D
.)

te

E
NJ
Lal
I

N)o\

U
(D

o
ts

o
(D
a.

Lfr
oo
N)
Lal

z
o
3
do
F.l

_N
N)

N)

061725  BCC Meeting

48



Cr

o

(D

ort
o
rt
o
o

o

o

o
a1

a
o0
l-l
(D
(,)
(,

0
O

!,Fl

"E Ya,
":(Dp
S 6-r.5E E
?H B
E'=ui
' OoH.
L ;'.
tDrd

89

n
N)

o
t\
g

0a

,d
Bo
(D
o.
o'

L)

g

!
(D
FD6

r
oa
o)

t4a
(D

4
4

l-19 n ffiE F
-A 

t-) ryrE E n-
€E < idqg
P d E #:&"=

a Ll9 p 3nle>=ci.r.l
)f aJ OHP6

+ o Y =+- 'l'a J. s -ai E

= 
@ =. I ^o I

E E'< its=35 a Tl ;.e,!6
+ J lJ o I,D

* ? r AtrFE
6 H-= H'piEI C g 333r-
- S a PSoolJ
; 

=. 
< ,9 e Ll-:

=.d=-iJE

: LIE ie c r
f; kX HqE:
I + 5 

=i eE Pd g r-1 d;'B -
=att39aNO-dO
<:l @ a ^3.€'E I E6'3SfavO o BID'-rrini 3 ii; H
A o =. X 

=C+5t CYpll
aO-Ao'=H';L-.1 )s?=

!l - lE:.0a) P : =X O

6' dj ,; 
=.2^dflq=sY- 6 ]. 0a!

=Ea9!*'rEi \ trE
3: S 

^r<fi = t E+
t--1 d \ .?5Llo "S : 

=&8 * ?<
6E::+
E !:. P 8du = = >ea -h a 9a
l.=.=avE 3 = 3},
- 5 $ -g

: A E P9
a I ai rr=
!.: !

; e 5 eP
LJF: : E;5'5 !, :tFf F 

==gsi-si
E = = 3E

m + ^:'B O =r
m 6 X 3!i
Qr--'l " ;9it_J H 3io :l E .ioa€ P B oBo 5-
I = s'J

tr ^.)
= 

*Yi
5

I
(D
lots
t]

g

0e
o)
'd
'd

o
o-
a'
I
!

a.

-

tr
I

(D
A)ts

g

0a
o)
'd'dIo
@
a-
o'E
E

l-lE n trEE F
-i 

LJ '.i5 tr 
=_

sE s E.nBE
E : o o i q=

d Lr= E 1tr3
Q >= a5'n.l
H 3oi €!tg; a E E'+9 -
C A :. S -N E

= 
a 

=. 9 ^o =5 o cC -41q4m p P (ra\='
5 d l-1 :_ e'!6
- )4 O rlE
T P- n Xn;:,oa \' ;U=E
E HE Frii
{ I B a9 o D;

X 
= 

d Ja:-

= s a- PgrcLl?=1 €euYti < j D o =3:lld lsnE
* k q €38:.
2 i5 HeeB
* H u 9€ 8 -
'6 a 

^ ^3.€o;9 E:+o - :=^*

-F & B'={$
l.-l=o,:*ad
^ 

o =. 3 =E;3c- igEu* f E i"q?=st - : |5 =mI a {9.=.o
a'd u :.!?

^a-9) a f i!
ieU * ooSeaa \ trE

H f $ osi! i R E=-, = * =^N3 E :E
Pa i d<
aE:i*
E g "e 8du = { >e6l' a 2aI < - i!-

=.5 3 AY
= o 3 aq

'a D -:a
= 

a :=: s * +<;
a 2 ir rr3
=E 

g Yoaa E 5' g3
._< = ='PllE. 2 d"-
{ X ; ol:, - a+T d 

=5fis i B'go < = .oe

m l1 ' ^y
PO:=r Y F.Am a ;< =!E rr < -Z1L_J q 8=
- F N drc

E 6 8 BOF q -X
F ad
6'

n
t>)
I

@
to
I
q

o
='0a

rd
rd
H

@
o-
a
4

g

F

n
I

(D
o)I
4
o-

oa

'd

=
(D

o't
t)

l-lE n !:E 3
-:" ?@==.<E < h"ss=
P d I ;+=3.P

Eug uFr:
d>=c5"r.l
X Rd €:u?g
; a E Elj.lg r
c a ). o '6 ts

= 3I i59e'
# E < i6=3
= B I--l :a,id
d ? U A lrs

# !. p Htr=E
6 HE #ryiIf o Y ao h.:l. E y -.< i =X = 6 "oJ-
= B 6- PgmlJp I !. € e Ll=
P < 3 E. =5?tra iEsE
x aE xaE:
2 += 9eEH
+ !a tr 9€ I -
d o 

^ ^9-€"31 S91*
^ 

a hs \r;tr[ F S;; H

===a:sll'FLI ls?=9 - YE:ioo

^8ff B 
=34=i, I oq5qE'n s" trG

=: : l-J<I = H E+
trE E :E
P o :- ,,:,.2

o ! : :.+
3 ii -3 qd
3 

= < >ea -b a sa
?<-oF
!.=.=avHr ; 3a
R q 

-=:s. 9 P,Z'g-=' I ;='
!.= !
a q 5' *.3nE i ,Fi-='>' 5 ? 

=A3 R" 6' 
=.taaxba

fr= 3 $E
m + ^Y'P O ;- =rOa 6 X 3E
Y I I < a4
HL_r e 8+
o E P nioa
E E i e,63. O ' -!

-4 frpo"'3

tr
NJ
I

@

o-

0e
A)

t

o
o-
o'I
EIl

!0

o-

o

x
I

.D
e0

E1

o-

oa

t

o
o-
o'
I
!l
N)

tJ

EI-lQ rv trEE fe-:' r ztr*?.
*5; 6 gsaa
! = i A 

-3vru
= 

-- 
= 

q

5a uE' EftrlE.d > 5 r 5 ti
HX 3d €r?d
3 P n E. F{iH l

=. 
a 

= 
Y ao I

5 E.Z 'Pqc.

a d lVl :_e,!fi
- = 

G o (rE
I !r o 3-rt
", o o =.uo:!2 o = 6+r -i3 8i 8_i==i.EE-<==

I s- f' 
= 
iltrtlj =- 4 ,3 e LJ-'r

5 W 4 = ^ -=?li =.EEf
$ r.$ Ea€._:
o a:i o^=H

=*n 1€d-
d h   ^9.€'E a SA=-

- A N S !, 
^Xil * i:-3 H

OP 6 6-.E
= = a I g sFr
6o_ale=rJIFL-i }q?=o- Sl . : ! Xm
6- s a \P.=.5
B :r g' *.= dp.a ; ci ; :.!?

AZe' S, ""d-
iE'E R. trEFIf $ a=.dxt.qsk=
a w' 3 { 

=^ET-.]d ^\ .?u
:'L-Jo * a E

e*! S ,i<

figE -s iE
f ;7. i rn;.ar

x.H3 = 3A
@ = H * =o'e:si x €g
d 3._E € cR
n 7 9 5 {P
=._< = =',a'l 13. & 3uj 

-O 
- = 5

- D: f! :HA$f n'3:-qfis i sE
= o < - .o I9 a = H o:11
!1 m )-l ' ^.?6B O ;- Jr
4 0a ; \ 5!i

FCI r r-a;E: ri E'6niE B H 9,5
A = 9 ; -X
R- E H,'

6',

z
(D
5
;J

otst

N)

NJ

N)O

061725  BCC Meeting

49



er

tD

(D

ort
(D

H
rt
o
(D

o

o

E'

oq

voo
ra

O
(n

D)F!

tr
N)
I

@

5
o.

Oa
A1

'd
Bo
@o
i
B

g

tr
I

@

t
I
o-

oa

rd
to
o
o.

+\

I-.lE n tr:Er
-3 

L-J +.8 tr =-€E < FAEs9; a X-RE

E L.IE' E itr3
QP='E='rl+B *.d I'EPc
* o Y 

=H- 'E A !. N -O ts
5 ? O j='d;'

= 
o 

= Sl ^o == r < "r':?=am o !9 (J-='
* X l---l ?aftE
- 

a lJ O rls*in Hr=c
H E: Frii< 

= N *y 9 D

X = 6 -a=-; $ 6- PgoaLJ:l={ Sell"ri € =- E i =E# -x 3 E ; I
{ LJiri >g I a
X PP Yi;.8=
3 a',i HE=a
=3lJ =8"- @ n ^9.€"31 S3=-O O BD ^r.itrI F i€ H BAo=R=tr5+H isFr9 =- ='o-Ll 19z=

9 * !-d:ioa
H a *=.=.o

:;. @ c; =.!1
Y;^ -a :a Oa5

e E' a tS- tr,=
= = s Ar<
!! = ii iD=
t--1d \ ., 5LJs € ;5k8' S A<
A E Y :-+3 tr p Rdg 

= = ie
!.1, 

=. 
t,=

a<-o-
=.==@vE s = =6
7 a 

=::s 9 H,Z
a 2 ai u7=

= 
o ;' p'E

._< = =.PI lE: 2 d"-
p'5 t" 3;
A R' 6' 

=.€a o !) 11
8e 1 sP
b ) + ox

m - ^.v'E 6' = f -oi ; S F€
Etr E Ei
o iE P doq
E B H gA
=. o -=o _< 5(J
= P- --trtr -O3 fra

5

T
N)
I

o
o)

a.

0a
co.6

Io
(D
o.
6',t
H

Q.

l,

tr
I

(D

I

a.

oa
!)fd
rt
o
(D
A
o't
'rl

trEn 
=E€g5E s AAB:

3l-' N N t

a Llg p lnid>= s5nr.i
s *E €.Ea q
E A J. o -o ts

= H 9 F5 9c-
= 

a 
= !/ ao =E E'< ;tsH3

6 d l-l :.!"F6
+ i lJ O rr!!

* ? I EtriE
q 6 = -H=.i!l a i o --=.;J.P E ??9C
X = d rar-
; S 5- PgoaLJ
3e=1 €!HT

36'd: ua i6I &
x xE saE:
2 += S+Eil
* H tr g€ E 

-
g I o c?.3.'k a s=1*o o $N'-,.dl-l+ :i s -9 p
Ua - -'; a a

3 + I I I STt
U=-X'='n-Ll 19z=!z - :! =m; d \=.=.o

6-.d ,; 
=.9ddY!o5NY- 6 :. oa?

=E@9:t'{ai \ EE

fi a "3 E+
r-rd \ sE
t-Jo *: ^ =
P o :- ,;.:

o E Y >.H3 F I ed
;"4 = XZ
s3 = 3U,
o l. = :.!=
- 5 N -:13a e A9
a 9 6 a=
rf g :oq
; E 6' qj:r
nE: i ;f
>5 !D :d
3h z; 

=.<=a=-oXo.io=6 : = 3Eq 
=' E o\f

m14'^:a
ryo3<J - Y ;.Ooa A :Y PrI! r-l < -?HLI B. 93.o I E aimEi\x [; q Elo
=. o :: 

-=9 S sll
c aO
3 N-a
5

T
t\)
(D
o)

rl
o-

oa
D]

H

(D
g

rt
L)

o.

o

tr
I

o

E1

g
0c

E:
(D
a-

I
E]

l-lE n tr:E 3
-J 

t-J z16 tr 
=-<E z Fag=o x h' x-P11

::l f, *5v"

;ug ulnS
rd > + .o 5 tr.i
H &oi €'E?g;6 E E!.1.19 rE'A ). S -p c5?o3=---
* o =. !? ^o 5
= =.1 "6!*A-rc s t! (J^='
R ai I I ^ Y,'Em
:aLJ b' oe
F I I Hn==
6 H; s'ryil3.8 B_ ??eg
lSf Pf'6!i = { ,9 e Llr
= 

s + E i =5?tra ="EgA
fi P{ 83.83
P T5 IgPH
* H tr 9€ 8 --aa S==-o o Bp'-r.il---'t+ ::D a -!2 Dr=t*l: ;gE;
:1 0 !! i ='=-T=:1 *EEL-l*;E i*E=9 . ! ! iim

-i o +=.=.o

a- o U =.?^o-!4aJis4=U, * *a
o - - G 

-='- a Q \ Llril
5 E ! ,o{
(! 

= ii s=
r-rd \ ,rELJo € : s

&8 $ #K
o ! < :.H
!4 

= 
3 o/<u:=."o'rI = { >e6 r' A zaa1 -o-

=.i.5av+o)h4

o l. = :l-

:s x €3
9.9 <i a=
!.: E
; E 5 d.FnJ. = =r'
-O 

i =.=>= fD :i
+of d 

=5gs e B{o < = .oe

m - ^Y'E 5 = =-P r Y r,Aoa a X F!EI E E+
o :I P doa
E B H qA
3. o -=O < ! (l
)avu

i ^A

3' ?d4

T
N)
I

@

,i

a.

oa
D)

'd
t

(Dp.
+o'rt
\

g

o

tr
I

(D

,')

g

0a

,d
to
og*o'
I
E

r--lR 
- 

r-rE E riLJi Ll 
=€€ 

3.<E = >439
P-6 B. *1Ei
---+=XO'
A UE 81tr3a>='o5t.l
H SE €H3E+ o Y a*- 'C'A ). N 'N E

= 
6 Y !.= 

=E
= 

@ 
=' S2 ^o =3 -.? 

JPLO-
oq 6 !! O-i ='d d l-l 3"!fi
- = 

lJ ib rlE
T c a 3n=t
? b = d-5 -li gE +gAi
=S6- 3grcLJ
!r = { S pl-l-:
5 € =' :: -=
a I lr 

= 
i; ^ *

? I lA - ?! X X

6 ;g 63E ro + A C'-3cI :i r 3 ap H

=,ft19€H-- @ 
^ ^!?.€dEd N=+G - 

==^---9, I S!rUg
LllL;' l€ d;
noiXXg

tB-* t"=BU- FLI ls?=g - !-diim1 P ! == OH o \=.=.o

iil a U =.!1Hf H * 6X
o - - 6 

-=''ai \ LJd
= = ! iJ<
8 i R S+

a 
=^r--'r; \ ,, E

L-lo 'S : c

a8 S ?<
oi ! ! :.';E€. P 8-u = = >e
A "@ E 2'da1 -h-
=i.-ihVs3 = 3A
= n. = o^

o -g

: e. I H;
a 2 <i a3
!.= E vm

; E 6' ep........-< = =,llE: \ d:
-O 

- -.5>= r! :*+'f s 3::fis 3 -€8= E-S3rc Y - -9
Y r.aoa a s :1E

Ell s 3e
6 r s ;rc
E H i s53. @ ; *=9 S sLJr=v9

- 4t
5

z
(D

oE
N)

tJ
N)

061725  BCC Meeting

50



e-r

G

(D

ort
(D

H
Fl
o
o

o

o
,L)

oq

-
tDo
0
o
0
a

le
-

T
NJ
I

@
o)

,i

a-

oa
A)r3
{o
(D
o.

l.t
ts!

g

o

T
I

(!
B
Frl

a-

oq
TD

TJio
+o
(D
o.
o't
,l)

n3l EH€ q<E o hagq
P=6 F BTE.9
d+a-=
-. 

-+ 

q; O'

E U=- E TtrI,a > = 
-o 5 ":.iH 3d €E?s

;6 E giti= a

=' 
9, ). !l --. !!. Ei ai : !.=:4tr

=. 
a = Sl ^o == r q -t:?qQ.G D P (J-='

^ 
5 T--l "'.,rc#,

+ i U o rrB
# i I Hr=e
? o 5 dHr 

^:l o i a ; ='>{ 9 B o9 o S

*:.9 F iffEn
P 

= 
S. o? e LIP

= 
(Z 

= II ^ -E*'"....-=a-d: L-la ;E E 3.q > !! q! 
=! =o o = di eL=-

2 +i Sse'Ep ,l l-] 6-qA1
FSLJ 

=EO5 @ n ^2.2
o - ]5^*O o BD'-r.atr[ * s€; H

^ o :i. X = tr!1 o g .: ='=-
==+ tSelt'a-Ll l9z3s? - lE=m

I d +=.=.o

;'d u =.er^6-!?o=biiEU, * oa=qaa a. trE
O=-Xd-o f -i. 

=^r--'rd \ .9 5
Llo € : tr

>o:.:.2

O E Y :.H3;i I ndg 
=' = >e

6 j' = e-aa1 -o-
=;.ihv; o = a4E F = 3a
='=. = o^
X o J =:1r
* a 

-:I q 9 H;
9.9 ii @;r
!.: E vm

;E B EP
-a 

= ='PL-IE: Z E!p5 i, :;
R R" 6' 

=.{.axhAeZ = =!s; E si
v^: !.
EO=r

oq ts >e ='f'!?r---'l < -HtLr E 8=
d E E ad6
B a 3 yno
=. 

@ _=

s ^.)-. 'P ll
5

tr
l.)
I

(D

'11

a.

oa

t

(D
g

a'
I

L)

a.

U

tr
I

o

41

0a
ED

4

@

4\

l-lE n tr:E f
-3 

U ry.E c =-{E < FdAg
3 d E #:&1
E lll sTnl
a>=s5tr.l
H &oi €=?s
+ o Y 

=HI 'd'h ). N -d H

= 
a * 9 ao I

5 E < 'PqAuq p t! C)-='5 a n :_e,!E
r I U O rlE

# P p 4nr=
q EE E'ry+I
:. tr :a -.i i 

=.X t d J o:J-
- 3 6- TgoqlJ

";-=. €eu=
?trE ="EqE
f; kx HaE:
F? * 5 :i dN D
S d r- 463^2
;'r LJ 

=E 
i6

6 @ 
^ ^9.:- a i s i=_O o +N'-r,i

!+ d ;€ U;() ! a G 
=-=+ I = ^ s Htr* FE i"s7=

I * S!:ioa
H d *=.=.6
Oosita
6'f,i U 

=.91^b-9 O =i$ied * oa5Eal \ trE
B i- $ o<AJ S E+
tr3 E *E
f A = a<
eE a _<';
u g P 8d
Yio = BH
q1
=.=5ov
= s = =q

^ 
@ 

==: s 9 tsZ
Q'=' 8 ;=u.s E vm
; q 6 d.3._< = =-PU= Z E;
x 5 a a3

3 R. 6- 
=.<:gi - rIA i i =5@ 

=' E o\f,
md
E O 3ro?; S 

=€! l-1 < -Y
:1 L--J q 5i'
o !l P doa€ P B oe6 r-
= , - 5 !r gri

s aO
b. FP
5

f
N)
I

@

E
E
g

oq

I

(D

o't
rl

o.

6

-p
@

E

0a

!

-

-tJ=

q!

a

3-
^l

oa

{<
=(D=g

=4.
'! rrc

e'6
nUO

a(D
a-

S. EJ

=J0a\

3o

@

o

o

oa

o
o

a-

,d
ID

@

o

@

@p-

tr
11p

p
d
o
(l

o
E

oa

E

o
@

{
o

?

o

oe

tr

ao

oo

o

o

o
(A

:
0a

3

{a

;oo
o
o

5

P

trEn trE
rm

{ a < E'g
O * @ *q

EllP o?*
6 U= O "
d >= *5
X Eoa E:oa t1l

=a-::l^
= x V )P
oa 5 - po6dt-t L"
+=lJ@f =a Htrq o a dHEOI@--.l o ::i ao
X = - 

ro

= & ?t Pg
C'==. qS5

=< 
+ pa

;r--'l- Zg
< I lg -da>E 64.o a: dieL
o t li @^< A= 3=
=.9I I qE
o o 'J =od @ 

^ ^2.6'Epl F=o - s5o o +P
-+ 

5L--ls:' lSa8 d Ei
a O 

- 

Ai'5Ll ]:
o E \i

^Es i9;R :
=daBo+r6r;njs

59 J
uo$
rrE ij
Llo S
Pa:-qos

@p:r-o='
a)€

d,=
b-

=9_4.

Nao :
=9, X
aaX

Ic='

T-1 ; 6
l-J d ?.
>5 9!aoo
or-G
ox
L1 ==o<:i@65
md
BOi-d; src-
3LI E

EE ;g.oj

e6.
o
5

zo
o

(D
ts.t

N)

N)

t!

061725  BCC Meeting

51



gr

o

o
on
I

tD
FU

-o
o
a|

o

a
al

oe
I

tDa
o

(a

O

!)rt

z

(D

-
o
a

q

3o

p.

@

tso

o
0a

z
o
3

o
{
a
o
o

P
o
a-
o

5o -
o

o.
0a

A)o
o
o

op
o
o

ooo
p
5

{
o

o

o

@

o{oa

o

o
o

-sq
c'
o-

0q

A)

o-
G

o
r5

.?
@oo

{o

g

6
o
ao

Ioo

r
o
o

o

Io

5o

o

Eoo

o-
oa

z
o
3

-o
{
a
o
os
o

o
o
o
o

c,'
ao
o

o
5
@

o

o

-
@

s
Eo

5

o

Eoo

a
oa

zo
oo

5
o

o
o
o

aoa
o

o -p

:n
a

cra

o-o
a
o

o
o
a

ooa

o

C

o

oo

{oo

o

o
o

-p
o
o

o
UA

o)
o

@

o

oo

a

o

t'
o

o

oo

o{o

t-
o
€
s

3o

o

o

3oo
c'
a

oa

o

zo
oo
3

o

=
o
o
o

o
o

5
N

D

o

ooa

o
=

o

z
ao
3E

o
{
o
o
o

-
o

s
.s

o

Eo

o

o

o

o-
oq

o

o

oo

3

o -p
o

0a

o

@

o
o
o

I

o
@

5o
{o

o-

o
o

oo

o

-p
o

0a

IDao
o
o

a

oap
o-
4.

a

o

oo

4,oa

-
o

+

o

a

oo

o
oo

o

2o
o
3E

o
{

o
o

tso

3

@

o

+

g
o

o

o

O

-p
o

Oq

a
o
o

o

oo

5
o.

o

o

o
@

o

-

q
I

3o

p

oo

o

@
@

o
0a

.?

z
o
ts

o

a
op
o

op
o
o

I

5
o
o

o

o

-
o

q

3o

a

o

o
@

o
0q

z
o
ts

o
{

o
o

o

o
o -

o,t

oa

EDa
o
o

G

o
o

+

@o
o-
p

a

o

oo

oa

(J

o

r-
o

P
p.

m

o
@

o

@o

5

o

@

oo

o{oo

-

=

ts
@

p

o

oo

a
oa

o

z

ts

o
{
o
o
a

o
o
oo

@

e'

o

o
o

o

!.
o

?

m
IDo
o
o

oo

5

o

o

oo

{oa

z
o
3

5
o
{
a
o
o

-
o

q

o

=o

oo

o
@

o
oa

.?

5

o
o
@

o

5

=

ao
o

t9

J
@

'N
(!
te
U2

r!

z

o
.D
f)

19

z
o
uor-t
N)

NJ

N)

061725  BCC Meeting

52



vll.

061725  BCC Meeting

53



(p
:1o
(,
ot,

E
o5

;'
.9
t
:,
Ut
oItE
o
(!
o.
rr

1'
o

0a
o
3
3
nr

!rt
o

0qrt
q,

3
m

o
:,
rr
CI

3
o
:I
+.+

!
OJ
5
'tr
m.o

g
!)
o

n
g.

ul
0!
t
c
o

!g
ot,

o
g
t,
!
m
!
t/r6o
(}

;p
t
f

r
g
o

o

t

>

ssEr$i,+OE
IfrnOor(D
5 e3

lD

og
gl

o<
='oE;<o

t
lB

c
HEH
3.8 +8(:.

=Glg

!o
:[
3
$
T
vlo
3.rl
ID

cltr
o
GI
oI

\J
tr

\
UT{ P

Lr)
ts
AJ

Fr{ LN F(} gH
d!

Z
o
:5
o

o i:'oZ-
f. ni :l
3 =.;or 6-6
=o oi E":e!!.< ooi'-
JOE

Z
o
f
tu oBtt :r

t!lo5a.ti?o
5J
i,$

f,ooc
(D

c
I'
a-
AJ

oo
(1
ol

;F
ol:
3o
;i'oa3

0q

r.t*
o
I
$
G
E
vt

*e E I-ia-9.oiliqcrg
-F-:l(D-o=L-6

E ilg f;clDoo-'-.
J1 o=P3.
a;i 6 

=X
E-fr i3 a
l" qr 

=i 
c 3

off)Ri
:0n - \o

$s3Erf9-EP
=d 3o
S,n €5'6g

7t
ID
UtEo,
!^.
ET
TD

!q,

P*3*
8.r8 =
-l-loiOo)O
JOJO
r-rBo9o^O^
3il3il
5' 6- 

=' 
A-

orforJ
6ts 6H

ar,or(D
EAe6-< cl-

:,o
3
0,
x.
1c
3
10
s.)
)
5

a!

g i,E
a-!D o
o569g:p
5'e o

Eniiir:11oyE
tor-

E r*
EEI

YF
f)+ Ao;*b'
i.P G 2
=6<3'Ea(Dc.DrtXrDo<fr=

3H E Ed
='=ts6).Eqa.fg
6 i H -iai5E*'=f grgfirr

s a ifr{F r
ZO:r

'o
o

T'D

IU

3
:t
ol

o
66,3s
a=n€

o
r,J
o,:

oe
tD

J
o
o

'o
o

'Dn
r)u
o,

6-
m
lD

Ol

s
1l
o
i:
o3
OJ

oE
6'
:f
o
c
o
:l
fl'
n
o

o,

o
1.

qa

!
o,

i.
ar

o
13s
o

OE

E'

tr
r
o
:,
a

o
3lc
f
.*-

&)

ro
o,

o, 1,51
aOo$3r.io
o-"(DA
<o6'c
=ohJ:orD:,
ET
:"o6qt4*6'
o;'+;
1-
5fi
3g
il6i
3?
Oo
!n+f-o

o
rc
o;l
e
o

=:r
a.

o

=0a
Or
13.

:
o
:ro
f\

c:
()-

r!o
3
'1}

6
aL
:,
m
n
o
3
3

v
o

no

o

:'
g.

rt
j
o,

o

061725  BCC Meeting

54



!
o
0arl
or

=
ato
3to
Jo3
:t

@

o
uo
1

al

t
o

-
6'
3
!,

Vt
o,
Et
o
o
EL

!
!o

uq-o,
3
m
Jtq,
5
elo
3o
=.+

=o,

=
1'
m!

g8 
==.r.Dd9 n

=':aoo!.< +;q5
F--q:.=
o5J

i.a3e (1, .+

=s5=Q *
El:(
= -roi6=6u=Q.a -er6 EEoioo2c
rDJ=
;oid
Ef;s
aord
adq
=+<=O,JrDan
I lr .l-.1
6:.-.
'< Luo
o Qo
4. crt (^
=E O! eo.-- o)

=ao5
tu\T-r
4o)

o:,c@m-
ocig@
dA

+3
Hg"
J-.

g_a
.< cl-gF'
<8_
3s
q6-
3'g
o)6c'.-or-t=3a
s' cL
4o

5
E

Fola
o
E
oo
r)
(D
5
o

€
(D
q

oa

5c+)
z
o*{o
-

.D

r.)!(.t
('))
g.

Vt
0!
=t)
c
(D

N

!o
!

6t*g
Itt
!
m
!
ln
6
o
o

-
1

6=co.+<ttD
;

flgsE
- - tocr:?^;e. *

tt
oio
6Log
tr,=o.<
f,*

a,

oP HO =or--o--its'' =-d
!t

!

3
!,

vro
s.
f)o

clo
o
UEo

C')\o
Ot
(/l H

@ o N)o
a llto8H
1!

a.FE{t1ooc
3=
g6'
96

si!l o,O=iB
3J
=!9<*

=iq:-#tf1E*3 $+ai
sF$*l5xE

BgiEElEI

6
o
f
lJt
o
E'
vl

t,l
o'
ato
f

o-o
o

-(D
0t,
o
9.
ET
lD
!
!,

e=3
E B.E
6- .P fltt--.,t
o=g!F9-
='= (D
:rlEir3tDo "

:TEO-EreEI
ETEg'g

6

061725  BCC Meeting

55



!
oa
!,
3
6o
3
!,o
=o
=

E
o
tr,
ID
1o
!,
o

o
!il
a
o
ot,t,
o
oo
E

!-o
m-0)
3
m
=
o
J
f}o
3o
J.+
g
0,
J

'o
m
!

0
o)
o

rt!6
.)t
9.
v,
GI

=o,
tr
o

o,
J
0,gl|
o

lJ

€ ='ElEE 6H
5iilz
fld.B.Pu-(D=!.
6 L!.)
='+r = o
d'asiHEqi
- JoD 6
S.oro*
grq i
* +; e
-() !f-oEootD
Q orE'o!g=ooui O-= f
ororfrd
Ulh--

e aE g
o =tD =

e s gi
;=. 1;q,+;s
+JJ.eq=g
E3 d FTil =oooqo,
; nE e
t6lX
Q =gq a
o-h cr'-
E ; 

=#r168
SFg E'6 o, o4.
-=oo,va+-(D -=6-Q(Dc

fii+e+-.o, (D

A< 0-ci

i fH;
["0 s;r" E.d-a

-+-
)J-

PEE:O -560n
o-

5c
d

F
tDla
o
E
oo
r)o
f+o
T
V1c
3
3
o

E
(D
6*oa
f

5c
d
J
z
(D
d{o
a-

!o
!

Al
g
tat
m!
Itt
..i
o
o

1.t,
zlo-rtro*<
=lD;

[gsE
-^Roor::^
;e 3

tt
o?o6'eo3L
(Dr<f*I

rgg
*aF

g

!
=.3!r

vro

cto

6!r
o
0qo

qJ

x
o)
N { o o UI

Un llto8H
1!

n -3 F

af,$:;+st; =Oor9.+3cf-ioaa o-9 :6a

o9It=E'!,O=i8
33
=!P<.-

=- 
+E F 5 H A S E

3 E [ 
=E. 

I T } E H

I 
= 

BA ? $ 
= 

3 3 3xr=oi'=ELeoo"=,ndO61Otlrg:O3n:q=d=t;p
iil*EiHAi-qq
l;'B3ilsXgI; =. = = =m I oa -gEsll:+f+fr-AE? 4 aq3- 

3.

6
o
3
ttt
ot
vt

4
o
0
oa

6-o
=o

-o
Vttt
o5
IA

g
o
!!,

.9g3Gi
E B.E
6- !D flt*-.vtojgr99-
=': tD: EE
ts3G.D"
^aoxt8
=il=,O-EetI
oF=

Hs*
6

061725  BCC Meeting

56



'0
o
@
0.t

3
o
o
3
T'
o
f
o
J
.+

tp

o+
g
o
t
o
!t
o)

{
J

]n
'o
il
=
vt
o,
TI
!l
o
o
o-
crx

n

o,

=0)
uqo-
1A
6'
J
OJ

c
Io !.l

o
qq
-
A'

3
m

=0)

o
o
3
o
=t+
-9
0,
f
!
m'9

N
\h

i
.l
J
o,

ta
qq
J
A'

tr
o

-t
o
o
1oge
a
o,
3
t-o
s.
o-
(D

o,
E-ooo
o
+o
a
0)

oc
d)
do
o,oooro
d-o
E
ta
E
o
9.o
d

+o
a
d
J
9.
I

o
-4.3
o
cro
=U
l<.
o

ID
6
o)

o
o,

=a-
a,o
:,
1

r)

o
o
s.
oa
3
(D
f
d

q;E
J=A
J 6!.c rDE
=10
€oo
-l+Jed*
^r).):_:oca3E(D36'
ocforSo
=;tord-< =OoE
ead; o-5
Qoo
ilq E
o-hE'
?33.rDo-f
1-6

='O, OUa+
fd.*

o=io'e.uoa
(D(DY
3 ='i{or=
=qo= -'oo
='S.eJ*=.

*[1
Q =rDl-ord6
a3 q
L.o.)o
C O--_
ho9
#<(D
;'(D-o36
.* '.' d
aiHJoo.rc

I=6s
o- oi
96-oa
o.;
o.) :t
:!(D(Da
9. oridq
oo9
o!a
f,.so<6<
Bq
€=(1)5
:OQ
il=.
+!!
='Jo

lt1
o
5
do
l

aaa
o

T'o
T'

o
0,

ta
!
m
T'
la
..)
o
o

4
]i<rOr-co.r<:tro
;

gt^
JlD
cLi
a;.PY(t5),-- o
iJFE.tY=
-iloo!tit:o

p
E
0.,o=o"<

='oqu)
s.
.lo

a
tr

rEeq
F'E

q

'o
=.J
q,

{
li
o
s.oo

r)
0,

o
urq
o
:

z gH
ni T,

iSHaHfr;!iO7'Co(Dl.AEi=.ol-{E#s:*g
316o:=3q:3ile8
r*s$i rol.=.=;

3;d*3'o5
q9_

m
5)
0,

tio
3
o
=
o
TIt
o
f,
tr
;il

p!"€t,9r.
^-hui.i-"d'o5't,
fi G 5.8- eHeggd"i ;
iJ =':l r 3I6Brlr
= 

d H +e +
E* (D € q {
^=o=5:5 { 9;E;

=df-.+<-='--o, (D
3=Nd-

3€isH<rDcL oL+

EEOt2o

o
5')
tll

o
!,
vt

'E,-Y3
8Q
oJ3<
hO,+=oro+ts

ta

7
o(/l
E'o
9.g
o
!
0,
J

ils
JD rd

5'8
9;p
F3
r3o
1$
=odq*6:
il*
oI
Bq:o

3

J
€
Io
(.)
o
6
o
J
o

061725  BCC Meeting

57



tE!
9-fi
-' ;lol8>
=.h,si
='1,
=9o

!
o
0!
0,
3
m
5
0,

o
o
3
o
,+
'o
0,
J
!
m
!

o
3 o=lDo-

o,

oJ
oqo
@oo-

E
o,

o
5=

E
ao
@
I
o,
3,

.D
t

:o
o
ao

T'
o

f
o,o

o.
CL
(D

o 3
lDo.c

d

=

!,-oE
(D

f o,

o:,
o
=,3
lD6

o,Jo

0,oooc
=d
o,r

.Do-

o+J
.D-

.D

6"- o,
d

d5 oo
1
o,
at
d

lDq
o
a
o,

(Do

E
ao
CL
(D
ofq
q,
J€

=r oto

E
Io
c)
(D
q
(D

o
I'
o
s.
o-

!,o
fc:,
d

0c

c
(D
J

o,J o" (!

€
o

o
d:t

o
E'Eof

o
o,
aoC

f
q
do

I
lD

o
o

5
oa(D
o-
f

lDo
I
:l

_cL

T'c

.E

oo:,
:5

c,o
=
o o

d
t
Eo

o,
a
o,
f

oeo =.c+
o

o
13
o,t

E'
OJ-of4
.ho

do
o
(D
.D

oo
3
3

=.
oaoo

o, 3
o

a)

ooo,

CL

lDT'
OJ

TIo
o
=J
Q.@-ofr

or{o
o:,
lDq o,5

CL

o
o
=o,:,

o.
!,
? 7

OJ

o

c
(D

=.d'

g
0,*,
o
=

!o
!

o
ol

a.o
m
!
v,
|,tot

v
Ulr
5-

e.
o

oc

P>g3
oL

OO6tr:r;h
il cLo

89
$n

DE
0,sF(D<

lo
!! ur<o

6'o

tt
trtp.qp
=c.Dor
o, .<

8fr
3.
(1
o

.o

=
0,
e
vto
a
.!o

11
0,
o

0a
o
e

z fHnt!
o6)odo-{
; o =.o;;! o

ilE f; s il i
0'e-EfrE'8
/ *= -':J o€aaLq

o+-rJ^roO<cL=

+3 EE I
*aqag

*s fr

m
=!t
56
o
3
o
J

o
E'
8ftr
{

!'
!ao

@
il
3
Vt
o,

5.

o
(D

(D
o
o-
OJ

o,
d-o,
=
(D

P !rr.2 l-, EO'r:9I-6
[e id tsH9.{6',
O - - 5tl93esH
Efi E iE
9I tj =(D-J-5Cf

-.dtJ
<J-;=ds.Hd
e*rq

L

Ets
Hd

at

o
J
llt
o
E
l^

'o
a

GT

il
3

(a o,dA
+oeo

r-
'o
6

orr
il
3

ET
o

Po-o
$E
3ae,
=o*Er*
Qo;so6lr

t5
8fr
,oe8ot8d6Ahoq;.
Bg

o.
!D

-{
Ut
p,
o
J

o
ott,
ts
o
EL
ET

1'
o

GI
0,
3

=0,

=o,glt
.D

I
n

o

o
!
alot
U

att
attt5
0,
trao

N
1.,

N(l

061725  BCC Meeting

58



!
o
@

E
o
0o
ano
t
o
f

a

.o
OJ

o
o
E'
T'
o
o
CL
cr

E
oqrl
rt
o
3
m
5
0,

(.l
o

o
..+
!
gl

!
m
!

3 +E p
=o O =O =Oo -oofE
-J = C.<mi=
SJoo:o16=r
o o ^.Gla>'-1; e-d6 rD =gq(Dom=
-= EJ
6*O+.<o65
a c 6'o.laj*7
A erEfi
P 9m0Qoc--+6
c l.;6
+JCr
-md61q+a(oofS
loO-
6 t *E'
aolr. -o:oo;'

o--
o'< ^,+O =6Ea
a Vta.
6d=

^ 
()-f

5(D9
E,?ni1-O
81.=
is3'
= =ox,*m
=OodE;
oOo

is-s
ooo
ts p-6
froJ.o-_oh=
o OOqcof
E q;
33: g
rO::

=+do9U
o0a -oq f o-
iloo358
=-;s;€ B(D g-cl
o-'-'+Y ioou
=mFooi =.
=-oE ga
!oo

Pd:I 
='EJOO

'uct o=
S' 6'
oa

,lo

o
o,

o

E'
o
(D

(D

o
3o

OJ

f

o
U)o
oo
!
o
0a
il
3

a,
o
an
E
3
3
o,)
OJ

otl
(D

9.
otl
a
or

c
o

t-J

t.J

N)

t7
o,
o

o'o
(.1
(')u
E.
I
gt

otI:,
o,
c
(D

!o
!

d
IL
t
!
m
a,
attoo
o

v
t^

Fe'
=<5q

o

9E-Piroio5D--6g 6's. E
-=8=O0'l"a
L-

-CL6

p
c
!L

F€
?e,
9q<q

s.
fio

ln
$pou ce 6-91<==i

F'4E
=ob9r

1'
=.3
ol

(rr
o
s.
t1o

(.)
0,
o
uqo

ul
NJs

5s N P
+t

H(, o P(rl 8H
6!

lvo

mO:r
EE'9i+rDc=
=.lD<1

I=r
o-o-6 Q oI I B li=cE=nx
f=rigrDdd-;='H
= l -.: rDSd39ol- i-E o c
99e=5;ol.bPR
-i o ci i
a r q-E :..ii= 

^ I a
d-:"=il p d_9.'
5'i c d or

='id9-ats +o'8.?'oJo=
2of(D

.'n
o
=t,
o
E(n

m U<
6.d's

E8flE
g3 *E

vo
1At
o
2.g
o
.o
o,

$rP o-+rd o -. o

qF=**$: s
l:ti:35'50q';a.3Eq"ga
[ * H ;; F i fi
i5?E{i==.
x P x q a I id
E rE g: sqi
E 3 5 aE l $ 

a
o<rYDAo-+i+t

z
.-3oJ.i
3 Pd6
Pro* d::. -. (,id:r,
.q9-
-.h oJ FEIP;9o0ri
iiPo0=6
oiP-or{:+=o=X
= 

6tl
dsiEB{
u= a

061725  BCC Meeting

59



North Carolina Denartment of Public Safety
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

JCPG Proqram - Proqram Agreement

Program Manager Name & Address (same person on signature page)

Contact Person (ff different from program manager)

Program Flscal Offfcer (cannot be orooram manaoer)

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Program Agreement
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Departrnent of Public Safety

SECTION I A: SPONSORING AGENCY AND PROGRAM INFORMATION

FUNDING PERIOD: FY 25-26 DPS/JCPC FUNDING # (cont onty) 295-XXXX

COUNTY: Watauga AREA: Western Area

Multi-County: No Multi-Components No

NAME OF PROGRAM JCPC Administration

SPONSORING AGENCY: Watauga County

SPONSORING AGENCY
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:

t

NC 00000

SPONSORING AGENCY
MAILING ADDRESS: NC 00000

TYPE: Public FEDERAL rD #1566001816 01

COMPONENT !D # NAME OF PROGRAM COMPONENT PROGRAi,I TYPE
TOTAL COST OF

EACH COMPONENT

45707 JCPC Certification JCPC Certification $ s00

Total cost of components: $ s00

Name: Austin Combs Tltle: Therapist

Mailing
Address:

240 NC 105 Extension, #100

City: Boone zipz 28607

Phone: (e1e) 889-2440 Fax: E-mall: austincombs@hcchmail.org

Name: Becky Ballew Title:

Mailing
Address:

814 West King Street

Clty: Boone zlp:. 28607

Phone: (828) 265-8008 Fax: (828) 265-8006 E-mail: becky. ballew@watgov.org

Name: Becky Ballew Title: Finance

Malllng
Address:

814 West King Street

City: Boone Zip: 28607

Phone: (828) 265-8008 Fax: (828) 265-8006 E-mail: becky. ballew@watgov.org

061725  BCC Meeting

60



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

G.S. 1438-853 allows for a2-year funding cycle for programs that meet the requirements of the statute and have been
awarded funds in a prior funding cycle. lndicate below if the JCPC plans to allow for a 1-year or 2-year funding cycle.

1-Year Funding: FY 2024-2025

Membership
A. Have the members of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council been appointed by county commissioners?

B. Are members appointed for two-year terms and are those terms staggered?

C. ls membership reflective of social-economic and racial diversity of the community?

D. Does the membership of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council reflect the required positions as provided by

N.C.G.S. 51438-846? No

lf not, which positions are vacant and why?

DSS Director, Juvenile Defense Attorney, Chief District Judge, Member of Business Community, Local Health Director,

Rep. Other Non-Profit , and three County Commissioner Appointee positions. Open positions are being recruited.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

On file

Yes

Yes

On file

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Organization
A. Does the JCPC have written Bylaws?

B. Bylaws are

C. Bylaws contain Conflict of lnterest section per JCPC policy and procedure.

D. Does the JCPC have written policies and procedures for funding and review?

E. These policies and procedures

F. Does the JCPC have officers and are they elected annually?

Meetings
A. JCPC meetings are considered open and public notice of meetings is provided.

B. ls a quorum defined as the majority of membership and required to be present in order to conduct business at

JCPC meetings?

C. Does the JCPC meet six (6)times ayeat at a minimum?

D. Are minutes taken at all official meetings?

E. Are minutes distributed prior to or during subsequent meetings?

Planning
A. Does the JCPC conduct a biennial planning process which includes a needs assessment, monitoring of

programs and funding allocation process?

B. ls this Biennial Plan presented to the Board of County Commissioners and to DPS?

C. ls the Funding Plan approved by the full council and submitted to Commissioners for their approval?

Public Awareness
A. Does the JCPC communicate the availability of funds to all public and private non-profit agencies which serve

children or their families and to other interested community members?
g RFP, Distribution List, and Advertisement attached

B. Does the JCPC complete a biennial needs assessment and make that information available to agencies which

serve children or their families, and to interested community members?

No Overdue Tax Debt
A. As recipient of the county DPS JCPC allocation, does the County certify that it has no overdue tax debts, as

defined by N.C.G.S. 5105-243.1, at the Federal, State, or local level?

Forrn JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised June 2024
NC Department of Public Safety

Yes

061725  BCC Meeting

61



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION GOUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Briefly outline the plan for correcting any areas of standards non-compliance.

The JCPC is working to fill vacant positions.

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised Iune 2024
NC Departrnent of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

62



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

lnstructions: N.C.G.S. S 1438-846 specifies suggested members be appointed by county commissioners to serve on local

Juvenile Crime Prevention Councils. ln certain categories, a designee may be appointed to serve. Please indicate the

person appointed to serve in each category and his/her title. lndicate appointed members who are designees for named
positions. lndicate race and gender for all appointments.

Watauga County - FY 25-26

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised June 2024
NC Deparhnent of Public Safety

Specified Members Name Title Designee Race Gender

1) School Superintendent or designee Candis Walker School Counselor g White Female

2) Chief of Police or designee Kat Eller Community Resource

Officer
White Female

3) Local Sheriff or designee Kelly Redmon Major Watauga
County Sheriffs
Department

White Male

4) District Attorney or designee Sherry Perry DA's Office V White Female

5) Chief Court Counselor or designee John Troy Autry Chief Court Counselor White Male

6) Director, Local Management Entity/

Managed Care Organization (LME/MCO), or
designee

Christelle Marsh VAYA Health

V
White Female

7) Director DSS or designee VACANT

8) County Manager or designee Becky Ballew Finance Office V White Female

9) Substance Abuse Professional Lauren Testerman Substance Use

Counselor
White Female

10) Member of Faith Community Chris Hughes Evangelist White Male

1 1) County Commissioner Ronnie Marsh Commissioner White Male

12) A Person Under the Age of 21 Ava Larned WHS Student White Female

13) A Person Under the Age of 21, or a member
of the public representing the interests of
families of at-risk juveniles

Zeke Walker WHS Student White Male

14) Juvenile Defense Attorney VACANT

15) Chief District Judge or designee VACANT

16) Member of Business Community VACANT

17) Local Health Director or designee VACANT

18) Rep. United Way/other non-profit VACANT

19) Representative/Parks and Rec Keron Poteat Parks & Recreation

Manager
White Female

20) County Commissioner appointee Austin Combs High Country
Community Health

White Female

21) County Commissioner appointee Joan Hearn Guardian Ad Litem White Female

22) County Commissioner appointee Mechelle Miller Court Counselor
Supervisor

White Female

23) County Commissioner appointee Stephen Poulos Retired Parks &

Recreation Director
White Male

24) County Commissioner appointee VACANT

25) County Commissioner appointee VACANT

26) County Commissioner appointee VACANT

061725  BCC Meeting

63



SECTION V: TERMS OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into by and between Department of Public Safety (hereinafter referred fo as DPS), and

Watauga County (hereinafter referred to as the County), the County's Juvenile Cime Prevention Council (hereinafter
referred to as the JCPC) and Watauga County (hereinafter referred to as fhe Sponsoring Agency).

DPS, the County, the JCPC and the Sponsoring Agency do mutually agree as follows:

Terms of Agreement

This Agreement shall become effective Jul 1,2025 and shall terminate Jun 30, 2026

Payment to Sponsoring Agency

All parties agree that services will be delivered as described in the approved Program Agreement and that funds will be

disbursed in an amount not to exceed $500 for the term of this agreement, unless amended by an approved Program

Agreement Revision.

Availability of Funds:

All parties to this Agreement agree and understand that the payment of the sums specified in this Program Agreement
budget, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision, is dependent and contingent upon and subject to the
appropriation, allocation, and availability of funds for this purpose to the DPS.

Responsibilities of the Parties

DPS shall:

1. Disburse funds monthly to County Governments, for payment to the Sponsoring Agency, from funds appropriated

by the General Assembly;

2. Reserve the right to suspend payment to the County for any non-compliance of reporting requirements by the

Sponsoring Agency set forth in the DPS JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum

Standards Policy;

3. lmmediately notify, in writing, the JCPC, County, and Sponsoring Agency (including the Board of Directors, if
applicable), if payments are suspended and again once payments resume;

4. Pay only for work as described in the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement
Revision, provided by the Sponsoring Agency and approved subcontractors;

5. Provide technical assistance, orientation, and training to the Sponsoring Agency, the County and the JCPC;

6. Monitor the Sponsoring Agency's funded program(s) in accordance with DPS JCPC and Community Programs

Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards, DPS JCPC Policy 3. Operations: Program Oversight and Monitoring;

7. Notify parties entering into this Agreement of all due dates in a timely manner in order for reports to be submitted by

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Progam Agreement
Form skucture last revised l2ll8l24 for FY 25-26
Departrnent of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

64



the established due dates; and

8. Ensure the Sponsoring Agency is either a public agency or 501(c)(3) private non-profit organization and when
applicable, appropriately licensed.

The Sponsorinq Aqencv shall:

1. Comply with all laws, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations, and licensing requirements that are applicable to the

conduct of its business, including those of Federal, State, and local agencies having jurisdiction and/or authority;

2. Comply with all Federal and State laws relating to equal employment opportunity;

3. Keep as confidential and not divulge or make available to any individual or organization without the prior written

approval of DPS any information, data, instruments, documents, studies or reports given to or prepared or assembled

by the Sponsoring Agency under this Agreement;

4. Acknowledge that in receiving, storing, processing or otherwise dealing with any confidential information, it will

safeguard and not redisclose the information, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement;

5. Comply with the DPS JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards Policy and
North Carolina Administrative Code procedures ('t48 NCAC 11B);

6. Secure local match, if applicable, pursuant to 14B NCAC 118.0105, for the approved DPS funds;

7. Create and adopt individualized written agency guidelines specific to the funded program, while also adhering to

DPS JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards Policy for the specific funded
program type;

8. Ensure that state funds received are spent in accordance with the approved Program Agreement, or most recently
approved Program Agreement Revision, and be accountable for the legal and appropriate expenditure of those state
funds;

9. Maintain reports, records, and other information to properly document services rendered and outcomes; also
maintain an ability to send and receive electronic communication;

10. Have the capacity to use the DPS electronic internet-based system for tracking clients served; also maintain an

ability to electronically sign required DPS documents;

11. Use generally accepted accounting procedures that guarantee the integrity of the expenditure of funds, and

maintain reports, records, and other information to properly account for the expenditure of all State funds provided to

the Sponsoring Agency;

12. When refunds are requested from the North Carolina Department of Revenue for sales and/or use taxes paid by
the agency in the performance of the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision,

as allowed by NCGS S 105-164.14(c), the agency shall exclude all refundable sales and use taxes from reportable

expenditures submitted to the County and DPS;

13. Submit Program Agreement Revisions, Third Quarter Accounting, Final Accounting, and annual detailed
expenditures through NCALLIES. These reports must be in accordance with the submission process as outlined in

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Program Agreement
Form structure last revised l2ll8/24 for FY 25-26
Departrnent of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

65



DPS JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards Policy and with the due dates
established by DPS;

'14. Make personnel reports, records and other information available to DPS, the County, the JCPC, and/or the State

Auditor for oversight, monitoring and evaluation purposes;

15. Submit any other information requested by DPS, the County, the JCPC, and/or the State Auditor;

16. Be responsible for the performance of all subcontractors as described in the Program Agreement or most recently
approved Program Agreement Revision;

17. lndemnify, defend, and hold harmless DPS, the State of North Carolina, the County, the JCPC and any of their
officers, agents and employees, from any claims of third parties arising out of any act or omission of the Sponsoring

Agency in connection with the performance of the Program Agreement or most recently approved Program Agreement
Revision;

18. Receive written permission and budgetary approval from DPS prior to using the Program Agreement, or most

recently approved Program Agreement Revision, as a part of any news release or commercial advertising, and
acknowledge DPS funding in partnership with the County;

19. Comply with DPS JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards Policy, Policy
6: Operations: Program Eligibility for Funding regarding any trainings and requirements for the United States

Department of Justice national standards to prevent, detect, and respond to prison rape under the Prison Rape

Elimination Act (PREA) and any additional requirements in 148 NCAC 11C;

20. Be deemed an independent contractor in the performance of services described in the Program Agreement, or

most recently approved Program Agreement Revision, and as such shall be wholly responsible for the services to be
performed and for the supervision of its employees, interns, volunteers and subcontractors; and

21. Represent that it has, or shall secure at its own expense, all personnel required in performing the services as

described in the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision. Such personnel shall

not be employees of or have any individual contractual relationship with DPS.

Sponsoring Agency and Use of Contractor(s)/Subcontractors

Ihe Sponsoring Agency may engage with independent contracfors as needed to peiorm serulces or support seryrces

described in line item 190 of the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision. When

independent contractors are providing seruiceg the Sponsoing Agency must:

22. Upload a signed Contract for Professional Services (Form JCPC/PO 001 Contract for Professional Seryices
Template) into NCALLIES once the Program Agreement or Program Agreement Revision is approved by DPS;

23. Be responsible for the performance of all contractors or subcontractors as described in the Program

Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision;

24. Hold any contractor or subcontractor to which the Sponsoring Agency provides State funds accountable for
the legal and appropriate expenditure of State funds and require compliance with all applicable laws and DPS

JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards Policy; and

25. Ensure that all contractors or subcontractors provide all information necessary to comply with the standards

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Program Agreement
Form structure last revised 12/18/24 for FY 25-26
Departrnent of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

66



set forth in the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision.

The JCPC shall:

1. Ensure the Sponsoring Agency uses funds only for the purposes approved in the JCPC Program Agreement or most
recently approved JCPC Program Agreement Revision (applicable only to DPS JCPC approved programs);

2. Comply with the DPS JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards Policy, the
North Carolina Administrative Code procedures (14B NCAC 118, and N.C.G.S. SS 1438-845 to -851);

3. Review and locally approve Program Agreements, Program Agreement Revision(s), and Third Quarter Accounting
and submit information to the County in a timely manner to meet due dates established by DPS;

4. Submit any other information requested by the County or DPS; and

5. Monitor the Sponsoring Agency's currently funded JCPC program(s) in accordance with DPS JCPC and Community
Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards Policy, Policy 3. Operations: Program Oversight and
Monitoing (applicable only to DPS JCPC approved programs).

Reference: 148 NCAC 118.0202 and DPS JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum
Sfandards Policy (policies 1,3,7,8,9, 10 and 11).

NOTE: Monitoring by the JCPC ONLY applies to JCPC funded programs and not other projects funded
through fhe DPS Juvenile Community Programs Secfion.

The Countv shall:

1. Use funds only for the purposes approved by DPS in the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program

Agreement Revision;

2. Disburse funds monthly and oversee funds to the Sponsoring Agency in accordance with 148 NCAC 11B.0108;

3. Comply with the DPS JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards Policy and
North Carolina Administrative Code procedures (148 NCAC 118);

4. Review and locally approve Program Agreement Revisions received from the Sponsoring Agency for final approval
from DPS;

Reference: DPS JCPC and Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Sfandards Policy (policy 11).

5. Review and locally approve Third Quarter Accounting and Final Accounting forms for the JCPC and funded
programs according to the procedures and due dates established by DPS; and

Reference: 148 NCAC 118.0108; DPS JCPC and Community Programs Secfion-Funded Programs Minimum
Sfandards Policy (policies I and g).

6. Ensure that programs are public agencies or private 501(c)(3) non-profit organizations and appropriately licensed,

when applicable (applicable only to the JCPC funding process).

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Program Agreement
Form structure last revised 12/18/24 for FY 25-26
Department of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

67



Headings: The Section and Paragraph headings in these General Terms and Conditions are not material parts of the

agreement and should not be used to construe the meaning thereof.

Choice of Law: The validity of this Program Agreement and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and

duties of the parties to this Program Agreement, are governed by the laws of North Carolina, including the relevant
provisions of G.S. Chapter 1438, Article 13, Part 3, Subpart F, and the Rules of 14B NCAC Chapter 11 . The parties,

by signing this Program Agreement, agree and submit, solely for matters concerning this Program Agreement, to the

exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of North Carolina and agree, solely for such purpose, that the exclusive venue for
any legal proceedings shall be Wake County, North Carolina. The place of this Program Agreement and all

transactions and agreements relating to it, and their situs and forum, shall be Wake County, North Carolina, where all

matters, whether sounding in Program Agreement or tort, relating to the validity, construction, interpretation, and

enforcement shall be determined.

Assignment: No assignment of the Sponsoring Agency's obligations or the Sponsoring Agency's right to receive
payment hereunder shall be permitted. However, upon written request approved by the issuing purchasing authority,
DPS may:

(a) Forward the Sponsoring Agency's payment check(s) directly to any person or entity designated by the

Program Manager, or

(b) lnclude any person or entity designated by the Sponsoring Agency as a joint payee on the Sponsoring

Agency's payment check(s).

ln no event shall such approval and action obligate DPS or County Government to anyone other than the Sponsoring

Agency, and the Sponsoring Agency shall remain responsible for fulfillment of all Program Agreement, or the most

recently approved Program Agreement Revision, obligations.

Beneficiaries: Except as herein specifically provided otherwise, this Program Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors. lt is expressly understood and agreed that the

enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Program Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to DPS, the County Government, and the Sponsoring Agency. Nothing

contained in this document shall give or allow any claim or right of action whatsoever by any third person. lt is the

express intention of DPS and County Government that any such person or entity, other than DPS or the County
Government or the Sponsoring Agency receiving services or benefits under this Program Agreement shall be deemed

an incidental beneficiary only.

Property Rights

lntellectual Propertv: All deliverable items produced pursuant to this Program Agreement are the exclusive property

of DPS. The Sponsoring Agency shall not assert a claim of copyright or other property interest in such deliverables.

Phvsical Propertv: The Sponsoring Agency agrees that it shall be responsible for the proper custody and care of any
property purchased for or furnished to it for use in connection with the performance of this Program Agreement, or the

most recently approved Program Agreement Revision, and will reimburse DPS for loss of, or damage to, such
property. At the termination of this Program Agreement, the Sponsoring Agency, County Government, and JCPC shall
follow the guidelines for disposition of property set forth in the North Carolina Administrative Code and DPS JCPC and
Community Programs Section-Funded Programs Minimum Standards Policy,

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Program Agreement
Form structure last revised 12/18/24 for FY 25-26
Department of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

68



Policy 1. Operations: JCPC Operations. Reference: 148 NCAC 118.0110.

Disbursements and lnternal Gontrols

Reversion of Unexpended Funds

Any remaining unexpended funds disbursed by DPS to the County for the Sponsoring Agency must be refunded/
reverted back to DPS at the close of the fiscal year or upon termination of this Agreement.

Accountability for Funds

Audit Requirement - Local Government or Public Authority Requirements
Local Governments or Public Authorities in accordance with N.C.G.S. S 159-34 must have an audit performed in
conformity with generally accepted auditing standards. The audit shall evaluate the performance of a unit of local
government or publlc authority regarding compliance with all applicable Federal and State agency regulations. This
audit, combined with the audit of financial accounts, shall be deemed to be the single audit described by the "Federat
Single Audit Act of 1984".

Audit Requirement - Non-Governmental Entities
An audit, when required by law, or requested by the County or DPS shall be performed in conformity with generally
accepted auditing standards and audits of non-governmental entities, both for-profit and not-for-profit, and must meet
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. At a minimum, the required report shall include the financial statements
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, all disclosures in the public interest required by
law, and the auditor's opinion and comments relating to financial statements. The audit report must be submitted to the
State Audito/s office as required by law, to the County, and DPS, and to other recipients as appropriate within nine (g)
mbnths after the end of the program's fiscal year.

Oversight

Access to Persons and Records
The State Auditor shall have access to persons and records related to all Program Agreements entered into by State
agencies or political subdivisions in accordance with N.C.G.S. S 147-64.7. Additionally, as the State funding authority,
DPS shall have access to persons and records related to all Program Agreements entered into by State agencies or
political subdivisions.

Record Retention
Records shall not be destroyed, purged, or disposed of without the express written consent of DPS. State of North
Carolina basic records retention policy requires all records to be retained for a minimum of five (5) years or until all
audit exceptions have been resolved, whichever is longer. lf the Program Agreement is subject to Federal policy and
regulations, record retention may be longer than five (5) years since records must be retained for a period of three (3)
years following submission of the final Federal Financial Status Report, if applicable, or three (3) years following the
submission of a revised final Federal Financial Status Report. Also, if any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit,
disallowance action, or other action involving this Program Agreement has been started before expiration of the five-
year retention period described above, the records must be retained until completion of the action and resolution of all
issues which arise from it, or until the end of the regular five-year period described above, whichever is later.

No Overdue Tax Debt - Not for profit organizations ONLY must compty with this section. This form must be
uploaded in NCALLIES when submltting a Program Application.

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Prograrn Agreement
Form sfructure last revised l2ll8/24 for FY 25-26
Departnent of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

69



The Sponsoring Agency shall be responsible for the payment of all State, local, and Federal taxes. Consistent with

N.C.G.S. S 143C-6-23(c), not for profit organizations shall file with DPS and the County a written statement, No

Overdue Tax Debts, completed by that Sponsoring Agency's Board of Directors or other governing body, stating

whether or not the Sponsoring Agency has any overdue tax debts, as defined by N.C.G.S. S 105-243.1, at the

Federal, State, or local level.

Submittinq a Proqram Aoplication: lf the Sponsoring Agency receives notification of any tax liability, including fines

and/or penalties at the State or Federal level, at the time a Program Application is submitted, the Sponsoring Agency

must notify the DPS Area Office assigned to that county, in writing, immediately.

After Aooroved Fundinq: At any time during a fiscal year, if the funded Sponsoring Agency receives notification of any

tax liability, including fines and/or penalties at the State or Federal level, the agency must notifo, in writing, the County,

JCPC, their Board of Directors and the DPS Area Offlce assigned to that county within five (5) business days of being

notified.

Conflict of lnterest - Not for profit organizations ONLY must comply with this section. This form must be

uploaded in NCALLIES when submitting a Program Application.
Consistent with the N.C.G.S. S 143C-6-23(b), not for profit organizations shall file with DPS and the County, a copy of
that Sponsoring Agency's policy addressing conflicts of interest that may arise involving the Sponsoring Agency's

management employees and the members of its Board of Directors or other governing body. The policy shall address

situations in which any of these individuals may directly or indirectly benefit, except as the Sponsoring Agency's

employees or members of its Board or other governing body, from the Sponsoring Agency's disbursing of State funds

and shall include actions to be taken by the Sponsoring Agency or the individual, or both to avoid conflicts of interest

and the appearance of impropriety. The policy shall be filed, before the County or DPS will disburse any funds. The

Sponsoring Agency shall also complete the DPS Conflict of lnterest Policy Statement (Form DPS 13 001) and upload

the statement in NCALLIES along with and the Sponsoring Agency's policy addressing conflicts of interests.

Proof of 501(c)(3) - Not for profit organizations ONLY must comply with this section. This document must be

uptoaded in NCALLIES when submitting a Program Application.
Not for profit organizations must upload proof of the agency's 501(c)(3) status when submitting a program application

in NCALLIES.

Revoked or Suspended Status: lf the funded Sponsoring Agency receives notification that its N.C. non-profit (State)

and/or 501(c)(3) (Federal IRS) status is revoked or suspended, the agency must notify, in writing, the County, JCPC,

their Board of Directors and DPS Area Office assigned to that county within five (5) business days of receiving

notification of the revocation or suspension.

Amendment: This Agreement may not be amended orally or by performance. Any amendment must be requested by

the Sponsoring Agency through submission of a Program Agreement Revision and executed by duly authorized

representatives of DPS, the County Government, JCPC, and Sponsoring Agency.

Severability: ln the event that a court of competent jurisdiction holds that a provision or requirement of this Program

Agreement violates any applicable law, each such provision or requirement shall continue to be enforced to the extent

it is not in violation of law or is not otherwise unenforceable and all other provisions and requirements of this Program

Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Termination for Cause: lf, through any cause, the Sponsoring Agency shall fail to fulfill its obligations under this

Program Agreement in a timely and proper manner, DPS shall have the right to terminate this Program Agreement by

giving written notice to the Sponsoring Agency and specifying the effective date thereof. ln that event, all finished or

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Prograrn Agreement
Form structue last revised 12118124 forFl{ 25-26
Department of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

70



unflnished deliverable items prepared by the Sponsoring Agency under this Program Agreement shall, at the option of
DPS, become the property of the Sponsoring Agency and the Sponsoring Agency shall be entitled to receive just and
equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed on such materials, minus any payment or compensation
previously made. Notwithstanding the foregoing provision, the Sponsoring Agency shall not be relieved of liability to

DPS for damages sustained by DPS by virtue of the Sponsoring Agency's breach of this agreement, and DPS may
withhold any payment due the Sponsoring Agency for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of
damages due DPS from such breach can be determined. The filing of a petition for bankruptcy by the Sponsoring

Agency shall be an act of default under this Program Agreement.

Termination without Gause: DPS, the County Government, or the Sponsoring Agency may terminate this
Agreement at any time and without cause by giving at least thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other parties
lf this Program Agreement is terminated by DPS as provided herein, the Sponsoring Agency shall be reimbursed on a
pro rata basis for services satisfactorily provided to DPS under this Program Agreement, or the most recently
approved Program Agreement Revision, prior to Program Agreement termination.

Waiver of Default: Waiver by DPS of any default or breach in compliance with the terms of this Program Agreement,
or the most recently approved Program Agreement Revision, by the Sponsoring Agency shall not be deemed a waiver
of any subsequent default or breach and shall not be construed to be modification of the terms of this Program
Agreement unless stated to be such in writing, signed by an authorized representative of DPS, County Government,
the JCPC, and the Sponsoring Agency.

Force Majeure: Neither party shall be deemed to be in default of its obligations hereunder if and so long as it is
prevented from performing such obligations as a result of events beyond its reasonable control, including, without
limitation, fire, power failures, any act of war, hostile foreigrl action, nuclear explosion, riot, strikes, civil insurrection,
earthquake, hurricane, tornado, or other catastrophic natural event, pandemic, or act of God.

Survivalof Promises: All promises, requirements, terms, conditions, provisions, representations, guarantees, and
warranties contained herein shall survive the Program Agreement expiration or termination date unless specifically
provided otherwise herein, or unless superseded by applicable Federal or State statutes of limitation.

Entire Agreement: This Program Agreement (including any documents mutually incorporated specifically herein)
represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior oral or written statements or
agreements.

END OF SECTION V - Terms of Agreement

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Program Agreement
Form structure last revised 12118124 for FY 25-26
Deparhent of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

71



SECTION Vl: BUDGET NARRATIVE

JCPG Administration Fiscal Year FY 25-26

Item # Justification Expense ln Kind Expense

220 Food for Meetings $200

260 Paper and Other Office Supplies $1 50

370 Advertising for RFP $1 so

TOTAL $s00 $o

Job Title
Annual Expense

Wages
Annual ln Kind

Wages

TOTAL

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Program Agreement
Form structure last revised 12131/2012
Departrnent of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

72



SECTION Vll: BUDGET NARRATIVE LINE ITEM SUMMARY

Program JCPC Administration

FiscalYear: FY 25-26 Number of Months 12

Cash ln Kind Total

l. Personnel Services $o

120 Salaries & Wages

180 Fringe Benefits

1 90 Professional Services.

*Contracts MUST be attached

$o

$o

$o

ll. Supplies & Materials $350 $3so

210 Household & Cleaning

220 Food & Provisions

230 Education & Medical

240 Construction & Repair

250 Vehicle Supplies & Materials

260 Office Supplies and Materials

280 Heating & Utility Supplies

290 Other Supplies and Materials

$200

$1 50

$o

$2oo

$0

$o

$o

$1 50

$o

$o

lll. Current Obligations & Services $150 $150

310 Travel & Transportation

320 Communications

330 Utilities

340 Printing & Binding

350 Repairs & Maintenance

370 Advertising

380 Data Processing

390 Other Services

$1 50

$o

$0

$0

$o

$o

$1 50

$o

$o

lV. Fixed Gharges & Other Expenses $o

410 Rental or Real Property

430 Equipment Rental

440 Service and Maint. Contracts

450 lnsurance & Bonding

490 Other Fixed Charges

$o

$0

$o

$o

$o

V. CapitalOutlay $o

[This Section Requires Cash Match]
510 Office Furniture & Equipment

530 Educational Equipment

540 Motor Vehicle

550 Other Equipment

580 Buildings, Structure & lmprov.

$o

$o

$0

$o

$o

Total $500 $o $s00

Form JCPC/PA 001 JCPC Program Agreement
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Departrnent of Public Safety

061725  BCC Meeting

73



SECTION Vlll: SOURGES OF PROGRAM REVENUE (ALL SOURCES)

FY 25-26 Watauga County Funding lD: 295-XXXX

Sponsoring Agency Watauga County

Program: JCPC Administration

$500 DPS/JCPC Funds

LocalMatch Rate

County Cash

Local Cash

Local Gash

Localln-Kind

Other

Other

Other

Other

TOTAL

* This is the amount of your request on your application

ls the Local Match Rate 10%o,2Ao/o or 3Ao/o?0%

$50o $o

(Specify Source)

(Specify Source)

(Specify Source)

(Specify Source)

(Specify Source)

(Specify Source)

(Specify Source)

(Specify Source)

$o

Required Local Match Match Provided

We, the undersigned, have reviewed this JCPC Program Application to be presented to the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council of this
County in accordance with the procedures established by the local Juvenile Crime Prevention Council. Agencies seeking funding
must be able to meet the applicable requirements of the North Carolina General Statutes, Administrative Code, and the Division of
Adult Correction and Juvenile Justice.

We understand and acknowledge that the approval proaess is frst with the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council, second with the
County Board of Commissioners, and t}re final authority with the Department of Public Safety, Division of Adult Correction and
Juvenile Justice.

All parties understand that the availability of funds is contingent upon the appropriation of those funds by the General Assembly of
the State of North Carolina.

Chair, Gounty Board of Gommissioners or County Finance Director Date

Chair, Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Date

Austin Combs 511125

Program Manager

Form struchre last revised 12131/2012
Departrnent of Public Safety

Date

061725  BCC Meeting

74



{

STAPBOF NORTH CAROLINAf
WATAUGACOT]NTY

WATAUGACO FINANCE
814 W King St Ste 216

Boone, NC28607-3457

Af,'FIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

Before the aNotary

law

that
he (she) is an employee ofADAMS GROUP, LLC, engaged in the?ublication
of a newspaper known as Watauga Democrat, published in the city of BOOITIE in said .i

County and State, that he (she) is authorized to make this affidavit and swom statement; ttra the
notice or other legal advertisemen! a tuue copy of which is attached hereto, was published in
Watauga Democrat, a newspaper meeting all of the requirements and qualifications of Section
I-597 ofthe General Statues ofNorth Carolina on ihe following dates:

Fiscal Year 2025-2026

02/12t25

P.O. BOX 1815, BOONE, NC 28607
828-264-6397

This 12th day of ,2025

Signature of person making affidavit

Swom to and me on this 12th day of February, 2025

/1".
expires:

Public
fi-4

061725  BCC Meeting

75



Blo I FegnueRy 2025

carrus, 828-264-tE8:!
Visit us: www.lrakugademocr"tcom

Email us: classif ieds@wataugademocratcom

Stop by: 584 Stale Farm Rd., Ste. 105, Boone NC 28602 TE

DELL LAPTOP COMPUTER.
black $1 00. 828-297-1 692.

eds
W

o

UTIAUCADET,

oEAttl

Monday, 12 l
PubltshlsWednE

them to lh€ undosionea on or
bbto€ Aprll29. zo{5, orfris
nolice will be Dlaced in bar o,
th6ir lEwqry. Allpemre, flms
ild @rpoElions lndebtsd lo
sid Es6te.will Dle's make im.
mediale Dawsirt.

2o2jhls 
thi, 22 day ot Jeury,

clalm

Heather B. Pete6
644 Fw Goodma Road
Cmplar, NC 28617 ,

theS'l diryolJanuary,.
m?5;

Etim Le6 Falns
1l79PrcfftR@d
Boone, NC28607

Alicla Arenclbia.
59 Old Pct Road
F eehold Tomshio. l,u oZ
Attomey Robed B: l\hEle. .
Bar lD 13397State Of North Carollna

Watau@ Countu
ln Th€ G;n6El Cdun

mke immEdiato pay-

ol

Wlson, CPA

r60
286W

EGGERS

day o, Febru-

State Nonh

mak€
alg payment

This the 27 dav of Jeud.
2025-

@r-
of

munity

. TomotBoonB
Tom Councll ild

Plannlng Commlssion
'Speclal Publlc Hoarlno

and MeeUEE Note -

Andr€a N. Capua, Esq.,uecffi
Capua Law Fim. PA'
1 18 Nbrh DeDdt Street
Boone, NC 26607 .

Siate Of North Carclina
WaEuqa Codntu. ln The G6nEEt Cdurt

Of JusilcE
Superior Coun Division

Before The Ct6rk
Esl5te File 24 E 4ir9

ADMNTSTRATOR'S NONCE
Havinq qualified 6 ADM|N|S-
TBATOF ot the anciltary statB

$

wher€

are curently

Admin Orflca
Maintrgnanca

R g B.{'rA !- 5

ffiwwM

picnic pavllion

E

to

Watauoa
Hmee Sicl€ty

ADOMON HOUHS
TusdafSaturday

12:30Dm.5Dn'
Cts€d'MonitEE

{wg2u-7865.

Local mews Elas

o'lever heett rtlqr
importaro't.

f?q A &oM80 Wfffr fi4e ?Offt{t$t to
RAAC# oVgP,loo,ooo

ffi,ffi

.-P[&K

g]uq0r

&

d
s@iDg

Bri&g By 0$ Bffieo;
Mait 70; glrssiiied Box loom, t{c

qu%aMeas

'YiL..{l€
gMFEg

g$v{u'

..Pt&K

a$g'o

fiffi,rffi'#ffi #ffi ffi ,#ffi 
ffiil^ft 

8EB:if BFi

ffi i#,*:iftHi#H#ffi ,${'r.'on5,rr.i*ftn

ffil{ffipffi#lffi ,fiffi,'frtrJ\,rtriH,ffi Hf8ms

you

Wy
cash

061725  BCC Meeting

76



Becky Ballew

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Becky Ballew
Monday, January 13,20252:17 PM
Anna Profio; Austin Combs; Becky Ballew; Brooke Whitman; 'Candis Walker'; 'Chris Hughes';
Christelle Marsh; 'Heather Canipe'; 'Jennifer Warren'; Joan Hearn; 'John Troy Autry'; Kade
Maiden; 'Kat Eller'; Kelly Redmon; Keron Poteat; Kiersten Kleene; Lauren Testerman; Leah
Mosner; Marisa Cornell; Marisa Sedlak; 'Mechelle Miller'; Melissa Johnson; Natalie Fitch;
Project Challenge Supervisor; Raelin Nolan; Ronnie Marsh; 'Sherry Perry
(sherry.a.perry@nccourts.org)'; Sianna Gutschick; Stephen Poulos; 'Susie Riehm'
FW:JCPC RFP Notice
PSA for RFP process FY 25-26. doc; 25-26 RFP Watauga.docx; Watauga JCPC Risk and
Needs Assessment Summary.docx

Hello everyone,

The JCPC 25-26 RFP announcement is on the county website now. The classified ad is
scheduled to be in the newspaper on February 5th. The deadline to apply is Friday, March 7th

at 5:00pm.

Please share the attached information with anyone you think might have an interest.

Thank you!

Becky Ballew
Watauga County Finance Department
814 West King Street, Suite 215
Boone, NC 28607
ph: (828) 26s-8008
fax: (828) 265-8006
beckv. bal I ew@watgov.org

From: Becky Ballew
Sent: Monday, January t3,202510:48 AM
To: Anita.Fogle <Anita.Fogle@watgov.org>
Subject: JCPC RFP Notice for County Website

Hi Anita,

061725  BCC Meeting

77



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

78



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

WATAUGA COOPERATIVE EXTENSION GREENHOUSE BUILDING PROJECT BID

AWARD  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Ms. Paige Patterson, Cooperative Extension Agent, will request that the contract for the 
Greenhouse Building Project in the West Annex/impound lot be awarded to Designed Habitat Inc. 
This project is being completely funded by the Tobacco Trust Fund Grant awarded in October 
2024 and matching funds from Extension's Master Gardener fruit-plant sales over the past few 
years. A request for design-build proposals was posted to the County website in March. Three 
inquiries and two formal proposals were submitted to the County/Cooperative Extension. 
Designed Habitat Inc is deemed to be the most qualified for the project, as they have experience 
assembling the Atlas Greenhouse that was purchased and have completed similar projects. Their 
proposal & bid estimate is attached, which includes foundation, assembly/construction, and 
electrical & water hookup for the greenhouse.  

Board action is required to accept the bid from Designed Habitat Inc. in the amount of $40,000.00 
for construction of the Watauga Extension Greenhouse Building Project. 

061725  BCC Meeting

79



061725  BCC Meeting

80



061725  BCC Meeting

81



061725  BCC Meeting

82



061725  BCC Meeting

83



061725  BCC Meeting

84



061725  BCC Meeting

85



061725  BCC Meeting

86



061725  BCC Meeting

87



061725  BCC Meeting

88



061725  BCC Meeting

89



061725  BCC Meeting

90



061725  BCC Meeting

91



061725  BCC Meeting

92



061725  BCC Meeting

93



061725  BCC Meeting

94



061725  BCC Meeting

95



061725  BCC Meeting

96



061725  BCC Meeting

97



061725  BCC Meeting

98



061725  BCC Meeting

99



061725  BCC Meeting

100



061725  BCC Meeting

101



061725  BCC Meeting

102



061725  BCC Meeting

103



061725  BCC Meeting

104



061725  BCC Meeting

105



061725  BCC Meeting

106



061725  BCC Meeting

107



061725  BCC Meeting

108



061725  BCC Meeting

109



061725  BCC Meeting

110



061725  BCC Meeting

111



061725  BCC Meeting

112



061725  BCC Meeting

113



061725  BCC Meeting

114



061725  BCC Meeting

115



061725  BCC Meeting

116



061725  BCC Meeting

117



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

118



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

NORTH CAROLINA DIVISION OF MILITARY VETERANS AFFAIRS GRANT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Ms. April Goodman, Veterans Service Officer, will request the Board accept a grant from the NC 
Division of Military Veterans Affairs in the amount of $18,288.98.   

Board action is required to accept the grant in the amount of $18,288.98 from the NC Division of 
Military Veterans Affairs. 

061725  BCC Meeting

119



061725  BCC Meeting

120



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 1 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NCDMVA 
Grant Program for 
County Veterans Offices 
Contract Packet 
 
North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

121



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 2 

 

 

 
Contract Packet Checklist 

 
North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs (NCDMVA) 
Grant Program for County Veterans Offices (GPCVO) Contract Packet Checklist 
 
This checklist is intended to aid entities in completing the NCDMVA Grant Packet for this grant.  Please 
contact the NCDMVA point of Grant Administrator listed in the grant packet regarding the contract or related 
documents.  
 

□ Contract   
□ Attachment A -  General Terms and Conditions 
□ Attachment B -  Scope of Work 
□ Attachment C -  Budget 
□ Attachment D -  Notice of Certain Reporting and Audit Requirements 
□ Attachment E -  Certification of No Overdue Tax Debts 
□ Attachment G -  Federal Certification Regarding Lobbying 
□ Attachment H -  Accounting of Sate Financial Assistance less than $25,000 
□ Attachment J -  State Grant Certification and Sworn Statement 
□ Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification (Form W-9) 
□ Letter of Tax Exemption, if applicable 
□ Conflict of Interest Policy 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

122



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 3 

 

 
Contract 

 
North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs 
Grant Program for County Veterans Offices (GPCVO) 

 
Contract # 2025-0080 

This Contract is hereby entered by and between the North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans 
Affairs (referred to in the Contract Documents as the "Agency“) and Watauga County (referred to in 
the Contract Documents as the "Recipient"), (referred to collectively as the “Parties”). The Recipient’s 
federal tax identification number is 56-6001816. 

. 
1. Contract Documents:  This Contract consists of the following documents: 

 

These documents constitute the entire Contract between the Parties and supersede all prior oral or 
written statements or agreements made, communicated, negotiated or entered prior to or 
contemporaneously with the full execution of this Contract. 

 
2. Precedence Among Contract Documents:  In the event of a conflict between or among the terms of the 

Contract Documents, the terms in the Contract Document with the highest relative precedence shall prevail. 
The order of precedence shall be the order of documents as listed in Paragraph 1, above, with the first-listed 
document having the highest precedence and the last-listed document having the lowest precedence. If 
there are multiple Contract Amendments, the most recent amendment shall have the highest precedence 
and the oldest amendment shall have the lowest precedence. 

 
3. Effective Period:  This Contract shall be effective on the date executed and shall terminate on August 1, 

2025, unless extended by the Agency. The Period of Performance for all expenditures shall extend from 
March 3, 2025 to July 31, 2025 and the final report must be submitted no later than August 1, 2025. 
All submitted expenditures during the performance period must adhere to the terms of this Contract. 

 
4. Recipient’s Duties: The Recipient shall provide the services as described in this Contract and 

Attachment B and in accordance with the approved budget in Attachment C. 
 

5. Agency’s Duties: The Agency shall pay the Recipient in the manner and in the amounts specified in 
the Contract Documents. The total amount paid by the Agency to the Recipient under this Contract 
shall not exceed $18,288.98. Specifically, Session Law 2023-134, Section 33.13 (a)(2) requires: A 
grant may be up to twenty thousand dollars ($20,000). 

 

☒   (1) This Contract 
☒   (2) The General Terms and Conditions (Attachment A) 
☒   (3) The Scope of Work; Purpose of Agreement and Project Implementation (Attachment B) 
☒   (4) Budget; Cost of Project/Project Budget and Period of Performance (Attachment C) 
☒   (5) Notice of Certain Reporting and Audit Requirements (Attachment D) 
☒   (6) Certification of No Overdue Tax Debts (Attachment E) 
☒   (7) Federal Certification Regarding Lobbying (Attachment G) 
☒   (8) Accounting of State Financial Assistance Less Than $25,000 (Attachment H) 
☒   (9) State Grant Certification and Sworn Statement (Attachment J) 
☒   (10) Grant Application (on-file) 

 
 

 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

123



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 4 

 

6. Statement of No Overdue Tax Debts: The Recipient’s sworn written statement pursuant to N.C. Gen. 
Stat. § 143C-6-23(c), stating that the Recipient does not have any overdue tax debts, as defined by 
G.S. 105-243.1, at the federal, State, or local level, is attached as Attachment E. A person who makes 
a false statement in violation of this subsection can be found guilty of a criminal offense punishable as 
provided by N.C.G.S. 143C-10-1. The Recipient acknowledges that the written statement must be 
completed by the Recipient’s board of directors or other governing body and filed before the Agency may 
disburse the grant funds. 

 
7. Letter of Exempt Status: A copy of the Recipient’s IRS federal tax-exempt letter or 501(c) verification 

form must be filed with the Agency before the Agency may disburse grant funds. 
 

8. Reversion of Unexpended Funds: Any unexpended grant funds shall revert to the Agency upon 
termination of this Contract. 

 
9. Sub-Recipients: The Recipient shall ensure that all Sub-Recipients, if any, provide all information 

necessary to permit the Recipient to comply with the standards, responsibilities, and obligations of this 
Contract. 

 
10. Reporting Requirements: All reporting requirements shall be filed with the Agency using the 

prescribed electronic submission form (e-submission form) that the Agency provides to the Recipient, 
or other manner as prescribed by the Agency. Expenditures from March 3, 2025 to May 23, 2025 
are to be submitted via the e-submission form by May 23, 2025. Expenditures from May 24, 2025 
to July 31, 2025 are to by submitted via the e-submission form by July 31, 2025. 
 
Additional Required Reporting from Recipient to Agency: 
       
      a.  The unduplicated number of veterans served by the grant recipient, 
      b.  The number of times each individual veteran was served by the grant recipient, and 
      c.  The services that were provided to veterans using the GPCVO grant funds awarded. 

 
The Agency has determined that this Contract is also subject to the reporting requirements described 
on the attached Notice of Certain Reporting and Audit Requirements, Attachment D. The Recipient shall 
comply with all the reporting requirements per the Contract and provisions described in Attachment D 
hereto.  

 
A Recipient that intends to dissolve or cease operations shall report that decision in writing to the 
agency, the Office of State Budget and Management, and to the Fiscal Research Division at least thirty 
(30) days prior to taking that action. 

 
Documentation and Disbursement:  Recipient and subrecipient(s) must maintain reports and accounting 
records that support the allowable expenditure of state funds.  
 
The Recipient shall submit reporting to the Agency via the electronic submission form (e-submission form) 
and shall upload/attach sufficient documentation of the expenses incurred during the period. Recipient can 
upload documentation of expenses as funds are expended or at set intervals (e.g., once a week, etc.). All 
expenses are to be expended by July 31, 2025 and the final report and all supporting documentation are to 
be submitted via the e-submission form by August 1, 2025.  
 
The Recipient understands that there is a legislative reporting requirement, as outlined in the Contract, 
and agrees to provide Attachment H as the final report by August 1, 2025 via the e-submission form. 
Copies of invoices paid or cancelled checks or copy of the general ledger evidencing payment has been 
made, or payroll register records where applicable (with social security number, etc. redacted), are 

061725  BCC Meeting

124



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 5 

 

required to support the Attachment H. 
 

11. Payment Provisions:  The Recipient agrees that funds paid through this contract shall be accounted for 
in a separate fund and accounting structure within the Recipient’s central accounting and grant 
management system. The recipient agrees to manage all accounts payable disbursements, check register 
disbursements, and related transactions in a detailed manner that supports fully transparent accounting of 
all financial transactions associated with this funding allocation. All payments are contingent upon fund 
availability. 
 
If this Contract is terminated, the Recipient shall complete a final accounting report and return any 
unexpended funds to the Agency no later than August 1, 2025. The Agency shall have no obligation 
for payments based on expenditure reports submitted later than July 31, 2025. 
 
Payment shall be made in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
12. Grant Administrators: All notices permitted or required to be given by one Party to the other and all 

questions about the contract from one Party to the other shall be addressed and delivered to the other 
Party’s Grant Administrator. The name, post office address, street address, telephone number, fax 
number, and email address of the Parties’ respective initial Grant Administrators are set out below. 
Either Party may change the name, post office address, street address, telephone number, fax number, 
or email address of its Grant Administrator by giving written notice, within 30 calendar days of the 
effective date of the change, to the other Party. 

 
For the Agency: 

 
IF DELIVERED BY US POSTAL SERVICE IF DELIVERED BY ANY OTHER MEANS 

 
NC Department of Military and Veterans Affairs  
ATTN: Financial Services Division - Grants 
4001 Mail Service Center Raleigh, 
NC 27699-4001 

 
Telephone: 984-204-2980 
Fax: 984-204-8343 
Email: SVC_DMVA_FSD.grants@milvets.nc.gov 
 

 
NC Department of Military and Veterans Affairs 
ATTN: Financial Services Division - Grants 
413 North Salisbury Street 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1361 

 
 

For the Recipient: 
 

The information provided on the Grant Application will be utilized for this section. The Grant 
Administrator will be the Authorized Person to Execute the Grant Contract as identified on the Grant 
Application, or that person’s designee. 

 
 

13. Supplementation of Expenditure of Public Funds: The Recipient assures that funds received 
pursuant to this Contract shall be used only to supplement, not to supplant, the total amount of federal, 
state and local public funds that the Recipient otherwise expends for services and related programs. 
Funds received under this Contract shall be used to provide additional public funding for such services; 
the funds shall not be used to reduce the Recipient’s total expenditure of other public funds for such 
services. 

061725  BCC Meeting

125

mailto:SVC_DMVA_FSD.grants@milvets.nc.gov


DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 6 

 

 
14. Disbursements: In addition to the other requirements set forth above and in the attached documents 

concerning the disbursement of grant funds by the Recipient (including any sub-recipients and sub- 
sub-recipients), as well as all requirements imposed on grant fund expenditures by applicable law, 
rules, and regulations, and as a condition of this Contract, the Recipient acknowledges and agrees to 
make disbursements in accordance with the following requirements: 

 
a. Implement adequate internal controls over disbursements. 
b. Pre-audit all vouchers presented for payment to determine: 

• Validity and accuracy of payment 
• Payment due date 
• Adequacy of documentation supporting payment 
• Legality of disbursement 

c. Assure adequate control of signature stamps/plates. 
d. Assure adequate control of negotiable instruments; and 
e. Implement procedures to ensure that account balance is solvent and reconcile the account 

monthly. 
 

15. Outsourcing: The Recipient certifies that it has identified to the Agency all jobs related to the Contract 
that have been outsourced to other countries, if any. The Recipient further agrees that it will not 
outsource any such jobs during the term of this Contract without providing notice to the Agency. 

 
16. Procurement, Suspension and Debarment: The Recipient acknowledges and agrees that, in its 

conduct under this Contract and about all expenditures of grant funds made by it, the Recipient, its 
officers, agents and employees shall be and are subject to the provisions of the North Carolina General 
Statutes and debarment and the North Carolina Administrative Code relating to and governing 
procurement, public contracts, suspensions and debarment. The Recipient further acknowledges and 
agrees that, in the event that it grants any of the grant funds awarded hereunder to one or more sub- 
recipients or sub-sub-recipients, the Recipient shall, by written contract, ensure that the provisions of 
the North Carolina General Statutes and the North Carolina Administrative Code relating to and 
governing procurement, public contracts, suspension and debarment are made applicable to and 
binding upon any and all of the Recipient’s sub-recipients, sub-sub-recipients, and so on. 

 
17. Conflict of Interest Policy: The Recipient certifies that, as of the date it executes this Contract, no 

such individuals have such a conflict of interest or will directly or indirectly benefit, except in the 
capacities described above, from the grant or project. Throughout the duration of this Contract, the 
Recipient has the duty to promptly inform the Agency of any of any such conflict of interest, direct or 
indirect benefit of which it becomes aware.  

 
Recipient shall file with the Agency a copy of Recipient’s policy addressing conflicts of interest that may 
arise involving Recipient’s management employees and the members of its board of directors or other 
governing body. The policy shall address situations in which any of these individuals may directly or 
indirectly benefit, except as Recipient’s employees or members of its board or other governing body, 
from Recipient’s disbursing of State funds and shall include actions to be taken by Recipient or the 
individual, or both, to avoid conflicts of interest and the appearance of impropriety. The conflict-of-
interest policy shall be filed before the Agency may disburse the grant funds. 

 
18. Cost Principles:  The Recipient acknowledges and agrees that, in its conduct under this Contract and 

about all expenditures of grant funds made by it, it shall comply with the cost principles enunciated in 
the Code of Federal Regulations, 2 CFR, Part 200. The Recipient further acknowledges and agrees 
that if it grants any of the grant funds awarded hereunder to one or more sub-recipients or sub-sub- 
recipients, the Recipient shall, by written contract, ensure that said cost principles are made applicable 

061725  BCC Meeting

126



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 7 

 

to and binding upon all such sub-recipients, sub-sub-recipients, and so on in their handling, use and 
expenditure of the funds awarded to the Recipient hereunder. 

 
19. Grant Agreement with Sub-Recipient(s): If the Recipient grants to a sub-recipient, a sub-sub- 

recipient, etcetera, any of the grant funds awarded to the Recipient hereunder, the Recipient must retain 
a singed copy of the contract or letter pursuant to which the grant funds awarded the Recipient 
hereunder are granted to a sub-recipient, a sub-sub-recipient, etcetera, and provide a copy to the 
Agency at the time the Recipient enters an agreement with a sub-recipient. There is an additional Sub- 
Recipient Monitoring Plan with which such entities must comply. 

 
The Recipient or Sub-Recipient is not relieved of any duties and responsibilities of the original contract 
and the Sub-Recipient agrees to abide by the standards contained in this contract and to shall provide 
all information to allow the Recipient to comply with these standards. Recipient shall ensure that 
subrecipients comply with all reporting requirements established and their contract and report to the 
Agency. Recipient agrees that all Sub- Recipients to this agreement shall comply with the following 
provisions of the N.C. Administrative Code 09 NCAC 03M .0202 Recipient and Subrecipient 
Responsibilities. 

 
20. Taxes: The Recipient shall be an independent Recipient and as such shall be responsible for all taxes. 

The Recipient agrees to provide the Agency with the Recipient’s correct taxpayer identification number 
upon the execution of this Contract. The Recipient agrees that failure to provide the Agency with a 
correct taxpayer identification number authorizes the Agency to withhold any amount due and payable 
under the Contract pursuant to the provision of the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26, United States 
Code. 

 
21. Final Reports and Certifications: The Recipient shall file all reports and certifications, as described 

and required by Attachment D to the Contract, concerning its receipt, handling and expenditure of all 
grant funds awarded hereunder, including any interest earned by the Recipient from such funds, with 
the Agency. Recipient and subrecipients shall maintain reports and accounting records that support the 
allowable expenditure of State funds. 

 
22. Auditing and Access to Persons/Records: The Recipient and any Sub-Recipients shall retain, from 

and after the date of execution of this Contract and for five (5) years following its termination, all records, 
including but not limited to, the books, records, and documents related to this grant award and project 
and all records are subject to being audited, inspected and monitored at any time by the Agency upon 
its request (whether in writing or otherwise). The Recipient and its officers, agents and employees shall 
make the Recipient’s books, records, and documents available to the Agency and its personnel for 
inspection, audit and monitoring upon the Agency’s request, shall answer any questions posed to them 
by the Agency its efforts to monitor and audit the Recipient’s activities regarding the funds awarded 
under this Contract. The Recipient further agrees to keep and maintain all its books, records and 
documents relating in any way to the grant funds awarded hereunder for the time specified in 
Attachment A hereto. The Recipient acknowledges and agrees that, regarding the grant funds, it will 
be subject to the audit and reporting requirements prescribed by N.C.G.S §159-34, Local Government 
Finance Act- Annual Independent Audit; rules and regulations. Such audit and reporting requirements 
may vary depending upon the amount and source of grant funding received by the Recipient and are 
subject to change from time to time. 

 
The State Auditor shall have access to persons and records because of all contracts or grants entered 
by State agencies in accordance with N.C.G.S. 147-64.7. The Agency and Internal Auditor shall also 
have access to persons and records to execute an internal Agency financial and compliance audit of 
Agency activities and performance. Recipients and subrecipients shall make available all reports and 
records for inspection by the Agency, the Office of State and Budget Management, and the Office of 
the State Auditor for oversight, monitoring, and evaluation purposes.  

061725  BCC Meeting

127



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 8 

 

 
The Agency staff performs oversight through a combination of periodic emails, calls, review of reports and 
deliverables, and site-visits. 

 
23. Repayment of Grants Funds to Agency: In the event that the Recipient, either directly or indirectly 

(i.e. through a sub-recipient or sub-sub-recipient), commits any breach of this Contract which the 
Recipient fails to fully cure within thirty (30) days of its receipt or written notice from the Agency of said 
breach, the Agency may make demand in writing of the Recipient that it will repay the Agency so much 
of the grant funds awarded under the Contract, up to and including 100% of the amount awarded made 
under this Contract. In such an event, the Recipient shall repay said amount to the Agency within thirty 
(30) days of its receipt of said demand for repayment as well as any interest earned by the Recipient 
on said amount. 

 
In addition, if this Contract should be terminated by the parties or otherwise comes to an end prior to 
the time when the Recipient, or its sub-recipients, sub-sub-recipients, etcetera, have expended all the 
funds awarded under this Contract, the Recipient shall, within thirty (30) days of said termination or 
contract end, return to the Agency all such unexpended funds as wells as any interest earned by the 
Recipient on such funds. Furthermore, the Recipient shall, by written contract, ensure that, if its sub- 
recipients enter any sub-sub-recipient agreements involving any of the funds awarded hereunder, all 
such sub-recipient, sub-sub-recipient, and so on are required to repay to their funds so that the 
Recipient can return those unexpended and interest to the Agency within thirty (30) days of the 
termination or another end of this Contract. In any event, the Recipient shall be and remain liable to the 
Agency for the repayment to the Agency of all grant funds that are unexpended (either by the Recipient 
or any sub-recipient, sub-sub-recipient, etcetera) at the time of the termination or other end of this 
Contract, as well as the repayment of any interest earned by the Recipient, sub-recipient, or sub- sub-
recipient and so forth on such funds at that time. 
 
Except as otherwise required by federal law, the Recipient or a sub-recipient shall return to the Agency 
all affected grant funds and interest earned on those funds if any of the following occurs: 

 
• The funds are in the possession or control of the Recipient and are not expended, made subject 

to an encumbrance, or disbursed to a sub-recipient by June 30 immediately following the 
fiscal year in which funds appropriated or as set forth in appropriation. 

• The funds remain unexpended at the time that the Recipient or sub-recipient dissolves, ceases 
operations, or otherwise indicates that it does not intend to spend the funds. 

 
If either of the two identified situations occur, the Recipient shall, within thirty (30) days of the event, 
return to the Agency all such unexpended funds as well as any interest earned by the Recipient or sub- 
recipient on such funds. 
 
Pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 142C-6-23(f), the Office of State Budget and Management has the power to 
suspend disbursement of grant funds, to prevent further use of grant funds already disbursed, and to 
recover grant funds already disbursed for noncompliance with state law and rules adopted.  If the grant 
funds are a pass-through of funds granted by an agency of the United States, the Office of State and 
Budget Management must consult with the Agency and the agency of the United States prior to taking 
actions for suspension and recovery of funds for noncompliance. 
 
The Agency must take appropriate administrative action to recover grant funds if a recipient or 
subrecipient: 
 

a. Is unable to fulfill the obligations of this Contract. 
b. Is unable to accomplish the purposes of the grant award. 
c. Is noncompliant with the reporting requirements. 

061725  BCC Meeting

128



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 9 

 

d. Has inappropriately used grant funds. 
 
The Agency is required to seek the assistant of the Attorney General in the recovery and return of grant 
funds if legal action is required.  Any apparent violations of a criminal law or malfeasance, misfeasance, 
or nonfeasance in connection with the use of grant funds must be reported by the Agency to the Office 
of State Budget and Management, the Attorney General, and the State Bureau of Investigation. 

 
24. Advertising:  Recipient agrees not to use the existence of this contract, the name of the Agency, or 

the name of the State of North Carolina as part of any commercial advertising, without prior written 
approval of the Agency. 

 
25. Compliance: The Recipient shall remain an independent Recipient and as such shall be wholly 

responsible for the scope of work to be performed under the Contract and for the supervision of its 
employees and assistants. The Recipient represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all 
personnel required in performing the services under this Contract. Such employees shall not be 
employees for or have any individual contractual relationship with the Agency. The Recipient shall be 
responsible for compliance with all laws, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations, licensing requirements 
and other regulatory matters that are applicable to the conduct of its business and work performance 
under this Contract, including those of Federal, State, and local agencies having appropriate 
jurisdiction. 

 
The Agency shall take the following measures to ensure that requirements are met, including: 
 

1. Communicating the requirements to Recipient 
2. Requiring a response from Recipient upon a determination of noncompliance 
3. Suspending payments to Recipient until Recipient is in compliance. 

  
Upon determination of noncompliance with requirements of the Contract that are not indicative of 
management deficiencies or criminal activity, Agency shall give Recipient or subrecipient 60 days 
written notice to take corrective action.  If Recipient or subrecipient has not taken the appropriate 
corrective action after the 60-day period, the Agency shall notify the Office of State Budget and 
Management and take the appropriate action(s), such as suspend payments pending negotiation of a 
plan of corrective action, terminate the contract and take action to retrieve unexpended funds or 
unauthorized expenditures, offset future payments with any amounts improperly spent. 
 
When the Agency discovers evidence of management deficiencies or criminal activity leading to the 
misuse of funds, the Agency shall notify the Office of State Budget and Management and take the 
appropriate action(s), such as suspending payments until the matter has been fully investigated and 
corrective action has been taken, terminate the contract and take action to retrieve unexpended funds 
or unauthorized expenditures, report possible violations of criminal statutes involving misuse of state 
property to the State Bureau of Investigation in accordance with N.C.G.S. §143B-920.   

 
26. Grant Close-Out Process: The Recipient agrees to submit to the Agency a complete performance 

and expenditure status (final report) by August 1, 2025 as an upload/attachment via the e-submission 
form. Recipient will be deemed noncompliant if its final report is not submitted by August 1, 2025. Due 
to the additional reporting required in the legislation appropriating the funds, the North Carolina General 
Assembly (NCGA) may be alerted via the DMVA Report the NCGA that a Recipient has not submitted 
a final report by August 1, 2025.  

 
Once the final report is received, the Agency will review and, if no further information or documentation 
is required to be submitted, close out the grant in the Agency’s financial system. The Agency will send 
a written correspondence to the Recipient as official notification that the grant has been closed out. The 
Agency will retain a close out package for five (5) years or until audit exceptions have been resolved, 

061725  BCC Meeting

129



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 10 

 

whichever is longer. 
Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143C-6-23 and applicable law, the Recipient understands and agrees to return 
to the Agency all unspent funds that are unexpended and unobligated as of the expiration date of this 
Contract. 

 
27. Amendments:  This Contract may be amended only by written amendments duly executed by the 

Agency and the Recipient. 
 

28. Termination: Subject to the provisions of paragraph 19 of this contract, this Contract may be 
terminated in accordance with the provisions set forth in Attachment A hereto; however, the reporting, 
monitoring and audit requirements and provisions of the Contract shall survive any such termination. 

 
29. Signature Warranty:  The undersigned represent and warrant that they are authorized to bind their 

principals to the terms of this Contract. 
 
      In Witness, Whereof, the Recipient and the Agency have executed this Contract in triplicate originals, 
with one original being retained by the Recipient and two originals being retained by the Agency. 

 
RECIPIENT: 
 
WATAUGA COUNTY 
 
Signature:    

 

Printed Name:    
 

Title:     
 

Date:    
 

Notary: 

Signature:      
 

Printed Name:       
 

Title:      
 

Date:       
   

My Commission Ends:        
 
 

Official Stamp: 
 
  North Carolina Department of Military and Veterans Affairs 
 
 

Deputy Secretary 

Subject to the physical execution by the Secretary (or Secretary’s assign) of the N.C. Department of Military and Veterans Affairs. 

061725  BCC Meeting

130



. 
Attachment A – General Terms and Conditions 

 
 
 
 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
DEFINITIONS 
 

Unless indicated otherwise from the context, the 
following terms shall have the following meanings 
in this Contract. All definitions are from 9 NCAC 
3M.0102 unless otherwise noted. If the rule or 
statute that is the source of the definition is 
changed by the adopting authority, the change 
shall be incorporated herein: 

(1) "Agency" means every public office, 
public officer or official (State or local, 
elected or appointed), institution, board, 
commission, bureau, council, 
department, authority, or other unit of 
government of the State or of any county, 
unit, special district, or other political 
subdivision of state or local government. 

(2) "Audit" means an examination of records 
or financial accounts to verify their 
accuracy. 

(3) "Compliance Supplement" refers to the 
North Carolina State Compliance 
Supplement, maintained by the State and 
Local Government Finance Division of 
the North Carolina Department of State 
Treasurer that has been developed in 
cooperation with agencies to assist the 
local auditor in identifying program 
compliance requirements and audit 
procedures for testing those 
requirements. 

(4) "Contract" means a legal instrument that 
is used to document a relationship 
between the agency, and a recipient or 
between a recipient and sub-recipient. 

(5) "Contractor" means an entity subject to 
the contractor requirements, as well as 
any entity that would be subject to the 
contractor requirements but for a specific 
statute or rule exempting that entity from 
the contractor requirements. 

(6) "Contractor requirements" means Article 
3, 3C, 3D, 3E, 3G, or 8 of Chapter 143 of 
the General Statutes and related rules. 

(7) "Fiscal Year" means the annual operating 
year of the non-State entity. 

(8) "Financial Statement" means a report 
providing financial data relative to a given 
part of an organization's operations or 
status. 

(9) "Non-State Entity" has the meaning in 
G.S. 143C-1-1(d)(18). 

(10) "Recipient" means a non-State entity that 
receives State financial assistance 
directly from a State agency to carry out 
part of a State program, but does not 
include any non-State entity subject to 
the audit and other reporting 
requirements of the Local Government 
Commission. For purposes of this 
Subchapter, "recipient" also includes a 
non-State entity that would be 
considered a "sub-recipient" pursuant to 
2 CFR 200.93 for Federal funds sub- 
awarded by a recipient State agency, but 
does not include a sub-recipient as 
defined in Item (14) of this Rule. 

(11) "Single Audit" means an audit that 
includes an examination of an 
organization's financial statements, 
internal controls, and compliance with the 
requirements of Federal or State awards. 

(12) "State financial assistance" means State 
funds disbursed as a grant, cooperative 
agreement, noncash contribution, food 
commodities, or direct appropriation to a 
recipient or sub-recipient as defined in 
Item (10) and (14) of this Rule. 

(13) "State Funds" means any funds 
appropriated by the North Carolina General 
Assembly or collected by the State of North 
Carolina. State funds include federal 
financial assistance received by the State 
and transferred or disbursed to non-State 
entities. Both Federal and State funds 
maintain their identity as they are disbursed 
as financial assistance to other 
organizations. 

(14) "Sub-recipient" means a non-State entity 
that receives State financial assistance 
from a recipient to carry out part of a 
State program; but does not include an 
individual that is a beneficiary of such 
program. This definition of "sub-recipient" 
applies throughout these Rules, except 
as used in Item (10) of this Rule. 

(15) "Special Appropriation" means a 
legislative act authorizing the 
expenditure of a designated amount of 
public funds for a specific purpose. 

 
DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 1 

061725  BCC Meeting

131



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 2  

Relationships of the Parties 
 

Independent Contractor: The Recipient is and 
shall be deemed to be an independent contractor 
in the performance of this Contract and as such 
shall be wholly responsible for the work to be 
performed and for the supervision of its 
employees. The Recipient represents that it has, 
or shall secure at its own expense, all personnel 
required in performing the services under this 
agreement. Such employees shall not be 
employees of, or have any individual contractual 
relationship with, the Division. 

 
Subcontracting: The Recipient shall not 
subcontract any of the work contemplated under 
this Contract without prior written approval from 
the Division. Any approved subcontract shall be 
subject to all conditions of this Contract. Only the 
subcontractors or sub Recipients specified in the 
contract documents are to be considered 
approved upon award of the contract. The 
Division shall not be obligated to pay for any work 
performed by any unapproved subcontractor or 
sub Recipient. The Recipient shall be responsible 
for the performance of all its sub Recipients and 
shall not be relieved of any of the duties and 
responsibilities of this Contract. 

 
Sub-Recipients: The Recipient has the 
responsibility to ensure that all Sub-Recipients, if 
any, provide all information necessary to permit 
the Recipient to comply with the standards set 
forth in this Contract. 

 
Assignment: No assignment of the Recipient's 
obligations or the Recipient's right to receive 
payment hereunder shall be permitted. However, 
upon written request approved by the issuing 
purchasing authority, the State may: 

(a) Forward the Recipient's payment 
check(s) directly to any person or entity 
designated by the Recipient, or 

(b) Include any person or entity designated 
by Recipient as a joint payee on the 
Recipient's payment check(s). 

In no event shall such approval and action 
obligate the State to anyone other than the 
Recipient and the Recipient shall remain 
responsible for fulfillment of all contract 
obligations. 

 
Beneficiaries: Except as herein specifically 
provided otherwise, this Contract shall inure to 

the benefit of and be binding upon the parties 
hereto and their respective successors. It is 
expressly understood and agreed that the 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this 
Contract, and all rights of action relating to such 
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the 
Division and the named Recipient. Nothing 
contained in this document shall give or allow any 
claim or right of action whatsoever by any other 
third person. It is the express intention of the 
Division and Recipient that any such person or 
entity, other than the Division or the Recipient, 
receiving services or benefits under this Contract 
shall be deemed an incidental beneficiary only. 

 
Indemnity 

 
Indemnification: The Recipient agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Division, the 
State of North Carolina, and any of their officers, 
agents and employees, from any claims of third 
parties arising out of any act or omission of the 
Recipient in connection with the performance of 
this Contract to the extent permitted by law. 

 
 

Default and Termination 
 

Termination by Mutual Consent: The Parties 
may terminate this Contract by mutual consent 
with 60 days’ notice to the other party, or as 
otherwise provided by law. 

 
Termination for Cause: If, through any cause, 
the Recipient shall fail to fulfill its obligations 
under this Contract in a timely and proper 
manner, the Division shall have the right to 
terminate this Contract by giving written notice to 
the Recipient and specifying the effective date 
thereof. In that event, all finished or unfinished 
deliverable items prepared by the Recipient 
under this Contract shall, at the option of the 
Division, become its property and the Recipient 
shall be entitled to receive just and equitable 
compensation for any satisfactory work 
completed on such materials, minus any payment 
or compensation previously made. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing provision, the 
Recipient shall not be relieved of liability to the 
Division for damages sustained by the Division by 
virtue of the Recipient’s breach of this agreement, 
and the Division may withhold any payment due 
the Recipient for the purpose of setoff until such 
time as the exact amount of damages due the 

061725  BCC Meeting

132



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 3  

Division from such breach can be determined. 
The filing of a petition for bankruptcy by the 
Recipient shall be an act of default under this 
Contract. 

 
Waiver of Default: Waiver by the Division of any 
default or breach in compliance with the terms of 
this Contract by the Recipient shall not be 
deemed a waiver of any subsequent default or 
breach and shall not be construed to be 
modification of the terms of this Contract unless 
stated to be such in writing, signed by an 
authorized representative of the Division and the 
Recipient and attached to the contract. 

 
Availability of Funds: The parties to this 
Contract agree and understand that the payment 
of the sums specified in this Contract is 
dependent and contingent upon and subject to 
the appropriation, allocation, and availability of 
funds to the Division for the purpose set forth in 
this Contract. 

 
Force Majeure: Neither party shall be deemed to 
be in default of its obligations hereunder if and so 
long as it is prevented from performing such 
obligations by any act of war, hostile foreign 
action, nuclear explosion, riot, strikes, civil 
insurrection, earthquake, hurricane, tornado, or 
other catastrophic natural event or act of God. 

 
Survival of Promises: All promises, 
requirements, terms, conditions, provisions, 
representations, guarantees, and warranties 
contained herein shall survive the contract 
expiration or termination date unless specifically 
provided otherwise herein, or unless superseded 
by applicable federal or State statutes of 
limitation. 

 
Compliance with Applicable Laws 

 
Compliance with Laws: The Recipient shall 
comply with all laws, ordinances, codes, rules, 
regulations, and licensing requirements that are 
applicable to the conduct of its business or that 
are applicable to non-State entities receiving 
State funds (specifically but not limited to 
N.C.G.S. Chapter 143C Part 3. and 09 NCAC 
03M), including those federal, state, and local 
agencies having jurisdiction and/or authority. 

 
An application funded with the release of Federal 

or State funds through a grant award does not 

constitute, or imply, compliance with Federal 
regulations or State law. Recipients are 
responsible for ensuring that their activities 
comply with all applicable Federal regulations 
and State law. 

 
Equal Employment Opportunity: The Recipient 
shall comply with all federal and State laws 
relating to equal employment opportunity. 

 
Confidentiality 

 
Confidentiality: Subject to public records laws, 
any information, data, instruments, documents, 
studies or reports given to or prepared or 
assembled by the Recipient under this agreement 
shall be kept as confidential and not divulged or 
made available to any individual or organization 
without the prior written approval of the Division. 
The Recipient acknowledges that in receiving, 
storing, processing or otherwise dealing with any 
confidential information it will safeguard and not 
further disclose the information except as 
otherwise provided in this Contract. 

 
Oversight 

 
Access to Persons and Records: The State 
Auditor and the Division, as the State funding 
authority, shall have access to persons and 
records as a result of all contracts or grants 
entered into by State agencies or political 
subdivisions in accordance with N.C.G.S 147- 
64.7 and N.C.G.S. 143-49(9). 

 
Record Retention: Records shall not be 
destroyed, purged or disposed of in violation of 
North Carolina state agency records retention 
policies. State basic records retention policy 
requires all grant records to be retained for a 
minimum of five years or until all audit exceptions 
have been resolved, whichever is longer. If the 
contract is subject to Federal policy and 
regulations, record retention may be longer than 
five years since records must be retained for a 
period of three years following submission of the 
final Federal Financial Status Report, if 
applicable, or three years following the 
submission of a revised final Federal Financial 
Status Report. Also, if any litigation, claim, 
negotiation, audit, disallowance action, or other 
action involving this Contract has been started 
before expiration of the five-year retention period 
described above, the records must be retained 

061725  BCC Meeting

133



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 4  

until completion of the action and resolution of all 
issues which arise from it, or until the end of the 
regular five-year period described above, 
whichever is later. 

 
Miscellaneous 

 
Choice of Law: The validity of this Contract and 
any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights 
and duties of the parties to this Contract, are 
governed by the laws of North Carolina. The 
Recipient, by signing this Contract, agrees and 
submits, solely for matters concerning this 
Contract, to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts 
of North Carolina and agrees, solely for such 
purpose, that the exclusive venue for any legal 
proceedings shall be Wake County, North 
Carolina. The place of this Contract and all 
transactions and agreements relating to it, and 
their situs and forum, shall be Wake County, 
North Carolina, where all matters, whether 
sounding in contract or tort, relating to the validity, 
construction, interpretation, and enforcement 
shall be determined. 

 
Amendment: This Contract may not be amended 
orally or by performance. Any amendment must 
be made in written form and executed by duly 
authorized representatives of the Division and the 
Recipient. 

 
Severability: In the event that a court of 
competent jurisdiction holds that a provision or 
requirement of this Contract violates any 
applicable law, each such provision or 
requirement shall continue to be enforced to the 
extent it is not in violation of law or is not 
otherwise unenforceable and all other provisions 
and requirements of this Contract shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 
Headings: The Section and Paragraph headings 
in these General Terms and Conditions are not 
material parts of the agreement and should not 
be used to construe the meaning thereof. 

 
Time of the Essence: Time is of the essence in 
the performance of this Contract. 

 
Care of Property: The Recipient agrees that it 
shall be responsible for the proper custody and 
care of any property furnished to it for use in 
connection with the performance of this Contract 
and will reimburse the Division for loss of, or 

damage to, such property. At the termination of 
this Contract, the Recipient shall contact the 
Division for instructions as to the disposition of 
such property and shall comply with these 
instructions. 

 
Travel Expenses: Reimbursement to the 
Recipient for travel mileage, meals, lodging and 
other travel expenses incurred in the 
performance of this Contract shall be reasonable 
and supported by documentation. State rates 
should be used as guidelines. International travel 
shall not be reimbursed under this Contract. 

 
Sales/Use Tax Refunds: If eligible, the Recipient 
and all sub Recipients shall: (a) ask the North 
Carolina Agency of Revenue for a refund of all 
sales and use taxes paid by them in the 
performance of this Contract, pursuant to 
N.C.G.S. 105-164.14; and (b) exclude all 
refundable sales and use taxes from all 
reportable expenditures before the expenses are 
entered in their reimbursement reports. 

 
Advertising: The Recipient shall not use the 
award of this Contract as a part of any news 
release or commercial advertising. 

 
Executive Order 24: By Executive Order 24, 
issued by Governor Perdue, and N.C.G.S. 133- 
32, it is unlawful for any vendor or contractor ( i.e. 
architect, bidder, contractor, construction 
manager, design professional, engineer, 
landlord, offeror, seller, subcontractor, supplier, 
or vendor), to make gifts or to give favors to any 
State employee of the Governor’s Cabinet 
Agencies (i.e., Administration, Commerce, 
Correction, Crime Control and Public Safety, 
Cultural Resources, Environment and Natural 
Resources, Health and Human Services, 
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, 
Revenue, Transportation, and the Office of the 
Governor). This prohibition covers those vendors 
and contractors who: 
(1) have a contract with a governmental agency; 
or 
(2) have performed under such a contract within 
the past year; or 
(3) anticipate bidding on such a contract in the 
future. 

 
For additional information regarding the specific 
requirements and exemptions, vendors and 

061725  BCC Meeting

134



DMVA GPCVO GRANT CONTRACT PACKET 5  

contractors are encouraged to review Executive 
Order 24 and N.C.G.S. 133-32. 

 
Executive Order 24 also encouraged and invited 
other State Agencies to implement the 
requirements and prohibitions of the Executive 
Order to their agencies. Vendors and contractors 
should contact other State Agencies to determine 
if those agencies have adopted Executive Order 
24. 

 
The Iran Divestment Act: Pursuant to G.S. 147- 
86.59, any vendor identified as engaging in 
investment activities in Iran, as determined by 

appearing on the current Final Divestment List 
created by the NC State Treasurer as required by 
G.S. 147-86.58, is ineligible to contract with the 
State of North Carolina or any political subdivision 
of the State. Execution of this contract by the 
undersigned vendor constitutes vendor’s 
certification that (a) Vendor does not appear on 
the    Treasurer’s    Divestment  List   found at: 
https://www.nctreasurer.com/inside-the- 
Agency/OpenGovernment/Pages/Iran- 
Divestment-Act-Resources.aspx, and (b) that 
vendor will not utilize any subcontractor that is 
identified on such list to perform work under this 
contract. 

 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

135

http://www.nctreasurer.com/inside-the-


Watauga County 
Attachment B – Scope of Work 

 
Section 1. Purpose of Scope of Work.  
 
 Recipient details below how Recipient will utilize the grant funds in compliance with the specific 
purpose(s) as stated in the legislation that appropriated the funding.  
 
Section 2. Project Implementation.  
 
The Recipient shall carry out the Project as follows: 

 
Scope of Work: 

 
 
Increasing outreach in the community that is necessary  to provide services to veterans 

• Produce and distribute printed information that informs and connects veterans and their families of/to resources 
• Advertising for program outreach 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Recipient shall undertake and complete all work described in the Contract in accordance with the procedures and the 
guidelines. The documents, and any subsequent amendments or revisions thereto, are herewith incorporated by reference, 
and are on file with and approved by the Agency in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract. Nothing 
shall be construed under the terms of this Contract by the Agency or the Recipient that shall cause any conflict with Agency, 
State, or Federal statutes, rules, or regulations. 
 
 
 
Signature ___________________________________________________ Date ______________________ 

Printed Name ___________________________________________________ 

Title  ___________________________________________________ 

 
DMVA GPCVO CONTRACT PACKET – 2025 UPDATE 1 

061725  BCC Meeting

136



DMVA GPCVO CONTRACT PACKET – 2025 UPDATE 
  

    Attachment C – Budget for GPCVO    WATAUGA COUNTY 
 

 
The total cost of the Project approved by the Agency is $18,288.98 as set forth in the Project Description 
and Budget, incorporated into this Contract as Attachments B and C. The Agency shall not provide more 
than the identified amounts for eligible expenses.  
 
Below are general categories to serve as a guide for preparing the Budget for the grant. Recipients may 
delete categories as well as add categories.  
 
The following budget is for the time period beginning March 3, 2025 and ending July 31, 2025. 
 

 

Period of Performance. This Contract shall commence upon the date of execution, unless specific written 
authorization from the Agency to the contrary is received. The period of performance for all expenditures 
shall extend from March 3, 2025 to July 31, 2025. Any requests to change the Period of Performance must 
be made in accordance with the policies and procedures established by the Agency. Recipient shall 
commence, carry on, and complete the approved Project with all practicable dispatch, in a sound, 
economical, and efficient manner. 
 
With regard to the information contained herein, I certify that the budget has been approved by the  
Recipient’s Chief Fiscal Officer, CEO, or Board Chair. 
 
Signature ______________________________________________  Date ____________________ 
Printed Name ______________________________________________ 
Title ______________________________________________ 

 
EXPENDITURE DESCRIPTION 

 
AMOUNT 

Increasing outreach in the community that is necessary  to provide 
services to veterans 

• Produce and distribute printed information that informs and 
connects veterans and their families of/to resource 

•  Advertising for program outreach 
 

 

$ 18,288.98 

  Total Budgeted Expenditures $  18,288.98 

061725  BCC Meeting

137



DMVA GPCVO CONTRACT PACKET 
           

 

Attachment D – Notice of Certain Reporting and Audit Requirements 
 

Recipient shall comply with all rules and reporting requirements established by statute or administrative 
rules. For convenience, the requirements of 9 N.C.A.C. subchapter 3M.0205 are set forth in this Attachment. 

 
Reporting Thresholds. There are three reporting thresholds established for Recipients and Subrecipients 
receiving State funds. The reporting thresholds are: 
 

(1) Less than $25,000 – A recipient that receives, uses, or expends State funds in an amount 
less than twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) within its fiscal year must comply with the 
reporting requirements established by 9 N.C.A.C. Subchapter 3M including: 
 
(A) A certification completed by the recipient board and management stating that the 

State funds were received, held, used, or expended for the purposes for which they 
were granted; and 

(B) An accounting of the State funds received, held, used, or expended. 
 

All reporting requirements shall be filed with the funding agency, in the format and method 
specified by the agency, within three (3) months after the end of the recipient's fiscal year 
in which the State funds were received. Audits must be provided to the funding agency 
within six (6) months after the end of the recipient’s fiscal year. 

 
(2) $25,000 up to $500,000 - A recipient that receives, uses, or expends State funds in an 

amount of at least twenty-five thousand ($25,000) and up to five hundred thousand dollars 
($500,000) within its fiscal year must comply with the reporting requirements established 
by this Subchapter including: 
 
(A) A certification completed by the recipient board and management stating that the 

State funds were received, held, used, or expended for the purposes for which they 
were granted; 

(B) An accounting of the State funds received, held, used, or expended; and 
(C) A description of activities and accomplishments undertaken by the recipient with 

the State funds, including reporting on any performance measures established in 
the Contract. 
 

All reporting requirements shall be filed with the funding agency, in the format and method 
specified by the agency, within three (3) months after the end of the recipient's fiscal year 
in which the State funds were received. Audits must be provided to the funding agency 
within six (6) months after the end of the recipient’s fiscal year. 

 
(3) Greater than $500,000 – A recipient that receives, uses, or expends State funds and in the 

amount, greater than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) within its fiscal year must 
comply with the reporting requirements established by this Subchapter including: 
 
(A) A certification completed by the recipient board and management stating that the 

State funds were received, used, or expended for the purposes for which they were 
granted; 

(B) An audit prepared and completed by a licensed Certified Public Accountant for the 
recipient consistent with the reporting requirement of this Subchapter; and 

(C) A description of activities and accomplishments undertaken by the recipient with 
the State funds, including reporting on any performance measures established in 
the Contract. 
 

Attachment D - Page 1 of 2 

061725  BCC Meeting

138



DMVA GPCVO CONTRACT PACKET 
           

 

 
(D) A single or program-specific audit prepared and completed in accordance with 

Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards, also known as the Yellow 
Book.   

 
All reporting requirements shall be filed with both the funding agency and the Office of the 
State Auditor within nine (9) months after the end of the recipient's fiscal year in which 
the State funds were received.  

 
Other Provisions: 

 
1. Unless prohibited by law, the costs of audits made in accordance with the provisions of 9 N.C.A.C. 

3M.0205 are allowable charges to State and Federal awards. The charges may be considered a 
direct cost or an allocated indirect cost, as determined in accordance with cost principles outlined 
in the federal Office of Budget and Management (OMB) Circular A-87. The cost of any audit not 
conducted in accordance with this Subchapter is unallowable and shall not be charged to State or 
Federal grants. 

 
2. The audit requirements in 9 N.C.A.C. Subchapter 3M do not replace a request for submission of 

audit reports by grantor agencies in connection with requests for direct appropriation of state aid 
by the General Assembly. 

 
3. Notwithstanding the provisions of 9 N.C.A.C. Subchapter 3M, a Recipient may satisfy the reporting 

requirements of Part (a)(3)(B) of this Rule by submitting a copy of the report required under the 
federal law with respect to the same funds. 

 
4. All Recipients and Subrecipients shall use the forms of the Office of State Budget and Management 

and of the Office of the State Auditor in making reports to the awarding agencies and the Office of 
the State Auditor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment D - Page 2 of 2 

Notice of Certain Reporting and Audit Requirements 

061725  BCC Meeting

139



Attachment E – Certification of No Overdue Tax Debts 
 
 
 
 

Date of Certification 
 
To: State Division Head and Chief Fiscal Officer 

 
Certification: 

 
We certify that ___________________________     does not have any overdue tax debts, as defined by 
N.C.G.S. 105-243.1, at the federal, State, or local level. We further understand that any person who makes 
a false statement in violation of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143C-6-23(c) is guilty of a criminal offense punishable as 
provided therein. 

 
 
Sworn Statement: 
  and  being 
Name of Board Chair Name of Authorizing Official 

 
duly sworn, say that we are the Board Chair and  , respectively, of 

Title of Authorizing Official 
 

  of  in the State of  ; and that the 
Name of County City State 

 
foregoing certification is true, accurate and complete to the best of our knowledge and was made and 
subscribed by us. We also acknowledge and understand that any misuse of State funds will be reported to 
the appropriate authorities for further action. 

 
 

Board Chair 
 
 

Authorizing Official 
 
Sworn to and subscribed before me on the day of the date of said certification. 

 
 
 

My Commission Expires:    
 

(Notary Signature and Seal) 
 
 
If there are any questions, please contact the state agency that provided your grant. If needed, you may 
contact the North Carolina Office of State Budget and Management: NCGrants@osbm.nc.gov - (919) 
807-4795. 

 
 

DMVA GPCVO CONTRACT PACKET 1 

061725  BCC Meeting

140

mailto:NCGrants@osbm.nc.gov


Attachment G – Federal Certification Regarding Lobbying 
 
 
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

 
1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with 
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federally 
funded contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard 
Form SF-LL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities,” in accordance with its instructions. 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document 
for sub awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and 
cooperative agreements) who received Federal funds of $100,000.00 or more and that all sub-recipients 
shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering this transaction 
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, US Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall 
be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000.00 and not more than $100,000.00 for each such failure. 

 
 
 
 

Signature Title 
 
 
Entity/Organization Date 

 
Certification signature should be same as contract signature. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DMVA GPCVO CONTRACT PACKET 1 

061725  BCC Meeting

141



GPCVO 
Attachment H – Accounting of State Financial Assistance Less Than 
$25,000 
 
Who must complete this form: This information should be completed and submitted by each recipient 
that receives, holds, uses, or expends State financial assistance in an amount less than twenty-five 
thousand dollars ($25,000) within its fiscal year. 

When must this form be submitted: All reporting requirements shall be submitted to the funding 
agency no later than August 1, 2025. 

Where must this form be filed: The completed form should be uploaded as an attachment to an 
Electronic Submissions Form (E-Submission Form).  

 
 

1. Organization: 
Organization Name:  
Tax Identification #:  

Organization Fiscal Year End: 
(MMDDYYYY) 

 

Mailing Address (street, city, 
state, zip code): 

 

Phone Number 
(area code + number): 

 

Fax Number 
(area code + number): 

 

Contact Person:  
Contact Person Title:  
E-Mail Address:  

 
2. Preparer: [PLEASE INDICATE WHO PREPARED THIS 

INFORMATION BY CHECKING] 
 Employee  CPA/Accountant 

Name of Preparer:  
Phone Number:  

 
3. Please provide a list of the Organization’s Board Members: [ADD ADDITIONAL PAGES, IF NEEDED] 

Name of Board Member Board Member Title 

 
4. Restrictions and Use of Grant Funds: 
What restrictions are placed upon the grant by the grant award document? If the grant award document 
does not identify specific restrictions, please identify the intended use of the grant funds as included in 
the award document. 
Restrictions: 

a. Does the organization have a Conflict of Interest policy?  yes  no 
b. Is the organization a for profit entity?  yes  no 

 
5. Sub-grants: 
a. Did the organization sub-grant or pass down any funds to another organization?  yes  no 
If yes, answer the following:  
b. Name of Sub-Recipient c. Program Name d. Amount Sub-granted 

   
   

 

061725  BCC Meeting

142



6. Financial Accounting: [Complete based on total dollars received, used or expended from this 
grant during this fiscal year] 
a. Receipts 

Funding State Agency Grant Title Total Receipts 
Office of State Budget & 
Management 

  

b. Expenditures 
Category Dollar Amount 

Salary/Wages/Benefits  

Contracted Services  

Supplies and Materials  

Travel (e.g. employee mileage, meals, hotel)  

Communication Costs (e.g. telephone, postage, freight)  

Occupancy Costs (e.g. rent, utilities, repair and maintenance)  

Advertising and Promotions  

Insurance and Bonding  

Capital Outlay (e.g. furniture/equipment, data processing)  

Grants and Contracts  

Fundraising  

Other    (provide    description    here):                   

Total Expenditures  
 

Unexpended cash balance (do NOT use with reimbursement grants) 
 

Beginning of the year cash balance  
End of the year cash balance  

 

 

  
  

   7. Required Reporting, per Sesson Law 2023-134: 

       

      a.  The unduplicated number of veterans served by the grant recipient:  _________ 

 

      b.  The number of times each individual veteran was served by the grant recipient:  _________ 

 

      c.  The services that were provided to veterans using the GPCVO grant funds awarded: 

 

 

 

 

 
    

 

061725  BCC Meeting

143



 
 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AND VETERANS AFFAIRS 
 
 

Date 
 

Certification: 
 

We certify that the accompanying reports represent all financial activity related to the receipt, use, and expenditure of 
funds granted by the State of North Carolina to  for the fiscal year ended    

Organization MM/DD/YYYY 
and that the expenditures reported were for the purposes appropriated by the General Assembly or collected by the State 
of North Carolina and in compliance with the applicable laws, regulations, and terms and conditions of the grant 
documents. 

 
The accompanying reports are presented on the cash basis of accounting and are supported by our financial records. 

 
We understand that if it is found the expenditures reported were not used for the purpose(s) appropriated, that the grantor 
agency shall report such findings to the Attorney General, the Office of State Budget and Management, the Office of the 
State Auditor, and the Office of the State Controller. Any apparent violations of a criminal law or malfeasance, 
misfeasance, or nonfeasance in connection with the use of State funds shall be reported by the Office of State Budget 
and Management to the Attorney General and State Bureau of Investigation. 

 
Sworn Statement: 

 

  being duly sworn, say that we are the  , respectively, of 
Name of Authorizing Official Title of the Authorizing Official 

 
  of  in the  ; and that the foregoing certification is 
Name of Organization City State 

 
true, accurate and complete to the best of our knowledge and was made and subscribed by us. We also acknowledge 
and understand that any misuse of State funds will be reported to the appropriate authorities for further action. 

 
 

Signature – Fiscal Officer Date 
 
 

Printed Name 
 
 
 

Signature – Authorizing Official Date 
 
 

Printed Name 
 

Sworn to and subscribed before me on the day of the date of said certification. 
 
 

(Notary Signature and Seal) 
 
My Commission Expires:    

 

Page 1 of 1 

Attachment J 
State Grant Certification and Sworn Statement 

061725  BCC Meeting

144



NC Office of the 
State Controller 

(IRS Form W-9 will not be 
accepted in lieu of this form) 
*Denotes a Required Field

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
SUBSTITUTE W-9 FORM 

Request for Taxpayer Identification Number 

Please complete the “Modification to Existing Vendor Records” section below If there have been any changes to the following:  Tax Identification Number (TIN), 
Legal Name, Business Name, Remittance Address 

Return to the NC State Agency from which you are requesting payment. 

Se
ct

io
n 

1
– 

Ta
xp

ay
er

 Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Se

ct
io

n 
2 

-C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 

*1.   Social Security Number (SSN), 
          OR 

          Employer Identification Number (EIN), 
 OR 

          Individual Taxpayer Identification Number (ITIN) 
*2. 

Please select the appropriate Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN, SSN, 
or ITIN) type and enter your 9-digit ID number.  The U.S. Taxpayer 
Identification Number is being requested per U.S. Tax Law. Failure to 
provide this information in a timely manner could prevent or delay 
payment to you or require The State of NC to withhold 24% for backup 
withholding tax. 

*4. Legal Name (as shown on your income tax return): 3. Dunn & Bradstreet Universal Numbering System (DUNS) (see
instructions) 

5. Business Name/DBA/Disregarded Entity Name, if different from
Legal Name:

Contact Information 
*6. Legal Address 7. Remittance Address (Location specifically used for payment that is

different from Legal Address, if applicable)
*Address Line 1:  Address Line 1: 

  Address Line 2: Address Line 2: 

*City *State *Zip (9 digit)  City State Zip (9 digit) 

*County  County 

*8. Contact Name:
*9. Phone Number:

10. Fax Number:
11. Email Address:

*12. Entity Type *13. Entity
         Classification 

14. Exemptions (see
instructions)

   Individual/Sole Proprietor/Single-member LLC     C-Corporation S-Corporation

          Partnership                       Trust/Estate    Other___________________________ 

          Limited liability company.  Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, 
  S=S corporation,  P=Partnership) ________ 

Note:  Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-
member owner. Do not check LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is 
disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is another LLC that is not 
disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC 
that is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification 
of its owner. 

Exempt payee code (if any): 

Exemption from FATCA 
reporting code (if any): 

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 
1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and 
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service 

(IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding because of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer 
subject to backup withholding, and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined later in general instructions), and 
4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicting that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions:  Please refer to the IRS Form W-9 located on the IRS Website (https://www.irs.gov/):    

*Printed Name: *Printed Title:

*Authorized U.S.
Signature: 

* Date: 

Medical Services

Legal/Attorney 
Services
NC Local Govt
Federal Govt

NC State Agency

Other Govt

Other (specify)

061725  BCC Meeting

145

https://www.irs.gov/
pwstewart1
Typewritten Text
(DO NOT TYPE OR WRITE IN THIS FIELD)

pwstewart1
Typewritten Text
(PRESS THE TAB KEY TO ENTER EACH NUMBER)

pwstewart1
Typewritten Text
(PRESS THE TAB KEY TO ENTER EACH NUMBER)

pwstewart1
Typewritten Text
REV 01/2019



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

146



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

BOARD OF ELECTIONS VOTING EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Matt Snyder, Board of Elections Director, will request the Board formally approve the 
purchase of 31 DS300 and 28 Express Votes from ES&S/Printelect for $319,730.25, which does 
include shipping; 19 VC EZ Carts from Printelect and 2 VC EZ Carts from Caldwell County Board 
of Elections for $38,825, does not include shipping; and 12 Balotars from ES&S/Printelect for 
$71,570, does not include shipping.  As shipping is not included in two (2) of three (3), Mr. Snyder 
will provide the total cost for shipping at a later date.  If the amount for shipping exceeds $15,000, 
the Board would need to authorize the County Manager to pay the shipping costs not to exceed 
$50,000.    

Board action is required to formally approve the $430,125.25 for:  

1. 31 DS300 and 28 Express Votes from ES&S/Printelect for $319,730.25
2. 19 VC EZ Carts from Printelect and 2 VC EZ Carts from Caldwell County Board of

Elections for $38,825
3. 12 Balotars from ES&S/Printelect for $71,570
4. Authorize the County Manager to pay the shipping cost once determined not to exceed

$50,000.

061725  BCC Meeting

147



061725  BCC Meeting

148



061725  BCC Meeting

149



061725  BCC Meeting

150



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Reports from May 2025 
and be available for questions and discussion. The report is for information only; therefore, no 
action is required. 
 
  

061725  BCC Meeting

151



061725  BCC Meeting

152



 
AGENDA ITEM 11: 

TAX MATTERS  

B. Refunds and Releases  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Rash will present the Refunds and Releases Reports.   

Board action is required to accept the Refunds and Releases Reports. 

  

061725  BCC Meeting

153



WATAUGA COUNTY

RELEASES - 05/01/2025 TO 05/30/2025

Report generated: 05/30/2025 13:45
User:             Tyler.Rash
Program ID:       tncrarpt

Page      1

                                                                 

                                                   CAT YEAR     BILL  EFF DATE             VALUE
                                                   PROPERTY                  JUR
    OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS                         REASON                         REF NO          CHARGE                     AMOUNT

  1860980 AIN'T LIFE GRAND ESTATES, LLC            RE  2024    16342 05/22/2025           12,500  F07                          6.25
          417 LAKEVIEW DR                          1971-69-5448-000          F07                  G01                         39.75
                                                   REFUND RELEASE                 12130                             ---------------
          HAMPSTEAD, NC 28443                      HOUSE SITE CHARGED ON INCORRECT PARCEL.                                    46.00

  1853707 LANKFORD, JERROD LEE                     RE  2024    43203 05/28/2025                0  F02                        204.24
          LANKFORD, LAUREN                         2920-34-2472-000          F02                  G01                      1,082.47
          708 BIRCH ARBOR CIR                      TAX RELEASES                   12131           SWF                        102.87
                                                   PROPERTY OWNED BY DOT EFFECTIVE 1/1/24.                          ---------------
          RALEIGH, NC 27604                                                                                                1,389.58

DETAIL SUMMARY                    COUNT: 2                  RELEASES - TOTAL              12,500                           1,435.58

061725  BCC Meeting

154



WATAUGA COUNTY

RELEASES - 05/01/2025 TO 05/30/2025

Report generated: 05/30/2025 13:45
User:             Tyler.Rash
Program ID:       tncrarpt

Page      2

                                                                 

                                                      RELEASES - CHARGE SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

                                   YEAR CAT CHARGE                                         AMOUNT

                                   2024 RE  F02    BOONE FIRE RE                           204.24
                                   2024 RE  F07    COVE CREEK FIRE RE                        6.25
                                   2024 RE  G01    WATAUGA COUNTY RE                     1,122.22
                                   2024 RE  SWF    SANITATION USER FEE                     102.87
                                                                                  _______________
                                                                       2024 TOTAL        1,435.58

                                                                    SUMMARY TOTAL        1,435.58

061725  BCC Meeting

155



WATAUGA COUNTY

RELEASES - 05/01/2025 TO 05/30/2025

Report generated: 05/30/2025 13:45
User:             Tyler.Rash
Program ID:       tncrarpt

Page      3

                                                                 

                                                   RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

                                   JUR  YEAR CHARGE                                        AMOUNT

                                   F02  2024 F02    BOONE FIRE RE                          204.24
                                   F02  2024 G01    WATAUGA COUNTY RE                    1,082.47
                                   F02  2024 SWF    SANITATION USER FEE                    102.87
                                                                                  _______________
                                                                       F02  TOTAL        1,389.58

                                   F07  2024 F07    COVE CREEK FIRE RE                       6.25
                                   F07  2024 G01    WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       39.75
                                                                                  _______________
                                                                       F07  TOTAL           46.00

                                                                    SUMMARY TOTAL        1,435.58

061725  BCC Meeting

156



 

AGENDA ITEM 11: 

TAX MATTERS  

C. Resolution Advancing the Scheduled Pentennial Reappraisal 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County’s last property revaluation was 2022 and the next revaluation is scheduled for 2027.  
The Board needs to formally adopt the resolution advancing the scheduled pentennial reappraisal 
in accordance with NCGS 105-286 (a)(3).   
 
Board adoption is required to adopt the resolution as presented.   
  

061725  BCC Meeting

157



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

 

RESOLUTION ADVANCING THE SCHEDULED PENTENNIAL REAPPRAISAL 

 

 WHEREAS, G.S. 105-286(a)(2) provides that any county so desiring may conduct reappraisal of 

real property earlier than required by the octennial plan outlined by G.S. 105-286(a)(1), and;  

 WHEREAS, Watauga County’s next reappraisal in accordance with G.S. 105-286(a)(1) is 

scheduled to take effect on January 1, 2027, and; 

 WHEREAS, Watauga County desires to advance future reappraisals from five to four years in 

accordance with G.S. 105-286(a)(3); 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Watauga County’s next reappraisal of real property shall be 

effective on January 1, 2027, and establishes that future scheduled reappraisals shall occur every four 

years thereafter. 

ADOPTED this the 17th day of June, 2025. 

 

 

              _______________________________________ 

      Braxton Eggers, Chairman 

      Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________       (SEAL)  

Monica Harrison 

Deputy Clerk to the Board         

061725  BCC Meeting

158



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

TAX MATTERS  

D. Proposal for Business Personal Property Audit Services

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Rash will request the Board approve GOVTAX’s contract in the amount of $25,500 for 34 
business personal property audits.  The contract is less than the previous provider.  Adequate funds 
have been budgeted in FY 2026 to cover the expense.   

Board action is required to approve the contract with GOVTAX in the amount of $25,500 for 34 
business personal property audits. 

061725  BCC Meeting

159



 
 

Government Tax Advisors, LLC 
www.GovTaxAdvisors.com | info@GovTaxAdvisors.com | (704) 840-8972 

Proposal for Business Personal Property Audit Services 
 

Prepared for:  Watauga County   

Prepared by:  Chip Bourgeault, President   

Date:   04/18/2025 

 

Executive Summary 
 

Government Tax Advisors, LLC (GovTax) is pleased to offer our services in support of Watauga 
County’s mission to ensure fairness and equity in business personal property taxation. We 
specialize in conducting professional, transparent, and respectful audits that identify 
underreported property, return revenue to the county, and uphold the integrity of the tax system. 

GovTax was founded by Chip Bourgeault & Ryan Vincent. Chip is a 23-year veteran in the field of 
property tax auditing, with extensive experience managing county audit programs throughout 
North Carolina. Ryan is the owner of Vincent Valuations, a North Carolina-based appraisal firm 
specializing in real estate revaluation services and brings 18 years of experience assisting counties 
with property assessment. With deep operational expertise and longstanding relationships with tax 
assessors across the state, GovTax combines trusted technical knowledge with a tailored, 
relationship-first approach. 

We propose a collaborative audit program designed to focus on the most meaningful segments of 
the business personal property tax base. Based on typical program performance and local tax rates, 
similar engagements often yield a return of three to four times the cost of the audit program. 

We would be honored to serve as an extension of your office and a trusted partner in advancing 
fairness and equity in taxation throughout Watauga County. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Chip Bourgeault 
President, Government Tax Advisors, LLC 
  

061725  BCC Meeting

160



 
 

Government Tax Advisors, LLC 
www.GovTaxAdvisors.com | info@GovTaxAdvisors.com | (704) 840-8972 

About GovTax 
 

GovTax is a professional services firm focused exclusively on supporting local governments with 
business personal property tax audit services. We partner with counties to improve taxpayer 
compliance, recover underreported value, and promote fairness and equity in the local tax base. 

Our firm was founded to combine deep audit expertise with a relationship-centered approach, 
placing a strong emphasis on professionalism, transparency, and client service. Our programs are 
tailored to the specific goals and tax base of each county, and we work collaboratively with local tax 
offices to ensure alignment, trust, and consistency throughout every engagement. Every audit 
program is led directly by GovTax leadership to ensure high-quality results and responsive 
communication. 

 

Leadership Background 
 

Chip Bourgeault, President of GovTax, brings over 23 years of audit experience, with extensive 
expertise in North Carolina business personal property tax. He has managed the largest audit 
programs for counties across the state and has personally led teams performing thousands of 
audits, developed best-practice workflows, trained audit staff, and maintained trusted partnerships 
with tax assessors and their teams. 

His background includes hands-on oversight of every stage of the audit process, from account 
selection and taxpayer outreach to audit discovery and defense before local Boards and the 
Property Tax Commission. He has extensive experience auditing businesses of all sizes and 
industries and possesses deep knowledge of nationwide compliance practices, industry trends, and 
state and local tax laws affecting business personal property. 

 

Our Mission 
 

GovTax exists to help counties achieve fairness and equity in taxation by ensuring compliance 
through professional, respectful audits. We operate as a seamless extension of your office, 
upholding the standards of your team while delivering high-quality results. 

 

 

 

061725  BCC Meeting

161



 
 

Government Tax Advisors, LLC 
www.GovTaxAdvisors.com | info@GovTaxAdvisors.com | (704) 840-8972 

Our Approach 
 

Our audit philosophy is built on professionalism, transparency, and partnership. We recognize that 
we are acting as an extension of the Tax Assessor’s Office, and we take that responsibility seriously. 
Our approach is designed to balance thoroughness with respect, ensuring that taxpayers are 
treated fairly while delivering accurate and defensible audit results to the County. 

Key elements of our approach include: 

• Structured, transparent methodology 
Each audit follows a clearly defined process, from taxpayer notification and document 
request to final discovery or no-change findings. All steps are fully documented, and all 
workpapers are available for County review at any point. 

• Respectful and educational taxpayer interaction 
We treat every taxpayer with professionalism and respect. Our auditors are trained to 
educate business owners and bookkeepers on proper listing practices, not just to enforce 
compliance. This reduces friction and improves future accuracy. 

• Collaborative program design 
We work with each County to determine audit volume, account selection criteria, and 
communication preferences. Programs are tailored to your staffing, budget, and compliance 
needs. 

• Appeal support included 
All appeal defense, from informal reviews to Board hearings and the Property Tax 
Commission, is included in our audit fee. Our auditors stand behind their work and are fully 
prepared to represent the County throughout the process. 

• Direct leadership involvement 
Every GovTax program is led by firm leadership. County staff always have access to a 
decision-maker and subject matter expert, ensuring clear communication and reliable 
follow-through. 

  

061725  BCC Meeting

162



 
 

Government Tax Advisors, LLC 
www.GovTaxAdvisors.com | info@GovTaxAdvisors.com | (704) 840-8972 

Audit Workflow 
 

Our audit process is structured to ensure consistency, transparency, and partnership with the 
County and its taxpayers. Every step is documented, reviewed, and approved to uphold the 
County’s authority and ensure taxpayer confidence in the process. 

1. County Selection and File Setup 

The County determines which accounts to audit based on its goals, priorities, or areas of 
concern. Methodology of selection may include, but are not limited to, assessed value tiers, 
industry type, identified compliance concerns, and time since last audit. Once selected, GovTax 
builds each file into our internal system, preparing for scheduling, documentation, and tracking 
throughout the audit. 

2. Initial Taxpayer Notification 

We send an introductory letter to the taxpayer, clearly identifying the partnership between 
GovTax and the County and explaining that their account has been selected for audit. This letter 
allows the taxpayer to verify the legitimacy of the audit and encourages them to begin gathering 
relevant documentation. It also provides early notice before scheduling begins, minimizing 
surprise and improving cooperation. 

3. Appointment Scheduling and Document Request 

Following the initial letter, our audit team contacts the taxpayer to formally schedule the audit 
and request supporting documentation. We aim to establish a mutually convenient date and 
time, typically within a reasonable window. Once scheduled, we send a formal appointment 
letter confirming the date, time, and location of the audit, along with a checklist of the 
documents to be reviewed. 

4. Audit Fieldwork 

The audit itself includes a thorough review of the taxpayer’s records, including fixed asset 
listings, general ledgers, depreciation schedules, prior tax listings, and other financial 
documents. Our auditors collaborate directly with the taxpayer or their representative to 
review and reconcile the reported data. 

In many cases, a site inspection is also conducted to verify assets in use and confirm that listed 
assets match physical inventory. Site visits can also help determine whether expensed items are 
being held beyond the year of deduction or clarify whether specific assets should be considered 
taxable based on context of use. This is particularly helpful when asset names are vague or 
ambiguous, and physical inspection is needed to classify them properly. 

061725  BCC Meeting

163



 
 

Government Tax Advisors, LLC 
www.GovTaxAdvisors.com | info@GovTaxAdvisors.com | (704) 840-8972 

 

5. Post-Audit Review with Taxpayer 

After completing the audit, our auditor conducts a final review meeting with the taxpayer. We 
explain the findings, answer questions, and guide them through the reasoning behind any 
adjustments. This review promotes transparency and gives the taxpayer a clear understanding 
of the results before any formal correspondence is issued. 

6. Issuance of Results 

Based on the outcome of the audit, the County sends either a Discovery Letter (if material 
discrepancies are identified) or a No Change Letter (if no material discrepancies are 
identified). All formal correspondence is prepared by GovTax but issued under the County’s 
authority. 

7. Appeals Process and Support 

If the taxpayer disagrees with the audit findings, they may appeal. GovTax provides full support 
throughout the appeal process, including informal reviews, Board of Equalization and Review 
hearings, and representation before the Property Tax Commission (PTC) if necessary. Where 
appropriate, GovTax will revise audit findings based on additional information, clarifications, or 
supporting documentation provided by the taxpayer. Our goal is to ensure that every audit 
outcome is accurate, defensible, and aligned with the applicable statutes and County guidance. 

8. County Oversight Throughout 

At every stage, GovTax operates under the direction and approval of the County. All formal 
letters are reviewed and approved by the Tax Office before being sent to the taxpayer. 
This ensures the County retains full control over the process and that GovTax is always 
operating within the scope of authority. This level of oversight also protects the County during 
appeals by demonstrating that all audit actions were taken under its direction. 

9. Reporting and Communication  

Throughout the program, GovTax maintains clear and consistent communication with the 
County to ensure transparency and oversight. We provide Excel-based progress reports that 
summarize the status of each audit, including scheduling, findings, and final outcomes. All audit 
documentation is organized and delivered, including reconciliations, supporting schedules, and 
summary reports. Each engagement is managed under the direct oversight of Chip Bourgeault, 
ensuring continuity, responsiveness, and accountability at every stage of the audit process.  

061725  BCC Meeting

164



 
 

Government Tax Advisors, LLC 
www.GovTaxAdvisors.com | info@GovTaxAdvisors.com | (704) 840-8972 

Account Analysis 
 

Based on the County's account data, there are 1,505 business personal property listings. To support 
audit planning, we have grouped these accounts into assessed value tiers to help visualize the 
distribution of the tax base. We recommend prioritizing audits on the 469 accounts with an 
assessed value of $50,000 or more. While these accounts represent only 31% of listings by count, 
they comprise 93% of the County’s total assessed business personal property value. This 
concentration of value makes them the most impactful group to review from both an equity and 
fiscal responsibility standpoint.  

Accounts in Tier 0 are often managed internally by counties or referred selectively for audit where 
specific risk indicators or reporting concerns exist.  

Tax Roll Analysis       
Tier Assessed Value Range Count % of Total 
Tier 0 $0 – $49,999 1,036 68.84% 
Tier 1 $50,000 – $399,999 371 24.65% 
Tier 2 $400,000 – $999,999 62 4.12% 
Tier 3 $1,000,000 – $4,999,999 34 2.26% 
Tier 4 $5,000,000 – $9,999,999 2 0.13% 
Tier 5 $10,000,000 – $24,999,999 0 0.00% 
Tier 6 $25,000,000 – $49,999,999 0 0.00% 
Tier 7 $50,000,000 – $99,999,999 0 0.00% 
Tier 8 $100,000,000 and up 0 0.00% 
Total   1,505 100.00% 

 

  

061725  BCC Meeting

165



 
 

Government Tax Advisors, LLC 
www.GovTaxAdvisors.com | info@GovTaxAdvisors.com | (704) 840-8972 

Proposed Audit Program for the County 
 

34 Audits per year at $750 per audit 

Total annual cost of $25,500 

GovTax proposes a business personal property audit program consisting of 34 audits per year, 
billed at a flat rate of $750 per audit. The proposed tier distribution emphasizes the portion of the 
account base that represents the highest concentration of assessed value. This approach promotes 
fairness by aligning audit efforts with the most fiscally significant segments of the tax roll, while 
maintaining a cost-effective balance between equity and administrative return. At this annual 
volume all accounts over $50,000 in assessed value would effectively be audited over a 13 year 
period. 
 

Recommended Annual Program 
Tier Assessed Value Range Annual Recommended Audits 
Tier 0 $0 – $49,999 As selected by county  
Tier 1 $50,000 – $399,999 27 
Tier 2 $400,000 – $999,999 5 
Tier 3 $1,000,000 – $4,999,999 1 
Tier 4-8 $5,000,000 and up 1 
TOTAL   34 

 

Final selection will be made in collaboration with the County Tax Office to ensure transparency and 
alignment with internal priorities. The county may include Tier 0 accounts for audit as they deem 
appropriate. 

All audit labor, travel, and appeal support included. The County is only responsible for postage and 
record access. 

  

061725  BCC Meeting

166



 
 

Government Tax Advisors, LLC 
www.GovTaxAdvisors.com | info@GovTaxAdvisors.com | (704) 840-8972 

Why Counties Choose GovTax 
 

 23 years of NC audit experience and assessor relationships   

 Professional, transparent, and respectful audit approach   

 Direct oversight by Chip Bourgeault   

 Flexible pricing and tailored program design   

 Full appeal support through the Board and PTC   

 Excel-based audit tracking and documentation   

 Trusted by peers in local government 

 

Next Steps 
 

We appreciate your consideration and look forward to the opportunity to support Watauga 
County’s audit program. To move forward, the following steps will help us formalize the 
engagement: 

1. Confirm interest and preferred pricing option   

2. Finalize audit volume and kickoff date   

3. Review and execute agreement   

4. Provide access to listings for account selection   

5. Schedule program kickoff 

Contact:   
 

Chip Bourgeault   
President, Government Tax Advisors, LLC   
704-840-8972   
Chip@GovTaxAdvisors.com 

061725  BCC Meeting

167



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

168



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

TAX MATTERS  

E. Board of Equalization and Review Hearing Dates

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Rash will request the Board approve Monday, June 30th at 9:00 AM for a Board of Equalization 
and Review appeal. 

Board action is required to schedule Monday, June 30th at 9:00 AM for a Board of Equalization 
and Review appeal. 

061725  BCC Meeting

169



 

WATAUGA COUNTY TAX ADMINISTRATION 
 

Courthouse, Suite 21 – 842 West King Street – Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8021 – FAX (828) 264-3230 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
  TO:       Deron T. Geouque 
    
  FROM:      Tyler Rash 
 
  SUBJECT: 2025 Board of Equalization and Review Hearing Dates 
 
  DATE:       June 9, 2025 
  ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

I’d like to address the County Commissioners at the June 17th meeting to discuss the meeting  
time for Board of E & R. 

 
An additional meeting date is needed for an appeal.  I propose Monday, June 30th at 9am. 
 
Thank you. 

    
       
 
  

 

 

061725  BCC Meeting

170



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

TAX MATTERS  

F. License Plate Agency Contract Renewal

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Mr. Rash will request Board approval to submit the renewal application for the License Plate 
Agency. 

Board action is required to authorize the submittal of the renewal application for the Licenses Plate 
Agency.   

061725  BCC Meeting

171



 

WATAUGA COUNTY TAX ADMINISTRATION 
 

Courthouse, Suite 21 – 842 West King Street – Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8021 – FAX (828) 264-3230 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
  TO:       Deron T. Geouque 
 
  CC:       Monica Harrison, Assistant Clerk to the Board 
    
  FROM:      Tyler Rash 
 
  SUBJECT: LPA Contract Application 
 
  DATE:       June 13, 2025 
  ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

I’d like to address the County Commissioners at the June 17, 2025 meeting for approval to reapply  
for the county LPA contract as the current 10-year contract expires December 2025. 
The application deadline is June 27, 2025 

 
 
Thank you. 

    
       
 
  

 

 

061725  BCC Meeting

172



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Budget Amendments 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
Deron Geouque, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your packet. 

Board approval is requested. 

  

061725  BCC Meeting

173



MEMORANDUM

TO: Deron T. Geouque, County Manager

FROM: Watauga County Finance Office

SUBJECT: Budget Amendments 

DATE:

Description Debit Credit

143300 343010 Emergency Placement Fund Revenue 39,800             

145410 440810 Emergency Placement Fund Expense 39,800             

103300 343324 EM DRMG Grant 40,239             

104330 449921 EM DRMG Grant Expense 40,239             

103612 333200 Donations 70,000             

106124 451000 Capital Outlay-Furniture & Equipment 70,000             

103300 349606 Soil & Water DWR Grant 165,000           

104960 449922 DEQ DIV Water Resource Grant 165,000           

103300 349607 S&W DWR Dutch Creek Grant 326,000           

104960 449923 NCDWR Dutch Creek Grant 326,000           

103300 345000 ROAP Grant 185,401           

104500 469845 Elderly and Disabled 73,258             

104500 469844 Employment Transportation 14,667             

104500 469843 Rural General Populations 97,476             

Per Board action taken 9/3/24; to recognize the acceptance of Soil and Water pass-through grants.

Per Board action taken 7/16/24; to recognize the donation for weight training equipment.

Per Board action taken 6/18/24; to recognize the Disaster Relief and Mitigation Fund Grant award.

To recognize the acceptance of the NC DOT Rural Operating Assistance Program funds. No County dollars are

required as a match.

Per Board action taken 9/3/24; to recognize the acceptance of Soil and Water pass-through grants.

WATAUGA COUNTY

FINANCE OFFICE

814 West King St., Suite 216, Boone, NC  28607     Phone (828) 265-8007

June 12, 2025

The following budget amendment requires the approval of the Watauga County Board of Commissioners.

Board approval is requested. 

Account #

To recognize DSS grant for emergency placement from N.C. Department of Health and Human Services, no 

County match is required.

061725  BCC Meeting

174



143583 344090 D-Rental Assistance 1,254                

145410 440813 D-Rental Assistance Expense 1,254                

143583 344091 D-Essential Services CW 42,017             

145410 440811 D-Essential Services CW Expense 42,017             

143583 344092 D-Essential Services AS 9,724                

145410 440812 D-Essential Services AS Expense 9,724                

143583 344093 D-Utility Assistance 131,966           

145410 440814 D-Utility Assistance Expense 131,966           

103300 359154 America 250NC Grant 10,000             

105890 463154 America 250NC Grant Expense 10,000             

104950 458000 Capital Outlay-Building 67,379             

103300 349511 Tobacco Trust Fund Grant 67,379             

669800 498067 Transfer to Capital Reserve 66,445             

673980 398066 Transfer from Landfill 66,445             

554199 469500 Contracted Services 10,000,000     

553300 389000 Misc. Disaster Revenues 10,000,000     

105911 470031 Classroom presentation technology 80,000             

105911 470060 HVAC/sewer pumps 25,000             

105911 470080 Technology devices 300,000           

105911 470081 Heavy vehicle lift 75,000             

105911 470059 Security cameras 25,000             

105911 470082 Classroom, bathrooms, decking renovations 15,000             

105911 470073 Playground updates 30,000             

103980 398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund 550,000           

213991 399101 Fund Balance Appropriation 550,000           

219800 498010 Transfer to General Fund 550,000           

103300 332004 Senior Center Grant 14,855             

105550 449900 Senior Center Grant Expenses 14,855             

NC Dept. of Health and Human Services allocated funds to assist with emergency expenses due to Hurricane 

Helene.

Per Board action taken 2/7/25; to recognize the acceptance of the Senior Center grant funds. County dollars

required as match funds are already in the POA budget.

Per Board action taken 2/4/25; to transfer funds for capital needs from the Capital Reserve for the School 

System.

Per Board action taken 2/6/24; to recognize the America 250 NC Grant award.

Per Board action taken 1/21/25; to setup the Capital Reserve Fund for transfer station required by State law

and DEQ.

Per Board action taken 10/15/24; to setup the Disaster Fund to track Hurricane Helene FEMA expense.

Per Board action taken 11/19/24; to recognize the acceptance of the Tobacco Trust Fund grant funds for the

greenhouse project.

061725  BCC Meeting

175



103300 332006 Senior Health Info Grant 3,030                

105550 449901 Senior Health Information Program 3,030                

103300 349616 STRAP grant             200,000 

104960 449919 STRAP grant - stream restoration             200,000 

103300 333000 JCPC state grant funds               30,769 

105890 463144 WYN/YRC-JCPC               30,769 

104140 469507 Contracted Business Audits 39,000             

103101 312010 Current Year Tax Collections 39,000             

533839 389420 Opioid settlement 686,140           

533839 525405 Opioid disbursements 686,140           

To recognize Opioid settlement awards funded per the BOC meeting August 6, 2024.

106125 429802 Other Supplies-Little League 3,000                

103612 333200 Donations 3,000                

To recognize donation from Tar Heel Leagues for Little League baseball equipment.

104210 444000 Service & Maintenance Contract 22,000             

103300 344210 IT Cybersecurity Grant 22,000             

554199 569500 Contracted Services 895,478           

553831 389999 Cash Flow Loan 895,478           

104330 469901 Foscoe Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 130,000           

104330 469903 Fall Creek Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 2,500                

104330 469904 Beaver Dam Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 27,000             

104330 469905 Boone Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 230,000           

104330 469906 Zionville Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 30,000             

104330 469907 Cove Creek Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 61,000             

104330 469908

Stewart Simmons Fire Dist Sales Tax

Distribution 80,000             

104330 469910 Meat Camp Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 60,000             

To recognize the Streamflow Rehabilitation Program (STRAP) project from NC Dept of Agriculture and 

Consumer Services - Division of Soil and Water Conservation; Board approved the grant July 19, 2022.

Per Board action 2/18/25; to recognize the acceptance of the Senior Health Insurance Information Program

(SHIIP) Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act (MIPPA) grant funds. No County dollars are

required as matching funds.

Per Board action taken 4/1/25; to recognize receiving the Cash Flow Loan from NC State Treasurer.

Additional state JCPC discretionary funds awarded 4/16/25 to Western Youth Network for a vehicle.

To recognize additional funds needed for business audits due to a clerical error in FY 25's budget.

Per Board action taken 9/5/23; to recognize the acceptance of the State and Local Cybersecurity Grant

Program (SLCGP) grant funds for implementing multifactor authentication (MFA).

061725  BCC Meeting

176



104330 469911 Todd Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 16,000             

104330 469912 Blowing Rock Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 114,000           

104330 469913 Shawneehaw Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 32,000             

104330 469919 Creston Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 3,200                

104330 469924 Deep Gap Fire Dist Sales Tax Distribution 50,000             

103311 323500 Medicaid hold harmless funds 271,000           

103311 389915 Sales Tax Revenue reimbursement from Towns 564,700           

To recognize additional projected sales tax distribution above original budget. 

103200 326600 ABC bottle tax 2,500                

105890 469848 Blue Ridge Mediation - ABC funds 2,500                

243102 312100 Current year taxes Boone 40,000             

243102 312101 Current year taxes Foscoe special district 1,000                

243102 312107 Current year taxes Cove Creek special district 500                   

243102 312108 Current year taxes Shawneehaw special district 1,000                

243102 312105 Current year taxes Beech Mountain special district 250                   

244340 469901 Pay to fire district-Foscoe 1,000                

244340 469905 Pay to fire district-Boone 40,000             

244340 469907 Pay to fire district-Cove Creek 500                   

244340 469908 Pay to fire district-Shawneehaw 1,000                

244340 469998 Pay to fire district - Beech Mountain 250                   

283102 312101 Current year taxes Foscoe 60,000             

283102 312103 Current year taxes Fall Creek 2,000                

283102 312104 Current year taxes Beaver Dam 20,000             

283102 312104 Current year taxes Stewart Simmons 80,000             

283102 312106 Current year taxes Zionville 20,000             

283102 312107 Current year taxes Cove Creek 4,000                

283102 312108 Current year taxes Shawneehaw 20,000             

283102 312109 Current year taxes Meat Camp 30,000             

283102 312110 Current year taxes Deep Gap 30,000             

283102 312111 Current year taxes Todd 5,000                

283102 312112 Current year taxes Blowing Rock 90,000             

283102 312119 Current year taxes Meat Camp/Creston 2,000                

284340 469901 Pay to fire district-Foscoe 60,000             

284340 469903 Pay to fire district- Fall Creek 2,000                

284340 469904 Pay to fire district-Beaver Dam 20,000             

284340 469905 Pay to fire district-Stewart Simmons 80,000             

284340 469906 Pay to fire district-Zionville 20,000             

284340 469907 Pay to fire district-Cove Creek 4,000                

284340 469908 Pay to fire district Shawneehaw 20,000             

284340 469909 Pay to fire district-Meat Camp 30,000             

284340 469910 Pay to fire district-Deep Gap 30,000             

To record additional bottle tax funds received.

061725  BCC Meeting

177



284340 469911 Pay to fire district-Todd 5,000                

284340 469912 Pay to fire district-Blowing Rock 90,000             

284340 469919 Pay to fire district - Meat Camp/Creston 2,000                

To recognize additional projected fire tax distribution above original budget. 

293270 312009 Occupancy Tax Revenues 1,000,000        

294140 469900 Watauga County Dist U TDA 10,000             

294140 449900 Administrative Collection Fee 990,000           

313839 395123 Fines and forfeitures 40,000             

315911 463200 Board of Education 40,000             

754400 469163 Representative 163 1,000                

754400 469214 Representative 214 1,500                

754400 469216 Representative 216 500                   

754400 469225 Representative 225 3,500                

754400 469227 Representative 227 20,000             

754400 469229 Representative 229 2,000                

754400 469230 Representative 230 30,000             

754400 469231 Representative 231 35,000             

754400 469234 Representative 234 15,000             

754400 469235 Representative 235 10,000             

754400 469236 Representative 236 10,000             

754400 469237 Representative 237 10,000             

753212 369163 Representative 163 1,000                

753212 369214 Representative 214 1,500                

753212 369216 Representative 216 500                   

753212 369225 Representative 225 3,500                

753212 369226 Representative 226 20,000             

753212 369229 Representative 229 2,000                

753212 369230 Representative 230 30,000             

753212 369231 Representative 231 35,000             

753212 369234 Representative 234 15,000             

753212 369235 Representative 235 10,000             

753212 369236 Representative 236 10,000             

753212 369237 Representative 237 10,000             

To recognize additional DSS clients.

104283 457002 Howards Knob park project 2,106,708        

103300 XXXXXX Part F/Grants Howards Knob 2,106,708        

To recognize additional projected occupancy tax revenues above original budget.

To record additional fines and forfeitures above original budget.

061725  BCC Meeting

178



104284 435199 Old Cove Creek Hurricane Helene repairs 500,000           

103839 388500 Insurance Proceeds 500,000           

233317 343109 Sheriff State Substance Abuse Tax revenue 9,889                

234340 444000 Service maintenance contracts 9,889                

519800 498021 Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 242,036.99     

519391 399102 Fund Balance Appropriated 242,036.99     

213980 398151 Transfer from American Rescue Plan Grant 242,036.99     

219930 449211 Future County Buildings 242,036.99     

563839 389420 McKinsey Opioid revenues 9,889                

565110 525405 McKinsey Opioid expenses 9,889                

103300 3496XX S&W DWR Green Valley Stream Restoration 61,550             

104960 4499XX NCDWR  Green Valley Stream Restoration 61,550             

103300 3496XX S&W DWR Pine Orchard Creek 186,210           

104960 4499XX NCDWR  Pine Orchard Creek 186,210           

104311 451008 Capital outlay - towers 5,000,000        

213991 399101 Fund Balance Appropriation 5,000,000        

219800 498010 Transfer to General Fund 5,000,000        

103980 398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund 5,000,000        

104273 458000 Capital outlay - parking deck 125,000           

213991 399101 Fund Balance Appropriation 125,000           

219800 498010 Transfer to General Fund 125,000           

103980 398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund 125,000           

To transfer from CIP to cover capital outlay for emergency services towers.

To transfer from CIP to cover the parking deck change order.

Per Board action taken 9/17/24; to recognize receiving Howards Knob park project, no County match is 

required.

To recognize insurance proceeds to cover Old Cove Creek hurricane repairs.

To recognize additional funds received from the State Substance Abuse Tax

To close out the American Rescue Plan Grant Project Fund.  Investment earnings are allowed to be utilized for 

County expenditures.

To recognize McKinsey opioid settlement funds

Per Board action taken 9/3/24; to recognize the acceptance of Soil and Water pass-through grants.

061725  BCC Meeting

179



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

180



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Proposed Human Services Parking Lot Agreement with Appalachian State University

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
Appalachian State University is requesting a renewal of the Human Services Parking Lot 
Agreement.  The term is from September 6, 2025 through December 20, 2025.  The amount of the 
lease is $5,000.  The University did express interest in a longer term. 

Staff seeks direction from the Board.   

061725  BCC Meeting

181



1 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

and 

APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

USE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS USE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made and entered into as of the second signature 
below (“Execution Date”) by and between Watauga County (“County”), and Appalachian State 
University, a constituent institution of the University of North Carolina (“University”). Watauga 
County and Appalachian State University may each be referred to herein individually as a 
"Party" or collectively as the "Parties."  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Appalachian State University desires to utilize the parking lot at 132 
Poplar Grove Road Connector as set forth below; 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has resolved to allow Appalachian 
State University use of the parking lot at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector for the term set 
forth below; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, said 
County does hereby agree to allow University to use parking spaces marked by lines in 
paved lots in the parking lot located at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector, Boone, lying and 
being in Watauga County, North Carolina. 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement are as follows: 

1. TERM: The Parking lot located at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector shall be available 
to University for the pre- and postgame events during the 2025 football season. Such 
dates and times shall be determined in accordance with University's football schedule. 
Notice of game dates and times shall be provided to the County prior to the event. The 
term of this Agreement shall extend from September 6, 2025 through December 20, 
2025. 

2. PAYMENTS: University shall pay to the County for the use of said lot the sum of Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) in one lump sum payment, annually, for the use of the 
premises. Such payment shall be made every year before the start of the first event. 
The University shall be responsible for providing security on the dates of use during the 
term of this Agreement and for removing all unauthorized vehicles. University is 
responsible for ensuring that no individuals shall enter any structures or buildings 
located on the premises. County shall provide a parking pass to each individual who 
pays for the use of the parking facilities, which shall include indemnification language. 
University shall also provide portajohns for use at the lot on event dates. 

3. USE OF PREMISES: The premises shall not be used for any illegal purposes, nor in any 
manner to create any nuisance or trespass, nor in any manner to vitiate the insurance or 
increase the rate of insurance on the premises. University agrees there shall be no 
tailgating, no consumption of alcohol, no open flame, and no picnicking at the parking lot 

061725  BCC Meeting

182



2 
 

located at 132 Poplar Grove Road Connector. The University shall only use the agreed-
upon space for the parking of vehicles for the football game festivities and for the purposes 
as set forth above, and shall be responsible for providing employees of the University who 
will secure the premises, the occupants, and the property during the time period of this 
Agreement and until the property is vacated by any and all persons, vehicles, or remnants of 
use by University, its sub-University, assigns and authorized or unauthorized users. Upon 
the end of this Agreement, University shall return the premises to an equal to or better-than 
condition than it was as of the start date of the Agreement. Specifically, the University 
shall be responsible for towing unauthorized users of the space. University shall bear the 
sole cost of removal and towing for any vehicle left on the premises at the termination of 
the Agreement. 

4. ALTERATIONS: The University shall not paint or decorate the premises or make any 
alterations, additions or improvements in or to the premises without the County's prior 
written consent, and then only in a workmanlike manner using materials and contractors 
approved by the County. All such work shall be done at the University's expense and at 
such times and in such manner as the County may approve. All alterations, additions, and 
improvements upon the premises, made by either the County or the University, shall 
become the property of the County and shall remain upon and become a part of the 
premises at the end of the use. 

5. INDEMNIFICATION: To the extent permitted by law, University agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless County from any liability arising from any breach of contract or any 
other action related to, or incidental to, the performance of this contract. The parties to this 
Agreement agree that nothing in this Agreement constitutes a waiver of University's 
sovereign immunity, and that University's obligations in this paragraph shall be limited to 
the extent and manner of recovery provided in North Carolina's State Tort Claims Act, N.C. 
Gen. Stat.§ 143-291, et. seq. 

6. INSURANCE: University represents and warrants that it is self-insured with respect 
to tort claims and shall remain self-insured therefor to the extent permitted by North 
Carolina law for the entire term of this Agreement. A certificate of insurance shall be 
provided to the County upon request. 

7. DESTRUCTION OF OR DAMAGES TO PREMISES: If the premises are 
destroyed by storm, fire, lightening, earthquake or other casualty, or if the spaces 
become unavailable or unusable for any reason whatsoever, this Agreement shall 
terminate as of the date of such destruction or unavailability and Agreement shall be 
accounted for as between the County and the University as of that date. If the premises 
are damaged, but not wholly destroyed by any such casualties, payment shall abate in 
such proportion as effective use of the premises has been affected. 

8. GOVERNMENT ORDERS: University agrees to comply promptly with all 
requirements of any legally constituted public authority made necessary by reason of 
University's use of the premises or any other person/entity's use of the premises on 
University's behalf. In the event a governmental authority, private action, or any other event 
occurs, which imposes a requirement upon the County, which would result in a hardship to 
County to remedy, the County may declare this Agreement void and the term of this 
Agreement shall cease.  

9. EVENTS OF DEFAULT: The happening of any one or more of the following events 
(hereinafter any one of which may be refe1red to as "Event of Default") during the term of 

061725  BCC Meeting

183



3 
 

this Agreement, shall constitute a breach of this Agreement on the part of the University; 

(a) University fails to make payments as provided for herein; 

(b) University fails to comply with or abide by and perform any other obligation 
imposed upon University under this Agreement; or any unlawful or unauthorized 
use of the premises occurs, as set forth in paragraph above, entitled "Use of 
Premises." 

(c) A permanent receiver is appointed for University's property and such receiver is not 
removed within sixty (60) days after written notice from County to University to 
obtain such removal; 

(d) University, either voluntarily or involuntarily, takes advantage of any debt or relief 
proceedings under any present or future law, whereby the payment or any part 
thereof is, or is proposed to be reduced or payment thereof deferred; 

(e) University makes an assignment for benefit of creditors; 

(f) Any other violation of the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

 

10. TERMINATION: Either Party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement at 
any time, and for any reason, by providing thirty (30) days notice to the other party.  

11. COUNTY'S ENTRY OF PREMISES: At any time during University's use, 
County or any representative of County may enter the premises to inspect the 
premises, exhibit it to prospective University/Purchasers, and to make repairs. 

12. NOTICES: All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be personally delivered to or sent by U.S. certified mail, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices to University shall be delivered or sent 
to the address shown at the beginning of this Agreement with a copy sent to 
Appalachian State University, Office of General Counsel, Attn: General Counsel, 
ASU Box 32126, Boone, North Carolina 28608-2126. 

13. NO BAILMENT CREATED: No bailment is created by this agreement, and 
County assumes no liability, whatsoever, for any vehicle, any person located 
therein, any personal property on the premises, or any item in a vehicle, or any 
person being in or parked on the premises except to the extent that any such 
damage or injury occurs due to the negligence or intentional acts of County or 
its officers, employees or agents. Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a 
waiver of the County's governmental immunity. 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the 
parties hereto, and no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, 
oral or otherwise, between the parties, not embodied herein shall be of any force 
or effect. This Agreement may not be modified except by a writing signed by 
all of the parties hereto. This Agreement shall supersede any prior agreement 
made between the parties, relating to the subject matter of this agreement, 
whether oral or in writing. 

 

061725  BCC Meeting

184



4 
 

15. NONWAIVER: Failure of the County to insist upon strict compliance with the 
Agreement at any point shall not be construed as a waiver of any terms 
contained in his Agreement or prohibit full enforcement of the rights contained 
in the Agreement herein. 

16. ASSIGNMENT: The University shall not assign this Agreement or sublet the 
premises in whole or in part. 

17. GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS: 

(a) No boats, trailers, or campers shall be parked in the parking area; 

(b) No trash or personal property shall be left on the property. 
University Agreements the spaces as designated herein only. Any 
trash, vehicles or personal property left on the premises will be 
removed at the University's expense. 

(c) Portable toilet facilities shall be provided by the University at its sole 
expense in both parking lot locations in amounts sufficient for the 
comfort of those utilizing the premises.  

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the said parties of the first and second part herein, have 
hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals, the day and year first above written. 

 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY    APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY  

 

 

_______________________________  ____________________________________ 

By: Deron Geouque    By: Doug Gillin  
County Manager     Director of Athletics 

 

___________________   ___________________ 

Date Signed      Date Signed 

061725  BCC Meeting

185



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

186



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C. Boards and Commissions

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

Watauga County Board of Adjustment 

The Board of Adjustment received notice from Virginia “Ginny” Nilles that she is resigning from 
her position effective immediately. Ginny served in the alternate member position. There are no 
recommendations from the Board of Adjustment at this time and no volunteer applications have 
been received. 

061725  BCC Meeting

187



Blank Page 
 
 

061725  BCC Meeting

188



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

D. Announcements 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The first regular meeting in July has been cancelled; therefore, the next Board of Commissioners 
Meeting will be held on Tuesday, July 17, 2025, at 5:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

061725  BCC Meeting

189



 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY 
 

126 Poplar Grove Connector Suite 201    Boone, North Carolina 28607  (828) 265-8043 
 TTY 1-800-735-2962 
 Voice 1-800-735-8262  
 or 711 
 FAX (828) 265-8080 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: June 9, 2025 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

Deron Geouque, County Manager  
Vacant, Clerk 

From: Jason Walker, Director of Planning & Inspections 
Re: Board of Adjustment - Vacancy 
 
 
We have received notice from Virginia “Ginny” Nilles that she is resigning from her position on 
the Board of Adjustment, effective immediately. Ginny served in the alternate member position. 
 
This resignation creates a vacancy that will need to be filled. We will begin the process of 
identifying and recruiting prospective candidates to serve in this role. 
 
Please share any recommendations or interested individuals as we move forward with this effort. 
 

Department of 
Planning & Inspections 

061725  BCC Meeting

190



 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

BREAK 

 
AGENDA ITEM 14: 

CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Land Acquisition – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i) 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 15: 

POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 

 

061725  BCC Meeting

191



 
Additional information 

presented during the board 
meeting 

 




























































	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	BOARD OF EDUCATION CONTRACT
	MIDDLE FORK GREENWAY BOONE GORGE PARK BID AWARD
	JCPC
	COOP EXT GREENHOUSE BUILDING PROJECT BID AWARD
	NC DMVA GRANT
	BOARD OF ELECTIONS VOTING EQUIPMENT PURCHASE
	TAX MONTLY COLLECTIONS
	TAX REFUNDS AND RELEASES
	TAX RESOLUTION ADVANCING THE SCHEDULED PENTENNIAL REAPPRAISAL
	TAX AUDIT SERVICES
	BOARD E&R HEARING DATES
	LPA CONTRACT RENEWAL
	BUDGET AMENDMENTS
	HUMAN SERVICES PARKING LOT AGREEMENT WITH ASU
	BOARD & COMMISSIONS
	Announcements
	BREAK

	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	4 Legal Name as shown on your income tax return: 
	5 Business NameDBADisregarded Entity Name if different from Legal Name: 
	Text11: 
	Text12: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: 
	Text17: 
	Text18: 
	Text19: 
	Legal Address Line 1: 
	Legal Address Line 2: 
	Legal City: 
	Legal State: 
	Legal Zip: 
	Legal County: Johnston
	Remit Address Line 1: 
	Remit Address Line 2: 
	Remit City: 
	Remit State: 
	Remit Zip: 
	Remit County: 
	8 Contact Name: 
	9 Phone Number: 
	10 Fax Number: 
	11 Email Address: 
	CCorporation: 
	Limited liability company  Enter the tax classification CC corporation SS corporation: 
	Entity Type: Other
	Other Specify: 
	Exempt Payee Code: 
	Exemption from FATCA: 
	Printed Name: 
	IDENTIFICATION SOURCE: EIN
	Entity Classification: NC Local Govt
	Printed Title: 
	 Date: 


